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Registered Office : Kanchenjunga Building, 5th Floor, 18, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi - 110 001.

CIN: L74899DL1989PLC035140  Telephone :011-43745000  Fax No.011-23350765  

Email: dsil@dcmsr.com     Website : https://www.dcmsr.com

NOTICE

The 29th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Wednesday, the 2nd  September, 2020 at 
11.00 A.M. through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), to transact the following 
businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1. 	 To consider and adopt:
	 a)	 The Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 

and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, and 
	 b)	 The Audited Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company for the Financial Year ended 

March 31, 2020 and the Report of the Auditors thereon.
 
2.	 To confirm the payment of interim dividend of Rs. 5 per Equity Share of Rs. 10 each (50%) 

already paid during the financial year 2019-20.

3.	 Appointment of director liable to retire by rotation
	 To appoint a director in place of Shri Madhav B. Shriram (DIN 00203521), who retires by rotation and 

being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business:

4.	 Cost Auditors – Ratification of Remuneration
	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification(s), as an 

Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration of Rs.1.46 lakh plus GST 
and out of pocket expenses, if any, fixed by the Board of Directors on recommendation of the Audit 
Committee for audit of the cost records of the Company by M/s Ramanath Iyer & Co., for the year  2020-21, 
be and is hereby ratified and confirmed.”

  
5.	 Approval to the Appointment of Additional Director 
	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification(s), as an 

Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT Shri Manoj Kumar (DIN 00072634), who was co-opted by the Board as an 
Additional Director on the Board in its meeting held on 27.06.2020, pursuant to Section 161 and any 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory modifications or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force and pursuant to Articles of Association of the Company, be 
and is hereby appointed as a Director liable to retire by rotation as per Section 152(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 on the Board of the Company.
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	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Sr. Managing Director and the Company Secretary be and are hereby 
severally authorized to sign and file the necessary forms/ returns with the Registrar of Companies, NCT 
of Delhi and Haryana, regarding the appointment of the Director.”

6.	 Approval to the appointment of Shri N.K. Jain in the casual vacancy 
	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution, with or without modification(s), as an 

Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, the appointment of Shri Nalin 
Kumar Jain (DIN: 00203581) in the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of Shri Narayan Rao 
Karnam (DIN: 06730043), effective from 01.11.2019, be and is hereby approved.” 

7.	 Approval to the appointment of Shri N.K. Jain as Director Finance & CFO
	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution, with or without modification(s), as an 

Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 196, 197, 198 and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, 
as amended from time to time and other applicable provisions, if any, of the said Act and/or any other 
applicable Regulations, and subject to such approvals, if any, required, approval of the Company be 
and is hereby accorded to the appointment of Shri Nalin Kumar Jain (DIN: 00203581) as Director 
Finance & Chief Financial Officer effective from 01.11.2019 to hold office till 30.06.2021, on the terms 
and conditions and remuneration as set out in the Explanatory Statement to this Notice.”

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or a Committee thereof, duly authorized by 
the Board, be and is hereby authorized to alter, increase, vary or modify, from time to time, the said 
terms and conditions including as to remuneration and or designation as it may deem fit, subject to 
the provisions of the above said Sections read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 or any other Regulations as may be applicable.”

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year 
the managerial personnel be paid the remuneration as set out in the Explanatory Statement or such 
higher amount as may be permitted subject to necessary approval, if any required, and also subject to 
the overall ceilings laid down in Part II of Section II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 or any 
other amendment thereto, or any other Regulations as may be applicable.”

8.	 Approval to the appointment of Smt. Urvashi Tilak Dhar in the casual vacancy
	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution, with or without modification(s), as an 

Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(4), of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the relevant provisions of Articles of Association of the Company, the appointment of Smt. Urvashi Tilak 
Dhar (DIN: 00294265) in the casual vacancy caused by the demitting of office by Shri Alok B. Shriram 
as a director liable to retire by rotation, effective from 14.08.2019, be and is hereby approved.”

9.	 Approval to the appointment of Smt. Urvashi Tilak Dhar as Whole Time Director
	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution, with or without modification(s), as a 

Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 196, 197, 198 and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 
as amended from time to time and other applicable provisions, if any, of the said Act and/or any other 
applicable Regulations including SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, and subject to such approvals, if 
any, required, approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of Smt. Urvashi 
Tilak Dhar (DIN: 00294265) as Whole Time Director effective from 14.08.2019 to hold office for two 
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  By order of the Board
   For DCM SHRIRAM INDUSTRIES LIMITED

  (Y.D. Gupta)

New Delhi, Company Secretary & Vice President 
June 27, 2020 (Law & Taxation)
  FCS	3405

  (Y.D. Gupta)

years i.e. up to 13.08.2021 on the terms and conditions and remuneration as set out in the Explanatory 
Statement to this Notice.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or a Committee thereof, duly authorized by 
the Board, be and is hereby authorized to alter, increase, vary or modify, from time to time, the said 
terms and conditions including as to remuneration and or designation as it may deem fi t, subject to 
the provisions of the above said Sections read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 or any other Regulation as may be applicable.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of profi ts in any Financial Year 
the managerial personnel be paid the remuneration other than commission as set out in the Explanatory 
Statement or such higher amount as may be permitted subject to necessary approval, if any required, 
and also subject to the overall ceilings laid down in Part II of Section II of Schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013 or any other amendment thereto, or any other Regulations as may be applicable.”

10.	 Adoption	of	new	Articles	of	Association	
 To consider and, if thought fi t, to pass the following Resolution, with or without modifi cation(s), as a 

Special Resolution:

 “REVOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 14 & 15 and all other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modifi cation(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the new set of Articles of Association 
submitted to this meeting, be and is hereby approved and adopted in substitution of and to the entire 
exclusion of the existing Articles of Association of the Company.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized 
to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
Resolution .”
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NOTES:

1. 	 Explanatory Statement, as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, is annexed.

2. 	 In terms of the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and 
Refund) Rules, 2016, the Company has transferred the unclaimed dividends in respect of the Financial 
Year 2009-10 to the IEPF in October 2017. The details are available on the website of the Company 
i.e. https://www.dcmsr.com.

	 The shares in respect of which dividend has not been claimed for 7 consecutive years or more are 
also required to be transferred to the IEPF following the prescribed procedure. The Company had in 
compliance with the said Rules transferred 406365 equity shares held by 27848 shareholders to IEPF 
in the month of December 2017. The shares and dividend so transferred can be claimed from the IEPF 
after complying with the prescribed requirements. As per the Rules the holders of such shares cannot 
exercise any of the rights attached to the shares unless the shares are reclaimed from the IEPF.

	 The shareholders, who have not encashed their dividend warrant/s for the previous year(s) may contact 
the Company or Registrar & Transfer Agents for issue of duplicate warrants.

	 The Company will be transferring the unclaimed dividend, declared in the year 2013 and paid in 
September 2013, to IEPF by November 2020. The shareholders who have not received/encashed the 
dividend for the year 2012-13 may claim the same from the Registrar & Transfer Agents/Company. The 
Company will also be transferring 61906 equity shares held by 3865 shareholders on which dividends 
remain unclaimed for consecutive seven years to IEPF as required under the relevant Rules. Details 
are been uploaded on company website and individual notices are being sent.

3. 	 Shareholders who hold shares in physical form may notify change of address, if any, and also email 
ID to  KFin. Technologies  Pvt. Ltd., Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli Financial District, 
Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 500032 or New Delhi House, 305, 3rd Floor, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi 
– 110001, along with self attested copies of address proof and PAN card. Members may note that SEBI 
by Circular dated 20.4.2018 has made it mandatory for the persons holding shares in physical 
form to furnish their PAN and Bank details to the Company/ Registrar & Transfer Agent (KFin 
Technologies Pvt. Ltd.). Members are requested to comply with the requirement at the earliest. 

4. 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, 
therefore, requested to submit the PAN, if not already furnished, to their Depository Participants with 
whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit 
their PAN details to KFin Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

5. 	 The information with regard to Shri Madhav B. Shriram, whose reappointment as a Director, liable to 
retire by rotation, given in Note 24 hereunder, forms an integral part of this Notice. 

6.	 In view of the prevailing restrictions on assembly of people across the Country due to outbreak of the 
Covid-19 pandemic and restrictions on the movements apart from social distancing and pursuant to 
Circular No.14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 read with Circular 
No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, this meeting is convened as e-AGM, to be held through Video 
Conferencing or Other Audio Visual Means. 

7.	 e-AGM: Company has appointed M/s KFin Technologies Private Limited, Registrars and Transfer 
Agents, to provide Video Conferencing facility for the Annual General Meeting and the attendant 
enablers for conducting of the e-AGM. 

8.	 Pursuant to the provisions of the circulars of MCA on the VC/OVAM (e-AGM):

	 a)	  Members can attend the meeting through login credentials provided to them to connect to Video 
conference. Physical attendance of the Members at the Meeting venue is not required.

	 b)	 Appointment of proxy to attend and cast vote on behalf of the member is not available.

	 c)	 Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend the e-AGM through 
VC/OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting.
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9.	 The Members can join the e-AGM 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the commencement 
of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice.

10.	 Up to 1000 members will be able to join on a FIFO basis to the e-AGM.

11. 	 No restrictions on account of FIFO entry into e-AGM will be there for large Shareholders (Shareholders 
holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc.

12.	 The attendance of the Members (members logins) attending the e-AGM will be counted for the purpose 
of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

13.	 Remote e-Voting: Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013  read with 
Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 
44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the 
Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 
2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members through e-Voting agency M/s 
KFin Technologies Private Limited. 

14. 	 Voting at the e-AGM: Members who could not vote through remote e-voting may avail the e-voting 
system provided at the venue by M/s KFin Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 

15.	 In line with the MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the EGM/AGM has been 
uploaded on the website of the Company at https://www.dcmsr.com. The Notice can also be accessed 
from the website of BSE Limited  at www.bseindia.com and is also available on the website of e-voting 
agency M/s KFin Technologies Private Limited at  their website address https://evoting.karvy.com/

16.	 Procedure for obtaining the Annual Report, e-AGM notice and e-voting instructions by the 
shareholders whose email addresses are not registered with the depositories or with RTA on 
physical folios: 

	 On account of threat posed by COVID-19 and in terms of the MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Company 
has sent the Annual Report, Notice of e-AGM and e-Voting instructions only in electronic form to the 
registered email addresses of the shareholders. Therefore, those shareholders who have not yet 
registered their email address are requested to get their email addresses registered by following the 
procedure given below:

	 1.	 Those shareholders who have registered/not registered their mail address and mobile nos. including 
address and bank details may please contact and validate/update their details with the Depository 
Participant in case of shares held in electronic form and with the Company’s  Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent, KFin Technologies Pvt. Ltd. in case the shares are held in physical form.

	 2.	 Shareholders who have not registered their email address and in consequence the Annual Report, 
Notice of e-AGM and e-voting notice could not be served, may temporarily get their email address and 
mobile number registered with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, KFin Technologies 
Private Limited, by clicking the link: https://ris.kfintech.com/email_registration/  for sending the same. 
Shareholders are requested to follow the process as guide to capture the email address and mobile 
number for sending the soft copy of the notice and e-voting instructions along with the User ID and 
Password. In case of any queries, shareholder may write to einward.ris@kfintech.com.

	 3.	 Shareholders are also requested to visit the website of the Company https://www.dcmsr.com or 
the website of the Registrar and Transfer Agent https://evoting.karvy.com for downloading the 
Annual Report and Notice of the e-AGM.
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	 4.	 Alternatively, a member may send an e-mail request at the email id einward.ris@kfintech.com 
along with scanned copy of the request letter duly signed providing the email address, mobile 
number, self-attested PAN copy and Client Master copy in case of electronic folio and copy of 
share certificate in case of physical folio for sending the Annual report, Notice of e-AGM and the 
e-voting instructions.

17. 	 Instructions for the Members for attending the e-AGM through Video Conference: 

	 1.	 Members will be provided with a facility to attend the e-AGM through video conferencing platform 
provided by M/s KFin Technologies Private Limited. Members may access the same at https://
emeetings.kfintech.com under shareholders/members login by using the remote e- voting 
credentials. The link for e-AGM will be available in shareholders/members login where the EVENT 
and the name of the company can be selected. Please note that the members who do not have 
the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve 
the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice.

	 2.	 Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops with Google Chrome for better 
experience.

	 3.	 Further Members will be required to allow Camera, if any, and hence use Internet with a good 
speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

	 4.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate 
any kind of aforesaid glitches.

	 5.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may log 
into https://evoting.karvy.com may post their queries/views/questions in the window provided, by 
mentioning the name, demat account number/ folio number, email id and mobile number. Please 
note that, members questions will be answered only, if he continues to hold the shares as on cut 
off date. i.e. 26.08.2020.

	 6.	 Due to limitations of transmission and coordination during the Q&A session, the Company may 
dispense with the speaker registration during the e-AGM conference.

	

18. 	 Instructions for members for e-Voting during the e-AGM session:  

	 1.	 Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the e-AGM through Video Conference 
facility and have not cast their vote through remote e-Voting are eligible to vote through e-Voting 
in the e-AGM.

	 2.	 However, members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the e-AGM.

19.	 Voting through electronic means	

	 In compliance with provisions of Section108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to provide all its members’ 
facility to exercise their right to vote at the 29th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic  
means.

	 The voting through electronic means will commence on 29.08.2020 at 10.00 AM and will end on 
01.09.2020 at 5.00 PM. The procedure and instructions for e-voting are as follows:

	 (a)	 Open your web browser during the voting period and navigate to “https://evoting.karvy.com”
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User - ID - For Members holding shares in Demat Form:
  a) For NSDL- 8 character DPID followed by 8 digit Client ID
  b) For CDSL- 16 digit beneficiary ID

- For Members holding shares in Physical Form:
  Electronic Voting Event Number (EVEN) followed by Folio no. 
  registered with the Company

Password Your Unique password is printed on the e-AGM Notice forwarded through the 
electronic notice via email.

Captcha Enter the Verification code i.e. please enter the alphabets and numbers in the 
exact way as they are displayed for security reasons.

	 (b)	 Enter the login credentials (i.e. user-id & password) mentioned on the e-notice/ covering letter. 
Your Folio/ DP -Client ID will be your User-ID

	 (c)	 Please contact on toll free no.18003454001 / 040-67161527 for any further clarification/ technical 
glitches.

	 (d)	 Members whose name appear in the register of members/ beneficial owners as on cut-off date 
i.e. 26.08.2020, can cast their vote on-line from 10.00 AM on 29.08.2020 and up to 5.00 PM on 
01.09.2020.

	 (e)	 After entering the Login credentials indicated above, appropriately, click on “LOGIN”.

	 (f)	 Members holding shares in Demat/ Physical form will now reach Password Change Menu 
wherein they are required to mandatorily change their login password in the new password field. 
The new password has to be minimum eight characters, consisting of at least one upper case 
(A-Z), one lower case (a-z) one numeric value (0-9) and a special character (#, $, &..). Kindly 
note that this password can be used by the Demat holders for voting for resolution of any other 
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through KFin. 
Technologies Pvt. Limited e-voting platform. System will prompt you to change your password 
and update any contact details like mobile number, email ID etc. on 1st login. You may also enter 
the Secret Question and answer of your choice to retrieve your password in case you forget it. It 
is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 
to keep your password confidential.

	 (g)	 You need to login again with the new credentials.

	 (h)	 On successful login, system will prompt to select ‘Event’ i.e. ‘Company Name’.

	 (i)	 If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to “https://evoting.karvy.com” and cast 
your vote earlier for any company, then your existing login id and password are to be used.

	 (j)	 On the voting page, you will see Resolution Description and against the same the option ‘FOR / 
AGAINST/ ABSTAIN’ for voting. Enter the number of shares (which represents number of votes) 
under ‘FOR/ AGAINST/ ABSTAIN’ or alternatively you may partially enter any number in ‘FOR’ 
and partially in ‘AGAINST’, but the total number in “FOR/ AGAINST” taken together should not 
exceed your total shareholding. If the shareholder does not want to cast vote, select “ABSTAIN”.

	 (k)	 After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box 
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

	 (l)	 Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
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	 (m)	 Corporate/Institution Members (Corporate/FIs/FIIs/Trusts/Mutual Funds/Banks, etc) are required 
to send scanned (PDF format) of the relevant Board resolution to the Scrutinizer through e-mail 
to investorservices@dcmsr.com with copy to evoting@karvy.com. The file scanned image of the 
Board Resolution should be in the naming format “Corporate Name - Event no.”

	 (n)	 Shri Swaran Kumar Jain (C.P.No.4906), Practicing Company Secretary, has been appointed as 
the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

20.	 The Scrutinizer shall immediately after conclusion of the e-AGM, unblock the votes cast through remote 
e-voting in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses, not in the employment of the Company and 
make, not later than 2 days of conclusion of the meeting, the Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast 
in favour or against, if any, and submit the Report to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in 
writing, who shall counter-sign the report and declare the results forthwith.

21.	 The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website 
“https://www.dcmsr.com” and on the website of KFin Technologies Pvt. Ltd. immediately.

22.	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” by allowing 
paperless compliances by companies through electronic mode. We propose to send all future 
communications in electronic mode to the email address provided by you. Members who have not 
registered their email IDs are requested to intimate their email ID to the Company’s Registrars, viz. 
KFin. Technologies Pvt. Ltd. (Email ID:einward.ris@karvy.com) or their depository participants.

23.	 KPRISM – Mobile Service application by KFin Technologies Pvt. Ltd:

	 Members are requested to note that, Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, M/s. KFin Technologies Pvt. 
Limited have launched a new mobile application – KPRISM and website https://kprism.karvy.com for 
online service to shareholders.

	 Members can download the mobile application, register yourself (onetime) for availing host of services 
viz., consolidated portfolio view serviced by KFin Technologies, Dividends status and send requests for 
change of address, change/ update Bank Mandate. Through the mobile app, members can download 
Annual reports, standard forms and keep track of upcoming General Meetings, IPO allotment status 
and dividend disbursements. The mobile application is available for download from Android Play Store. 
Alternatively visit the link https://kprism.karvy.com/app/ to download the mobile application.

24.	 Profile of the Director retiring by rotation:  Shri Madhav B. Shriram, was reappointed on the Board 
as a Director liable to retire by rotation at the AGM held on 22.08.2017. Shri Madhav B. Shriram, 
aged 55 years, has 32 years of experience in various management positions. He has done his 
graduation from Shriram College of Commerce, and MBA from University of Massachusetts, Amherst, 
USA. He is presently the Managing Director of the Company and is looking after the Chemicals  
Division.

	 Shri Madhav B. Shriram holds 66 equity shares of Rs.10 each in the Company.

	 Shri Madhav B. Shriram is a past Chairman of CII, Delhi State. He is not a director on the Board of any 
other listed company.

	 Shri Madhav B. Shriram, being eligible, offers himself for reappointment as a Director liable to retire by 
rotation in terms of Section 152(6)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013. He has confirmed that he has not 
been disqualified u/s 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, to be appointed or to hold an office of director 
in a company. As required under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, he has further confirmed that he 
has not been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or from continuing to act as Director of 
companies by any statutory authorities.

	 Considering his contribution to the growth of the Company, the Directors recommend the resolution.

	 He is related to Shri Alok B. Shriram, Sr. Managing Director. No other directors or key managerial 
personnel of the Company or their relative(s) is interested financially or otherwise in the resolution.
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Annexure 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 
102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

Item No.4

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 27.06.2020 appointed M/s. Ramanath Iyer & Co., Cost 
Auditors, 808, Pearls Business Park, Netaji Subhash Place, Delhi – 110034 as Cost Auditors of the 
Company for the year 2020-21 at a remuneration of Rs.1.46 lakh plus GST and out of pocket expense 
as may be applicable, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, pursuant to Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

The above remuneration to the Cost Auditors, fixed by the Board for the financial year 2020-21, is for 
ratification and confirmation by the shareholders as required under Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit & 
Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No.4. 

Item No.5

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 27.06.2020 co-opted Shri Manoj Kumar (DIN: 00072634) as 
an Additional Director pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 81 of the Articles of 
Association of the Company, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee. As 
per the said Section, Shri Manoj Kumar will hold office till the ensuing e-AGM. It is proposed to appoint Shri 
Manoj Kumar as a Director liable to retire by rotation as per Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, on 
the Board. Brief particulars of Shri Manoj Kumar are given below:

ACADEMICS

	 •	 IIM Ahmedabad		         		  SMEP Certification (Residential)     		 1987

	 •	 Hindu College, Delhi University	      	 Bachelors of Commerce (Hons)      		 1987

	 •	 Modern School, New Delhi		   	        			               	 1984

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

	 •	 Heading the Family Business of Textile Trading of Cotton Fabrics

	 •	 Trustee of Hindu College, Delhi University

	 •	 Trustee of Lady Shri Ram College, Delhi University

	 •	 Member of Rotary Club of Delhi Midtown

	 •	 Trustee of Rtn. Naqshband Institute for Physically Challenged.

OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS

	 •	 Spicejet Limited 				   Director 		

	 •	 Select World Tours (India) Pvt. Ltd. 	 Director 		

	 •	 M.R. Ramchand & Co. Pvt. Ltd.		  Director		

	 •	 Raghushree Sales Pvt. Ltd.		  Director 		

	 •	 B H P C Clothing Pvt. Ltd.			  Director

Shri Manoj Kumar belongs to a reputed business family of Delhi. He is not holding any shares in the 
Company. The Board of Directors considers that the Company will benefit from his long and varied business 
experience and accordingly recommend the resolution for approval. 
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Shri Manoj Kumar has confirmed to the Board that he has not been disqualified u/s 164(2) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to be appointed or to hold an office of director in a company. As required under SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015, he has further confirmed that he has not been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or from continuing to act as Director of companies by any statutory authorities.

Except Shri Manoj Kumar, being the appointee, none of the other directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company or their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set 
out at Item No.5.

Item No.6 & 7

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 29.10.2019, on the recommendation of the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee, appointed Shri Nalin Kumar Jain (Shri N.K. Jain), who was the Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company, as a director on the Board in the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of 
Shri Narayan Rao Karnam (Shri K.N. Rao) effective from 01.11.2019 pursuant to Section 152(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Shri N.K. Jain will hold office for the period Shri K.N. Rao would have held office had 
he continued as a Director liable to retire by rotation. His appointment in the casual vacancy is subject to 
approval by the shareholders in the ensuing AGM as required under the said Section.

Shri N.K. Jain has confirmed to the Board that he has not been disqualified u/s 164(2) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to be appointed or to hold an office of director in a company. As required under SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015, he has further confirmed that he has not been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or from continuing to act as Director of companies by any statutory authorities.

Continuing the practice of elevating a person from senior management position to the Board level as Whole 
Time Director, the Board in the said meeting appointed Shri N.K. Jain as  Director Finance & Chief Financial 
Officer effective from 01.11.2019 to hold office till 30.06.2021, when he would be attaining the age of  
70 years.

Shri N.K. Jain, aged 69 years, is a Chartered Accountant, with 44 years experience in the Group, most part 
being in the Company, has been carrying out his responsibilities in a highly professional manner. As CFO, 
he had overseen the implementation of Ind-AS, the new Accounting Standards and also ensured that proper 
Internal Financial Control Systems are in place and working well.

The terms and conditions of the appointment, which are subject to the approval of the shareholders, are as 
under:

Particulars
Salary (Rs./pm)  2,40,000

Annual reward Not exceeding 50% of his annual salary as may 
be decided by the Board. For part of the year, 
the reward will be calculated on proportionate 
basis. 

Housing Company maintained leased accommodation 
(maintenance means normal routine upkeep 
and maintenance but shall not include structural 
changes)

Gas, Water, Electricity, Furniture, Furnishings and 
maintenance thereof

Actual

Attendant & servant at Residence Reimbursement of wages of an attendant and a 
servant.

Medical expenses Reimbursement of actual medical expenses 
incurred for self and family. (Family as defined in 
Company’s Medical Facilities to Officers’ Scheme.)  
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Particulars
P.A. Insurance As per Company Rules.
Leave, Leave Encashment, LTA, PF, Gratuity & Superannuation As per Company Rules
Club Fees (Admission/ life membership fee not allowed) Fees of clubs subject to a maximum of 2 Clubs
Other Directorships Nil
Shareholding in the Company (Equity/Rs.10 each) One

Other Terms Applicable to the Appointment

1.		 Salary, perquisites and reward together to Shri N K Jain shall not exceed 5% of the net profit computed 
in the manner laid down  in Section  198 read with Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013  and the 
aggregate remuneration to all managerial personnel shall not exceed 10% of the Net Profit arrived at 
as per the said Sections.

2. 	 He will also be entitled for Company maintained chauffeur driven car, communication facilities and 
reimbursement of entertainment expenses actually and properly incurred in the course of legitimate 
business of the Company. These will not be considered as perquisites for the purpose of ceilings on 
remuneration under the Companies Act.

3. 	 Remuneration for part of the year will be computed on pro-rata basis.

4.  	 The appointment is with continuity of service as an officer for the purpose of computing terminal benefits. 

5. 		 In  the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in  any financial year he will be paid the  above  
remuneration, subject to the ceiling provided in Part II Section II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 
2013. (In such an event contributions to Provident Fund & Superannuation Fund,  to the extent these 
are exempt under the Income-tax Act, 1961 and gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month’s 
salary for each completed year of service and encashment of leave at the end of tenure will not be 
included for computing the ceiling  on remuneration).

6.  	 The appointment may be terminated by either party giving to the other three calendar months’ notice in 
writing or lesser notice as may be agreed to. In the event of termination of appointment by the Company, 
the managerial personnel shall be entitled to compensation in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act.

	 Shri N.K. Jain has confirmed to the Board that he has not been disqualified u/s 164(2) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to be appointed or to hold an office of director in a company. As required under SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015, he has further confirmed that he has not been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or from continuing to act as Director of companies by any statutory authorities.    

	 Considering the contributions of Shri N.K. Jain to the performance of the Company, the Directors 
recommend the Resolution for your approval. 

Except Shri N.K. Jain, being the appointee, none of the other directors and Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company or their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out 
at Item No.6 & 7.

Item No.8 & 9

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 13.08.2019, on the recommendation of the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee, appointed Smt. Urvashi Tilak Dhar on the Board in the casual vacancy caused 
by the demitting of office by Shri Alok B. Shriram, on his elevation as Sr. Managing Director, effective from 
14.08.2019 pursuant to Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. Smt. Urvashi Tilak Dhar will hold office 
for the period Shri Alok. B. Shriram would have held office had he continued as a Director liable to retire by 
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rotation. Her appointment in the casual vacancy is subject to approval by the shareholders in the ensuing 
AGM as required under the said Section. 

Smt. Urvashi Tilak Dhar, 64 years of age, had done her Post Graduation in Sociology from Jawaharlal Nehru 
University. She has been actively involved in the cultural and social activities of the Company as wife of Late 
Shri Tilak Dhar, who was the Sr. Managing Director. She is familiar with the Company’s affairs. Smt. Urvashi 
Tilak Dhar has long experience in market research. She is also involved in promoting social causes. She has 
been on the Board of promoter group companies and is fully familiar with the responsibilities and liabilities 
of a director. She has widely travelled in India and abroad and also visited Company’s Plants several times 
and has good rapport with Senior Executives.    

The terms and conditions of the appointment, which are subject to the approval of the shareholders, are as under:

Particulars
Salary (Rs./pm)  5,50,000
Commission on profits As may be decided by the Board from year to year, 

provided that the total remuneration i.e. salary, 
perquisites and commission, shall not exceed 2.5% of 
the Net Profit of the Company computed in the manner 
laid down u/s 198 of the Companies Act, in a particular 
year, subject to the overall limit of remuneration u/s 197 
of the said Act, or any amendments thereto or any other 
applicable regulations for all managerial personnel. 

Housing Company maintained accommodation or House Rent 
Allowance @ 50% of the salary as may be opted for.

Gas, Water, Electricity, Furniture, Furnishings 
and house maintenance.

Actual

Medical expenses Reimbursement of actual medical expenses incurred for 
self and family.   

P.A. Insurance As per Company Rules applicable to officers.

Leave and LTA For self and family as per Company Rules. Privilege 
leave not availed to be encashed at the time of cessation 
of service. 

Club Fees (Admission/ life membership fee not 
allowed)

Fees of clubs subject to a maximum of 2 Clubs.

PF, Superannuation, Gratuity As per Company Rules
Other Directorships Nil
Shareholding in the Company (Equity/Rs.10 
each)

12337

Other Terms Applicable to the appointment

1.		 Salary, perquisites and commission together to Smt. Urvashi Tilak Dhar shall not exceed 2.5% of the 
net profit computed in the manner laid down  in Section  198 read with Section 197 of the Companies 
Act, 2013  and the aggregate remuneration to all managerial personnel shall not exceed 10% of the Net 
Profit arrived at as per the said Sections.

2. 	 The managerial personnel will also be entitled for Company maintained chauffeur driven car, 
communication facilities, and reimbursement of entertainment expenses actually and properly incurred 
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in the course of legitimate business of the Company. These will not be considered as perquisites for the 
purpose of ceilings on remuneration under the Companies Act.

3.  	 Remuneration including commission for part of the year will be computed on pro-rata basis.

4.	 In  the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in  any financial year the managerial personnel will 
be paid the  above  remuneration (excluding commission), subject to the overall ceilings provided in 
Part II Section II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 or such higher amount subject to such 
approvals as may be required as minimum remuneration. (In that event contributions to Provident 
Fund & Superannuation Fund,  to the extent these are exempt under the Income-tax Act, 1961 and 
gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month’s salary for each completed year of service and 
encashment of leave at the end of tenure will not be included for computing the ceiling  on remuneration).

5. 	 The appointment may be terminated by either party, giving to the other, six calendar months’ notice in 
writing or lesser notice as may be agreed to. In the event of termination of appointment by the Company, 
the managerial personnel shall be entitled to compensation in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act.

	 Smt. Urvashi Tilak Dhar has confirmed to the Board that she has not been disqualified u/s 164(2) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to be appointed or to hold an office of director in a company. As required 
under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, she has further confirmed that she has not been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or from continuing to act as Director of companies by any statutory 
authorities.    

Except Smt. Urvashi Tilak Dhar, being the appointee, none of the other directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 
resolution set out at Items Nos. 8 & 9. 

Item No.10

Since the incorporation of the Company on 21.02.1989, the Company’s Articles of Association have not 
been substantially altered. Many of the provisions contained in the Articles are not in consonance with the 
current provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and your directors consider it desirable to replace the existing 
Articles by adopting a new set of Articles of Association, which would not only be in conformity with the 
provisions of the Act and also incorporate provisions introduced in the Act since the Articles were framed in 
1989 such as nomination of legal heir by members as per Section 72 of the Act, Company meetings through 
Video Conference, buy back of shares, issue of shares with differential rights, sweat equity, etc. 

A gist of the important changes is given below:

S. 
No.

Proposed 
Article

Provision Relevant Section of the  
Companies Act, 2013

Remarks

1 3(2) Kinds of Share Capital Section 43
The Company may issue the following 
kinds of shares in accordance with 
these Articles, the Act, the Rules and 
other applicable laws:
i)	 Equity share capital:
a)	 with voting rights; and /or
b)	 with differential rights as to 

dividend, voting or otherwise 
in accordance with the Act and 
Rules; and

ii)	 Preference share capital

Enabling 
Provision.



15

S. 
No.

Proposed 
Article

Provision Relevant Section of the  
Companies Act, 2013

Remarks

2 3(10) Nomination by shareholders Section 72 New Article.
It is proposed to 
make a provision 
in the Articles 
to provide for 
nomination of 
legal heir/s by 
shareholder/s as 
allowed by the Act 

3 3(24) Buy-back of shares: 

Company may buy-back its shares.

Section 68 of the Companies Act 
and SEBI (Buy Back of Securities) 
Regulations, 2018.

New Article.  
Enabling provision. 
It is mandatory to 
have a provision in 
the Articles in case 
a Company wants to 
buy-back its shares.

4 3(25) Sweat Equity. Section 54. Enabling provision. 
In line with present 
business trends. 

5 3(26) Employees Stock Option Scheme Listing Regulation and Rule 12 
of Companies (Share Capital 
Debentures) Rules, 2014.  

Enabling provision. 
In line with present 
business trends.  

6 10(13) Chairman Emeritus In line with present Business trend  Enabling provision
7 14(4) Nominee Director/s Loan Agreements Revised the Clause 

to make it more 
relevant in line 
with the present 
business trends. 

8 15 Managing Director. Section 203 of the Companies Act/ 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

Propose to add a 
provision enabling 
the Board to 
combine the office 
of Chairman and 
MD, if permitted 
under the Act/ 
Listing Regulations.

9 16(2) Participation in BoD Meeting through 
video conferencing 

Section 173 of the Companies Act. Provision in line 
with the new 
business trends. 

10 18 Management Section 203 of the Companies Act Under the 
Companies Act, 
1956 appointment 
of CS only was 
mandatory for 
certain companies. 
Under the new 
Companies Act, 
apart from CS,
CEO and CFO are 
also mandatory for 
such companies. 
Therefore, 
consequential 
change is proposed.  
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S. 
No.

Proposed 
Article

Provision Relevant Section of the  
Companies Act, 2013

Remarks

PROCEEDING OF THE BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS (Existing 
Provision)

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS 
(Proposed Article 16) 

11 16 The Directors may meet together as 
a Board for the dispatch of business 
from time to time and shall so meet 
at least once in every three calendar 
months, and the Board may adjourn 
and otherwise regulate its meetings 
and proceedings as it may think fit.
Subject to Section 287 of the act, the 
quorum for a meeting of the Board 
shall be one third of its total strength 
(excluding Directors if any, whose 
places may be vacant at the time 
and any fraction contained in the one 
third being rounded off as one), or 
two Directors, whichever is higher, 
provided that where at any time the
number of interested Directors 
exceeds or is equal to two third of 
the total strength, the number of 
Directors who are not interested, and 
present at the meeting, being not 
less than two, shall be the quorum 
for such time.
If at a meeting of the Board, a quorum 
shall not be present then the meeting 
shall stand adjourned to such day, 
time and place as the Chairman and 
in his absence, the Vice Chairman 
and failing both of them, the Director 
or Directors present at the meeting 
may fix.
A Director may, and the Manager 
or Secretary on the requisition of a 
Director shall, at any time, summon 
a meeting of the Board
Questions arising at any meeting 
of the Board shall be decided by a 
majority of votes, provided that such 
majority shall in any and all cases 
include affirmative vote of at least 
one ‘A group’ director, and in case of 
an equality of votes, the chairman of 
the meeting shall have a second or 
casting vote.
Subject to the provisions of the Act 
and the restrictions contained in 
Section 292 of the Act and Articles, 
the Board may from time to time, 

1.	 Meeting of Directors
	 The Directors may meet together 

as a Board for the dispatch of 
business from time to time, and 
shall hold at least four such 
meetings every year in such 
manner that not more than 
one hundred twenty days shall 
intervene between two consecutive 
meetings. The Directors may 
adjourn and otherwise regulate 
their meetings as they think fit.

	 The Chairperson or any one 
Director may, or the company 
secretary on the requisition of a 
Director shall on the direction of 
Chairperson or the Whole-time 
Director, at any time, summon a 
meeting of the Board.

2.	 Participation through Electronic 
Mode

	 The participation of Directors in 
a meeting of the Board may be 
either in person or through Video 
Conferencing or Other Audio 
Visual Means or any other mode, 
as may be prescribed by the Act or 
Rules.

3.	 Quorum
	 The quorum for a meeting of the 

Board shall be as provided in the 
Act. If a meeting of the Board could 
not be held for want of quorum, then 
the meeting shall automatically 
stand adjourned to such other date 
and time (if any) as may be fixed by 
the Chairman not  being later than 
seven days from the date originally 
fixed for the meeting.

4.	 Decisions at Board meetings
	 Save as otherwise expressly 

provided in the Act, questions 
arising at meetings of the Board of 
Directors or a Committee thereof 
shall be decided by a majority of 
the votes, provided 	 t h a t 
such majority shall in any and all 
cases include affirmative vote of at 
least one ‘ A Group’. In case of an 
equality of votes, the chairperson 
of the Board shall have a second 
or casting vote.

5.	 Directors may appoint Committees
	 Subject to the compliance of the 

applicable provisions of the Act, 
Rules made thereunder and these

Updated/ re-
arranged to be 
in line with the 
requirements of 
the provisions in 
the Companies 
Act, 2013 
provided for 
holding meetings 
through video 
conferencing. 
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S. 
No.

Proposed 
Article

Provision Relevant Section of the  
Companies Act, 2013

Remarks

and at any time delegate any of its 
powers to a committee(s) consisting 
of such Director or Directors as it 
think fit, provided that so long us “A 
group” is member of the Company, 
all Committees so appointed shall 
unless otherwise agreed to by “A 
group” have at least one Director 
designated in this behalf by ‘A group’ 
as their member and it may from 
time to time revoke and discharge 
any such Committee of the Board 
either wholly or in part and either as 
to persons or purposes but every 
committee of the Board so formed 
shall in the exercise of the power 
conform to any Regulation that may 
from time to time be imposed on it 
by the Board. All the matters at any 
meeting of a Committee(s) shall 
be decided by a majority of Boards 
provided that such majority shall in 
any and all cases include affirmative 
vote of the Director designated by 
“A group” on such Committee(s). All 
acts done by any such Committee 
of the Board in conformity with such 
regulations and in fulfilment of the 
purpose of their appointment but not 
otherwise shall have the like force 
and effect as if done by the Board:
The meetings and proceedings of any 
such committee of the Board shall be 
governed by the provisions herein 
contained for regulating the meetings 
and proceedings of the Board so far 
as the same are applicable thereto 
and are not superseded by any 
regulations made by the Board under 
these Articles.

	 Articles,  the Board may, delegate 
any of their powers to a committee 
or committees of the Board 
consisting of such members of its 
body, as it thinks fit, provided that 
so long as “A Group” is member of 
the Company, all Committees so 
appointed shall unless otherwise 
agreed  to by ‘A Group’ or required 
by law, have at least one Director 
designated in this behalf by ‘A 
Group’ as member. The Board, 
from time to time, may revoke and 
discharge any such committee 
either wholly or in part and either 
as to person or purposes, but 
every committee of the Board so 
formed shall in the exercise of the 
powers so delegated conform to 
any regulations that may from time 
to time be imposed on it by the 
Board. Subject to the requirements 
of applicable laws, all acts done by 
any such committee of the Board 
in conformity with such regulations 
shall have the like force and effect 
as if done by the Board.

6.	 Meetings of Committees
	 The meetings and proceedings of 

any such committee of the Board 
consisting of two or more Members 
shall be governed by the provisions 
herein contained for regulating the 
meetings and proceedings of the 
Directors so far as the same are 
applicable thereto.

	 A committee may meet and adjourn 
as it thinks fit. Questions arising at 
any meeting of a committee shall 
be determined by a majority of 
votes of the members present and 
in case of an equality of votes, the 
chairperson of the Committee shall 
have a casting vote. 

7.	 Resolution by circulation
	 Save as otherwise expressly 

provided in the Act, a resolution in 
writing, signed, whether manually

	 or by secure electronic mode, 
by majority of the members of 
the Board or of a Committee 
thereof, for the time being entitled 
to receive notice of a meeting of 
the Board or Committee, shall be 
valid and effective as if it had been 
passed at a meeting of the Board 
or Committee, duly convened and 
held.
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S. 
No.

Proposed 
Article

Provision Relevant Section of the  
Companies Act, 2013

Remarks

8.	 Acts of Board or Committee 
valid notwithstanding defect in 
appointment

	 All acts done by any meeting of 
the Board or by a committee of the 
Board,  or by any person acting as a 
Director shall, notwithstanding that 
it shall afterwards be discovered 
that there was some defect in the 
appointment or continuance in the 
office, of such Directors or persons 
acting as aforesaid, or that they 
or any of them were disqualified 
or had vacated office or that the 
appointment of any of them had 
been terminated by virtue of any 
provisions contained in the Act or 
in these Articles, be as valid as if 
every such person had been duly 
appointed or had duly continued 
in office, and was qualified to be 
a Director and had not vacated 
his office or his appointment had 
not been terminated; provided 
that nothing in this Article shall be 
deemed to give validity to acts done 
by a Director after his appointment 
has been shown to the Company 
to be invalid or to have terminated.

A copy of the draft Articles of Association can be accessed through the link http://dcmsr.com/other_files/
YR6/Annual%20Report/draft_Articles.pdf

A copy is also available on the Company’s website.

The directors consider the substitution of the Articles of Association as proposed is important and unavoidable 
for the smooth functioning of the Company and accordingly recommend the Resolution.

None of the directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No.10

Interest

Except as indicated under the respective items, none of the directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their 
relative(s) is concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the Resolutions.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements of your 
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2020 together with the Reports of the Auditors and the Board thereon.

Covid-19
In March 2020 the World Health Organization declared Covid-19 to be a pandemic.  It developed rapidly into 
a global crisis, forcing Governments to enforce lockdowns of all economic activities.  Consequent to this, 
the Government of India declared a national lockdown on March 24, 2020 to prevent the spread of the virus.  
This unavoidable step has caused a severe blow to the economy.  For the Company the focus immediately 
shifted to ensuring the health and well-being of all employees, and on minimizing disruption in our operations 
and commitments to the customers.    

On the economic front, things were not fine even before this crisis.  The Indian Economy was in a slippery 
slope well before March 24, 2020, when the lockdown was enforced.  India’s Gross Domestic Growth (GDP) 
crashed to 11 year low of 4.2% in 2019-20 and 3.1% in the January-March, 2020 quarter amid a drop in 
consumption and investment.  In the corresponding quarter of 2018-19 it was 5.7% while during 2018-19 the 
GDP growth was 6.1%.  

Further, the uncertainty created by the disruption in business activities world-over is a cause for concern 
for every sector and the impacts cannot be estimated at this stage.  Even developed countries like US and 
European countries, which have been severely impacted by Covid-19, are in the grip of recessionary trends.  
This will adversely affect the global business scenario, particularly import and export.  Loss of jobs and 
spiraling unemployment are going to have cascading effect on every sphere of the economy. 

Your Directors are happy to inform that in spite of the adversities posed by the pandemic, the impact on 
the Company’s operations has not been material as the Sugar and Chemical operations continued without 
disruption.  The Rayon and Liquor bottling operations had to be suspended for a few weeks in compliance with 
the Government guidelines but have since been resumed.  The overall economic situation being uncertain 
due to Covid-19, it may impact the operations of the Company in the current year.  The Company would 
closely monitor such developments in economic conditions and consider their impact on its performance in 
the coming months.

Financial Summary
The Company achieved a turnover of Rs.1818 cr. against Rs.1707 cr. in the previous year.  The gross profit 
at Rs. 123.83 cr. against Rs.111.19 cr. in the previous year is higher by 11 %.  The net profit was Rs. 95.96 cr. 
compared to Rs.73.58 cr. in the previous year, an increase of 13 %. 

Appropriation and Dividend

The Board of Directors had declared an interim dividend of Rs.5.00 (50%) per equity share of Rs.10 for the 
year 2019-20 in the Board Meeting held on 10.02.2020 and the same has been paid to the shareholders 
within the stipulated time.  

Considering the fluid business prospects and the need to preserve resources for meeting future commitments, 
the Board did not recommend any final dividend for the year 2019-20. 

The closing balance of the retained earnings of the Company, after accounting for the  dividend for the year 
2018-19 and the interim dividend for the year 2019-20, amounting to Rs. 341.16 Cr. was carried forward in 
the P & L Account which include the net profit of Rs. 95.96 Cr. of the year under review.

Auditors' Report
There are no qualifications, reservation, or adverse remarks or disclaimer in the Auditors’ Reports to the 
Members on the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020.  

The Auditors have not reported any fraud pursuant to Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Secretarial Audit Report 
M/s. Chandrasekaran Associates, Company Secretaries, carried out the Secretarial Audit for the year 2019-
20 pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. A copy of their Report in Form MR-3 as per Rule 
9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed as 
Annexure – 1.  There is no qualification in the Report.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

THE STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS  

Sugar  
During the year, Daurala Sugar Works (DSW) produced 2.23 Lakh MT of sugar by crushing 20.15 Lakh MT of 
cane as against 2.25 Lakh MT of sugar by crushing 19.93 Lakh MT in the previous year. The sugar production was 
lower due to diversion of more sugar towards `B’ heavy molasses to enable higher Anhydrous Alcohol production.  
The sugar recovery considering `C’ heavy molasses production was better by 0.1% over last year. This was the 
result of continued efforts made by factory along with farmers to propagate high sucrose varieties in our area. 

Supply of power to the grid and Sale of Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs) was as planned. The Unit co-
generated 19.23 Crore Kwh of power in the year 2019-20  against 18.80 Crore Kwh of power in the year 2018-19. 

Sugar prices during the financial year 2019-20 remained range bound between Rs. 3150 to 3300 per qtl. 
Government has been supporting the sugar prices using release mechanism. The Domestic sugar production 
for the Sugar Season 2019-20 is estimated at around 27.0 Million MT. Due to countrywide lockdown 
announced by the Government the summer demand is lower by 1 - 2 Million MT and is expected to be  25 
Million MT or lower. 

To provide some relief and liquidity to the sugar industry, the Government has taken following steps:   

	 –	 Announced export of 6 Million MT of sugar under Maximum Admissible Export Quantity (MAEQ) 
Scheme for Sugar Season 2019-20. Support of Rs. 10,448 per MT against MAEQ announced.

	 –	 Fixed higher prices for Anhydrous Alcohol produced from `B’ Heavy Molasses and Cane Juice.

	 –	 Creation of higher buffer stock quantity of 4 Million MT (Last Season 3 Million MT).

	 –	 Maintained support price for free sale sugar at Rs. 3100 per qtl.  

International white sugar prices remained range bound around US$350 per MT because production in Brazil 
as well as expected global deficit to 6-7 Million MT for Sugar Season 2019-20. However, due to countrywide 
lockdown and labour shortage at ports, 5 Million MT of exports are expected against target of 6 Million MT 
fixed by the Government for Sugar Season 2019-20. 

Alcohol operations continued to show steady growth during the financial year 2019-20. DSW produced 21,547 
KL of alcohol which was highest in the last decade. This was achieved because of continued efforts made to 
improve productivity and optimum operation of new Multi Pressure Distillation Plant installed last year. DSW 
has augmented its Anhydrous Alcohol Capacity by installing a new 40 KLPD plant. This will enable DSW to 
produce higher Anhydrous Alcohol from `B’ Heavy Molasses, which will improve its bottom line.

During the year, the Company has installed and commissioned a Concentration & Incineration Plant. 
This will allow the distillery to operate uninterrupted during monsoon period i.e. from July – September 
every year. Permission to operate for 350 days in a year has been received. DSW is maximizing Absolute 
Alcohol production and plans to process higher B Heavy Molasses from next year onwards. Concentration 
& Incineration Plant has also helped to generate additional power and achieve Zero Liquid Discharge norm 
while treating distillery effluent more scientifically and environment friendly manner.     

The Oil Marketing Companies (OMCs) have announced better prices for Anhydrous Alcohol produced from 
`B’ heavy molasses and cane juice. DSW has diverted more sugar towards ‘B’ heavy Molasses and has 
tied-up to supply 8530 KL from B heavy molasses to OMCs. 

Bottling operations have shown marked improvement with contract bottling volumes increasing by 40% over 
last year. 

DSW continued to show improvement in operating parameters and operational efficiency. DSW has 
successfully tackled high sugar inventory by tying-up its sugar for export under MAEQ Scheme announced 
by the Government and diverting more sugar towards ‘B’ heavy Molasses. DSW requested and sold 
additional sugar under MAEQ. 

Daurala Sugar Works is proud to inform the addition of a new product Hand Sanitizer under the brand “DAURALA 
CARES” in its bouquet of Finished Products. The product has been well accepted by the market and Company 
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is confident of having a leading presence in the Indian Market in the coming years. To achieve this objective, 
discussions are being held with big players and the listing of our product on online selling portals is planned. 

DSW has been at the forefront in the fight against Global Pandemic Covid-19. In   addition to monetary 
contributions made to the Central and State Governments, DSW has supplied hand sanitizer free of cost to 
Government Departments and hospitals.

Rayon
Shriram Rayons increased its export sales and turnover, every year, over past three years. However, due 
to recessionary economic conditions and lower automobile production world over coupled with impact 
of Covid-19 pandemic in the last quarter of the financial year, export volume was lower during the year.  
Production was adjusted accordingly.

In spite of lower volumes the Unit was able to maintain operating margins by reducing input costs and 
various other costs during the year.

The Unit is implementing a capacity expansion project including installation of a state-of-the-art dipping unit 
to meet additional market requirement of treated fabric in coming years.

The Unit manufactures Nylon Chafer Fabric which is mainly sold to domestic tyre companies. Besides this 
some volume is also exported.  The Unit was able to maintain the sales in spite of difficult market situation.

With completion of Power House upgradation project, consisting of one agro-fuel boiler and an extraction 
cum condensing turbine, the Unit was able to reduce, both, energy cost and its dependency on grid power.

The Unit already has a One MW Solar Power Plant. Installation of an additional One MW Solar Power Plant 
is in progress.

The Unit continued receiving appreciation and awards from various agencies for improving production, 
productivity and quality systems. 

The Unit upgraded its occupational health and safety management system from OHSAS 18001-2007 to 
ISO-45001-2018.

The Unit kept up its efforts for improving effluent and emission controls by upgrading the facilities.

Chemicals
The buoyancy in the Chemicals Businesses continued because of constraints of production in China due to 
stricter monitoring of environment related matters and other reasons.
The Company’s focus has been on optimizing sales realization by aggressive marketing/ dispatch of products 
with high margin. 
Parallelly, we have been focusing on cost reduction through process improvements resulting in lower energy 
consumption, improved process efficiencies etc.  This has been achieved through in-house R&D and trials.  
Some improved technologies have already been put into operation with good results.
The Company is continuously exploring the manufacture of new products as also debottlenecking capacities 
wherever market opportunities are available. 
Being classified as an Essential Industry, there were no restrictions on the Unit’s operations during the 
lockdown period.  Though initially some difficulty was faced in obtaining inputs and adequate labour, the 
situation has rapidly improved.

Engineering Projects
The Company’s efforts to venture into defense equipment manufacturing is continuing.  The Company has 
received Industrial Licenses for manufacture of Light Bullet Proof Vehicles, Unmanned Aerial Vehicles, Night 
Sights / Vision Equipment  and Communication Equipment.  Company has developed the LBPVs, which 
are presently undergoing testing.  After clearing the tests, the vehicle will be submitted to the user for trials.  
Because of the spread of Covid-19 and the resultant lockdown, there have been delays in the testing.  The user 
has extended the timeline for submission of the prototype in view of the situation.  The Company is hopeful of 
meeting the timeline. The other projects are in different stages of analysis.  The Central Government policies 
of “Atmanirbhar” and “Make in India” are expected to give a fillip to the domestic defense industry. 
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Material changes and commitments
No material changes or commitments have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the 
financial statements relate and the date of this Report, affecting the financial position of the Company. 

Subsidiary/ Associate Companies
The Company has a non-material wholly owned subsidiary, Daurala Foods & Beverages Pvt. Ltd., which is 
not carrying on any operations presently.  DCM Hyundai Limited is an associate company.  The required 
information with regard to the performance and financial position of the subsidiary and associate companies 
are annexed in Form AOC - I as annexure to the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020.  
There has been no change in relationship of subsidiary/ associate companies during the year.

Annual Return
A copy of Form MGT-9, which is an extract of Annual Return for the year 2019-20, is available on the 
Company’s web link: http://dcmsr.com/other_files/YR6/Annual%20Report/mgt9.pdf

BOARD MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS

Meetings of the Board
During the year 2019-20 five Board meetings were held.  The dates of the meetings, attendance, etc., are 
given in the Corporate Governance Report annexed hereto.

Declaration u/s 149(6) of the Act
All the Independent Directors (IDs) have given declarations u/s 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, confirming that they meet 
the criteria of independence as laid down under the said Section/ Regulation.  

The Directors of the Company have also confirmed that they were not disqualified to be appointed as 
Directors as per Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they have not been debarred by SEBI 
or any other statutory authority to hold an office of director in a company. 

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors
Except Shri Sanjay C. Kirloskar who joined the Board in September,2018, other Independent Directors of 
the Company have been on the Board for over 5 years and are fully familiar with its operations.  As such no 
separate familiarization programme was organized during the year for them.  Shri Sanjay C. Kirloskar had 
visited the Company’s Units at Daurala, UP to familiarize himself with the operations. 
The Directors are also kept updated with information on the Company, the industry and developments in 
different segments in which the Company operates, at the Board meetings while reviewing the operations, 
quarterly/annual financial results and considering the budgets.
A familiarization Programme for IDs laid down by the Board has been posted on the Company’s weblink – 
http://www.dcmsr.com/other_files/Familiarization%20Programme%20for%20Independent%20Directors.pdf

Policy on Board Diversity
The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 30.5.2016 had approved a Policy on Board Diversity, laid down by the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) as required under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.  A copy of 
the same has been posted on the Company’s weblink - http://www.dcmsr.com/other_files/Policy-BoardDiversity.pdf

Directors Appointment and Remuneration

Appointment of directors on the Board of the Company is based on the recommendations of the Nomination 
& Remuneration Committee. NRC identifies and recommends to the Board, persons for appointment on 
the Board, after considering the necessary and desirable competencies. NRC also takes into account 
positive attributes like integrity, maturity, judgement, leadership position, time and willingness, financial 
acumen, management experience and knowledge in one or more fields of finance, law, management, sales, 
marketing, administration, research, etc. 

Independent Directors should fulfill the obligations of independence as per the Act and Regulation 25 of the 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 in addition to the general criteria stated above. All the Independent Directors 
of the Company have got themselves enrolled in the Databank of IDs maintained by Indian Institute of 
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Corporate Affairs, an entity under the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.  It is ensured that a person to be appointed 
as director has not suffered any disqualification under the Act or any other law to hold such an office.   

The directors of the Company are paid remuneration as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company, 
the gist of which is given under the heading `Remuneration Policy’ as part of this Report. The details of 
remuneration paid to the directors during the year 2019-20 are given in Form MGT-9 annexed hereto and 
also in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Report.

Changes in Directors or KMP
Shri Tilak Dhar, who was the Sr. Managing Director of the Company passed away on 01.07.2019.  Shri 
Alok B. Shriram, Jt. Managing Director was elevated as Sr. Managing Director & CEO and Shri Madhav 
B. Shriram, Dy. Managing Director was elevated as Managing Director with effect from 14.08.2019.  Upon 
assuming the office of Sr. Managing Director, Shri Alok B. Shriram has become a director not liable to retire 
by rotation as per Articles of Association of the Company. Smt. Urvashi Tilak Dhar (DIN 00294265) was 
inducted to the Board in a casual vacancy and appointed as Whole Time Director w.e.f. 14.08.2019.  Shri 
K.N. Rao had demitted office as Director & CEO (Rayons) on 31.10.2019 on completion of his term.  Shri 
Nalin Kumar Jain (DIN 00203581), who was the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, was appointed in 
the casual vacancy caused by the demitting of office by Shri K.N. Rao.  Shri Nalin Kumar Jain was also 
designated as Director Finance & Chief Financial Officer with effect from 01.11.2019, as per the Company 
policy of elevating a senior management personnel to the Whole-time Director level from time to time.  

With a view to further broad base and strengthen the composition of the Board, the Board in its meeting held on 
27.06.2020 has co-opted Shri Manoj Kumar (DIN: 00072634) as an Additional Director u/s 161 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Shri Manoj Kumar will hold office till the ensuing AGM on 2nd September,2020. A proposal for approval 
to his appointment as a director liable to retire by rotation under Section 152(6) of the Act is being included in the 
notice convening the ensuing AGM. The Directors recommend the resolution for approval of the shareholders. 

All the above changes in the composition of the Board was made on the recommendation of the Nomination 
& Remuneration Committee.  

The shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on 13.08.2019 had approved the reappointment of 
Ms. V. Kavitha Dutt (DIN 00139274), as an Independent Director for another term of 5 years effective from 
02.02.2020. 

Shri Alok B. Shriram who was appointed Sr. Managing Director & CEO in place of Late Shri Tilak Dhar has 
become one of the Key Managerial Personnel effective from 14.08.2019.  There has been no other change 
in the Key Managerial Personnel during the year. 

Annual Evaluation of Board and Directors
As required under the Act and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 evaluation of the performance of the 
Independent Directors, Board as a whole, Executive Directors, the Chairman and the Committees during the 
year 2019-20 was carried out by the Board of Directors based on the criteria laid down by the NRC in the year 
2017, in the meeting held on 27.6.2020 as the meeting scheduled for the purpose on 27.03.2020 had to be 
cancelled because of the lockdown.   A copy of the `criteria for evaluation’ is annexed as Annexure 2 hereto. 

On evaluation, the Board observed that the Board continued to adhere to the highest standards in all areas 
evaluated and the performance was constructive and met the test of objectivity in achieving the goals of the 
Company. The Board appreciated the efforts of the Executive Directors in achieving impressive results in 
the face of adversities. It was also noted that the Committees carried out their functions keeping in view the 
requirements mandated under the Companies Act/ SEBI (LODR) Regulations pursuant to which these were 
constituted effectively. The Board appreciated that the Independent Directors, individually and collectively 
functioned constructively to the best interest of and beneficial to the Company and stakeholders.  The IDs 
adhered to the Code of Independence as per Schedule IV of the Act and to the restriction with regard to 
pecuniary relationship with the Company during the period under evaluation.  The Board also noted that Shri 
S.B. Mathur carried out his functions during the year as Chairman with utmost responsibility, open mind, 
decisiveness and transparency.  
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The IDs in a separate meeting held on 29.05.2020, in place of a meeting for the purpose fixed on 27.03.2020 and 
cancelled because of the lockdown, reviewed and evaluated the performance of non-Independent Directors, 
the Board as a whole, the Board Committees and the performance of the Chairman of the Company taking into 
account the views of Executive Directors, based on the criteria laid down by the NRC during the year 2019-20.  

The IDs also reviewed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company 
management and the Board, which are necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

The performance evaluation by the Board and the Independent Directors did not find any matter requiring 
follow up action.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
As required under Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, your Directors state that:

a)  	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along 
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) 	 the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the Company  at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period;

c)  	 the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) 	 the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

e)  	 the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and  

f) 	 the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Internal Financial Controls
A comprehensive and effective internal financial control system is followed by the Company at all its establishments. 
This is further strengthened by an internal audit process under the overall supervision of the Audit Committee 
of the Board.  The services for the internal audit are outsourced.  Qualified and experienced professionals are 
engaged to ensure effective and independent evaluation of, inter alia, the internal financial controls. 

The Audit Committee lays down the schedule for internal audit.  Internal audit reports are placed before the 
Committee with management comments.  Suggestions are implemented and reported to the Audit Committee. 

Apart from the above, an effective budgeting and monitoring system is also in place.  Budgets are reviewed 
by Audit Committee and approved by the Board.  The operating results are compared and monitored with the 
approved budgets periodically.  An Executive Committee comprising of senior management team meets every 
month, reviews all aspects of operations and chalks out remedial measures and strategies, wherever necessary. 

An effective communication/ reporting system operates between the Units, Divisions  and Corporate Office to 
keep various establishments abreast of regulatory changes and ensure compliances.

Loans, Guarantees and Investments
The particulars of loans given by the Company are given in Note no.15 of the Standalone Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020.  

The Company has not made any investment or provided any guarantee covered u/s 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, during the year except surplus funds placed in liquid funds of Mutual funds on short term basis.

Related Party Transactions 
There has been no materially significant related party transaction between the Company and the Directors, 
Key Management Personnel, the subsidiary or the relatives except for those disclosed in the financial 
statements – Note No.45 of Notes to Accounts, which are at arm’s length basis and not material.  Accordingly, 
Form AOC -2 does not form part of this Report. 
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The Board had framed a Policy on Related Party Transactions and placed the same on the Company’s 
weblink:  http://www.dcmsr.com/other_files/related%20party%20trx%20policy.pdf.

CSR Activities
Pursuant to Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014, a report in the prescribed proforma is annexed – Annexure 3.  The Company was required to spend 
Rs.204.74 lakh being 2% of the average net profits of the preceding 3 years. The Company spent Rs.170.64 
lakh till 31.03.2020.  The balance of Rs. 34.10 Lakh, most of which was committed before 31.03.2020, was 
spent in the subsequent months because of the lockdown.

Risk Management 
The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 30.01.2006 undertook a comprehensive review of the risk 
assessment and minimization procedures/ policies followed by the Company at its various operations.  While 
taking note of the same, the Board laid down that a half yearly status report of the risk assessment and steps 
taken to minimize the risks be placed before the Board.  Such a report in respect of all the operations of the 
Company is regularly placed before the Board and suggestions, if any, are implemented.  

In view of the diversified business, there are no significant elements of risk, which in the opinion of the Board 
may threaten the existence of the Company.  

The Board of Directors while reviewing the existing risk assessment procedures, laid down a Risk 
Management Policy as required under Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Public Deposits
Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.
														              (Rs./lakh)

	 i)	 Accepted during the year				    :    			   105.00 

	 ii)	 Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the	 : 			   32.06 
      		  end of the year 

	 iii)	 Whether there has been any default in			           
		  repayment of deposits or payment of interest		
		  thereon during the year and if so, number of		
		  such cases and the total amount involved	 :			 

		  a)	 at the beginning of the year				    }
		  b)	 maximum during the year				    }		  Nil
		  c)	 at the end of the year					     }

	 iv)	 The details of deposits which are not in			  }
		  compliance with the requirement of			   }		  Nil
		  Chapter V of the Act.						      }

Significant Material Orders Passed by Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
No significant orders have been passed by any Regulators, Courts or Tribunals during the year impacting 
the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

Extract of the Annual Return 
Extract of the Annual Return for the year 2019-20 in Form MGT-9 is annexed – Annexure 4. 

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange  Earnings and Outgo
The required information as per Rule 8 (3) A, B & C of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed – 
Annexure 5.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 14.8.2014 had laid down a Remuneration Policy as 
recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee relating to remuneration of the Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel (KMP), Sr. Management Personnel (SMP) and other employees of the Company.  
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The Remuneration Policy is in accordance with Section 178 of the Act and the Rules made there under.  The 
Policy was revised by the Board in its meeting held on 29.10.2019.  The Remuneration Policy is posted on 
the Company’s weblink. http://www.dcmsr.com/other_files/remuneration%20policy.pdf. The salient features 
of the Policy are given below:

i.	 Guiding principle
	 The guiding principle of the Policy is that the remuneration and other terms of employment should 

effectively help in attracting and retaining committed and competent personnel.  The remuneration 
packages are designed keeping in view industry practices and cost of living.  

ii.	 Directors
	 Non-executive directors are paid remuneration in the form of sitting fees for attending Board/ Committee 

meetings as fixed by the Board from time to time subject to statutory provisions.  Presently sitting fee 
is Rs.50,000 per Board meeting and Rs.25,000 per Committee meeting.  In addition, Non-executive 
Directors are to be paid commission on profits of up to 1% of the net profit of the Company, computed 
in the manner laid down u/s 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, in such amount and proportion as may 
be decided by the Board of Directors. 

	 Remuneration of Executive Directors (Whole-time Directors) including Managing Director(s) is fixed by the 
Board of Directors on the recommendation of the NRC, subject to the approval of the shareholders.  The 
NRC, while recommending the remuneration, takes into account pay and employment conditions in the 
industry, merit and seniority of the person and paying capacity of the Company. The remuneration, which 
comprises of salary, perquisites, performance based reward/profit based commission and retirement 
benefits as per Company Rules, is subject to the limits laid down under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 iii.	 Key Managerial Personnel and Sr. Management Personnel
	 Appointment, remuneration and cessation of service of Key Managerial Personnel are subject to the 

approval of the NRC and Board of Directors.  Appointment and cessation of service of Sr. Management 
Personnel are approved by the Senior Managing Director on the recommendation of the concerned 
Executive Director, keeping in view the Remuneration Policy.

iv.	 Other employees 
	 The remuneration of other employees is fixed from time to time by the Management as per the guiding 

principle laid down in the Remuneration Policy and considering industry standards and cost of living.  
In addition to salary, they are also provided perquisites and retirement benefits as per schemes of the 
Company and statutory requirements, where applicable.

Managerial Remuneration 
The information required as per Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 pertaining to remuneration of Directors, KMP and comparisons are annexed – 
Annexure 6.  It is affirmed that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Statement of particulars of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration including employees who were 
in receipt of remuneration which was not less than Rs.102 lakh or more per annum in aggregate during the 
year 2019-20 is annexed – Annexure 7.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee presently comprises of three IDs and one Executive Director. Shri P.R. Khanna is the 
Chairman and Shri S.B. Mathur, Shri S.C. Kumar, all IDs  and Shri Madhav B. Shriram, Managing Director are 
Members.  There was no instance of the Board not accepting the recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Vigil Mechanism
Pursuant to Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 22 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Board of 
Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, adopted a Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower 
Policy). The Policy has been revised by the Board in its meeting held on 27.5.2019 to incorporate the 
requirements of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The revised Policy is being 
circulated among the employees and also being put on the weblink of the Company: http://www.dcmsr.com/
other_files/whistleblower%20policy.pdf.  
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The Policy provides a channel to the employees to report to the management concerns about unethical 
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the code of conduct or policies.  The mechanism provides 
for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides 
for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.

Share Capital 
During the year, the Company has not issued any share capital with differential voting rights, sweat equity or 
ESOP nor provided any money to the employees or trusts for purchase of its own shares. 

The Company has not made any public offer of shares during the year.

Statutory Auditors
Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the shareholders in their meeting held on 22.8.2017 
had appointed  M/s. B S R & Co., LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.101248W/W100022), 
Gurugram as statutory auditors for holding offi ce from the conclusion of the said AGM till the conclusion of the 
AGM to be held in the year 2022 on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors.

Cost Auditors
M/s Ramanath Iyer & Co., Cost Accountants, (Regn No.13848), 808, Pearls Business Park, Netaji Subhash Place, 
Pitampura, Delhi – 110034, who were appointed as Cost Auditors of the Company for the year 2018-19, submitted 
the Cost Audit report, due for fi ling on or before 09.09.2019, to the Central Government on 26.08.2019.  They 
have been reappointed as Cost Auditors for the year 2020-21.   A resolution for ratifi cation of their remuneration 
for the year 2020-21, as required under the Companies Act, 2013, forms part of the Notice convening the AGM.

The Company maintains Cost records as specifi ed by the Central Govt. under sub- section (1) of section 148 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

Corporate Governance  
Reports on Corporate Governance and Management Discussion & Analysis are annexed - Annexure 8.

Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy  
Pursuant to the “Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013”, the Company constituted Internal Complaints Committees at all its workplaces.  There has not been 
any instance of complaint reported in this regard to any of the Committees.  The Committees are being   
reconstituted effective from 01.07.2020 for next 3 years. 

The Company periodically review and submit a status report annually to the Competent Authority under 
Section 22 of the said Act.

Acknowledgment
The Directors acknowledge the continued co-operation and support received from the banks and various 
government agencies, and all our business associates.  The banks have been very considerate and co-
operative in extending the reliefs offered by the Government / RBI in the wake of the Covid-19 and the 
resultant lockdown.  

The Directors also place on record their appreciation of the contribution made by employees at all levels.

For and on behalf of the Board

          (Madhav B. Shriram) (Alok B. Shriram)
New Delhi,         DIN: 00203521 DIN: 00203808
June 27, 2020   Managing Director Sr. Managing Director
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To,
The Members, 
DCM Shriram Industries Limited
Kanchenjunga Building, 
18, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi -110001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by DCM Shriram Industries Limited (hereinafter called the company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, 
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2020 complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by DCM Shriram Industries Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on March 31, 2020 
according to the provisions of: 

(i)		 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii)		 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii)		 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder to the extent of Regulation 
76 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018; 

(iv)		 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent 
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v)		 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

(a)		 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; 

(b)		 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

(c)		 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018; 

(d)		 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; 

(e)		 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 
2008; Not Applicable

(f)		 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client to the extent of securities issued; 

(g)		 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and 
Not Applicable

(h)		 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; Not Applicable

(vi)		 The other laws, as informed and certified by the management of the Company, there is no sectorial law 
specifically applicable to the Company based on their Sectors/ Industry. The  Other laws, as informed 

Annexure - 1
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and certified by the Management of the Company which are specifically applicable to the Company 
based on their Sectors/ Business are:

1.		 The Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Act, 1985

2.		 Sugarcane Control Order,1966

3.		 Sugar Control Order 1966

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses / Regulations of the following: 

(i)		 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii)		 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors 
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent in advance (and at a Shorter Notice for which necessary approvals were obtained), and 
a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before 
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the 
minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period no specific events / actions took place having a major bearing on 
the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

	 For Chandrasekaran Associates
	 Company Secretaries

	 Sd/-
	 Dr. S. Chandrasekaran
	 Senior Partner
	 Membership No. FCS 1644	  
Date: 16.06.2020	 Certificate of Practice No. 715
Place: New Delhi	 UDIN: F001644B000345801

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as   Annexure-A and forms an 
integral part of this report.

Disclaimer: 
Due to restricted movement amid COVID-19 pandemic, we conducted the secretarial audit by examining the 
Secretarial Records including  Minutes, Documents, Registers and other records  etc., and some of them 
received by way of electronic mode from the Company and could not be verified from the original records. 
The management has confirmed that the records submitted to us are the true and correct.

This Report is limited to the Statutory Compliances on laws / regulations / guidelines listed in our report 
which have been complied by the Company up to the date of this Report pertaining to Financial Year 2019-
2020. We are not commenting on the Statutory Compliances whose due dates are extended by Regulators 
from time to time due to COVID-19 or still there is time line to comply with such compliances.
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Annexure - A
To
The Members
DCM Shriram Industries Limited
Kanchenjunga Building, 
18, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi -110001

1. 	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. 	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the random 
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes 
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. 	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts 
of the Company.

4. 	 Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. 	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on the random test basis.

6. 	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

	 For Chandrasekaran Associates
	 Company Secretaries

	 Sd/-
	 Dr. S. Chandrasekaran
	 Senior Partner
	 Membership No. FCS 1644	  
Date: 16.06.2020	 Certificate of Practice No. 715
Place: New Delhi	 UDIN: F001644B000345801

Annexure - 2
Criteria for Evaluation of Board as a Whole by all Directors

Area of Evaluation Criteria  

a) Structure of the Board 	 i)	 Competency of Directors 

	 ii)	 Experience of Directors 

	 iii)	 Mix of qualifications   

	 iv)	Diversity in Board under various parameters

	 v)	 Appointment to the Board 

b) Meetings of the Board 	 i)	 Regularity of meetings

	 ii)	 Frequency 

	 iii)	 Logistics

	 iv)	Agenda   

	 v)	 Discussions and dissents  
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	 vi)	Recording of Minutes

	vii)	Dissemination of information

c) Functions of the Board 	 i)	 Role and responsibilities of the Board 

	 ii)	 Strategy and performance evaluation

	 iii)	 Governance and compliance

	 iv)	Evaluation of risks

	 v)	 Grievance redressal for investors

	 vi)	Conflict of interest

	vii)	Stakeholder value and responsibilities 

	viii)	Corporate culture and values

	 ix)	Review of Board evaluation

	 x)	 Facilitation of Independent Directors

d) Board and Management 	 i)	 Evaluation of performance of the management and feedback

	 ii)	 Independence of the management from the Board

	 iii)	 Access of the management to the Board and Board access 
 		  to the management  

	 iv)	Secretarial support

	 v)	 Fund availability

	 vi)	Succession plan

e) Professional development:

Criteria for Evaluation of the Committees of the Board by all Directors

Area of Evaluation Criteria  

a) Mandate and composition Whether the mandate, composition and working procedures 
of Committees of the Board of Directors are clearly defined 
and disclosed.

b) Effectiveness of the
    Committee

Whether the Committee has fulfilled its functions as assigned 
by the Board and laws as may be applicable.

c) Structure of the Committee
    and meetings 

i.	 Whether the Committees have been structured properly 
    and regular meetings are being held. 

ii.	Whether in terms of discussions, agenda, etc. of the meetings,  
	 similar criteria laid down as specified above for the        
	 entire Board.

d) Independence of the
    Committee from the Board

Whether adequate independence of the Committee is ensured 
from the Board.

e) Contribution to decisions of
    the Board

Whether the Committees’ recommendations contribute 
effectively to decisions of the Board.  
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Criteria for Evaluation of Individual Directors and Chairperson
(including IDs and Executive Directors by the Board as a Whole)

Area of Evaluation Criteria  
General a)	 Qualifications

b)	 Experience 

c)	 Knowledge and competency

d)	 Fulfillment of functions

e)	 Ability to function as a team 

f)	 Initiative 

g)	 Availability and attendance

h)	 Commitment

i)	 Contribution 

j)	 Integrity 

Additional criteria for IDs a)	 Independence

b)	 Independent views and judgement

Additional criteria for 
Chairperson

a)	 Effectiveness of leadership and ability to steer the 
 	 meeting 

b)	 Impartiality

c)	 Commitment

d)	 Ability to keep shareholders’ interests in mind

Criteria for Evaluation of Individual Directors and Chairperson
(excluding Independent directors) by Independent Directors

Area of Evaluation Criteria  
General a)	 Qualifications

b)	 Experience 

c)	 Knowledge and competency

d)	 Fulfillment of functions

e)	 Ability to function as a team 

f)	 Initiative 

g)	 Availability and attendance

h)	 Commitment

i)	 Contribution 

j)	 Integrity 

Additional criteria for 
Chairperson

a)	 Effectiveness of leadership and ability to steer the 
	 meeting 

b)	 Impartiality

c)	 Commitment

d)	 Ability to keep shareholders’ interests in mind

Flow of information Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of 
information between the Company Management and the 
Board.  
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ANNEXURE - 3
REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
1.	 A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be 

undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programs.
	 Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the CSR 
Committee laid down a  CSR Policy.  

	 The Policy lays down the manner in which CSR activities covered under Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act, 2013,  will be taken up and implemented by the Company.  A copy of the Policy 
is available on Company’s website https://www.dcmsr.com

2.	 The CSR Committee comprised of Shri Alok B. Shriram, Sr.MD, (Chairman), Shri Madhav B. Shriram, MD 
(Member),Smt. Urvashi Tilak Dhar, WTD (Member) Shri S.C. Kumar,. Independent Director, (Member) 
and Ms V Kavitha Dutt Independent Director, (Member). 

3.	 Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years – Rs.102.37 Crore. 
4.	 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above) – Rs.204.74 lakh.
5.	 Details of CSR spent during the financial year
	 a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year – Rs.204.74 lakh.
	 b) Amount unspent, if any. - Nil 
	 c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
S. 

No.
CSR project or 

activity  
identified

Sector in 
which the 
project is 
covered

(Ref. Sch. VII 
of the Cos. Act, 

2013)

Projects or  
programs 

1) local area or  
other 

2) Specify the 
State and District 
where projects 
or programs 

were undertaken 

Amount 
outlay  

(budget) 
proects or 
programs 

wise

Amount spent 
on the projects 

or programs 
Sub-heads:

1) Direct 
expenditure 

on projects or 
programs

2) Overheads

Cumulative 
expenditure 

upto the 
reporting 

period

Amount spent:
Direct or through 

implementing 
agency

1 Provision of 
medicines, 
medical 
camps, etc.

Health pro-
gramme 
including pre-
ventive health  
(Sch.VII (i)

Daurala, 
Meerut  

27.05 1) 27.05 27.05 Directly and In 
association with 
NGOs.

2 Health care Health Care
(Item No.i)

Delhi 28.39 1) 28.39 28.39 Directly and In 
association with 
NGOs.

3 Support to 
education of 
women/old 
age/Spl. able 
children/
library/

P r o m o t i o n 
of  education  
[Sch. VII (ii )] 

Kota, 
Rajasthan/ 
Daurala, UP/
Gurugram

69.18 1) 69.18 69.18 Directly and 
In association 
with NGOs.

4 Support to old 
age persons

Facilities for 
Sr. citizens
 [Sch. VII (iii)] 

Daurala, 
Meerut

4.75 1)   4.75 4.75 Direct

5 Environment 
sustainability

Environment 
Protection 

Daurala, 
Meerut

9.41 1)   9.41   9.41 Direct

6 National 
Heritage

Promotion of  
Art/ culture
[Sch. VII (v)]

Delhi / Kota / 
Bengaluru  

27.20* 1) 12.20 12.20 Direct

7 Promotion of 
sports

Promotion of 
sports 
[Sch. VII (vii)]

Noida, UP/ 
Gurugram, 
Haryana

8.35 1)   8.35 8.35 Directly and 
In association 
with NGOs.

(Rs./lakh)
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6. In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profi t of the last three 
fi nancial years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount 
in its Board report.

 Not applicable.
7. It is confi rmed that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR Objectives 

and Policy of the Company. 
8. Rs.34.10 lakhs was spent after close of the Financial Year because of the Lockdown.

Member,CSR Committee          Chairman, CSR Committee
Madhav B. Shriram

(DIN 00203521) (DIN 00203808)

Alok B. Shriram

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
8 Disaster 

Mgmt. & 
National Ca-
lamity

Flood Relief / 
support to Co-
vid-19 affected 
people
[Sch. VII (xii)]

Assam/ Delhi / 
Daurala

- 4.44 4.44 Direct

9 Salary & ca-
pacity building 
of staff

Overheads 
(Rule 4(6) of 
Companies 
(CSR Policy) 
Rules, 2014

6.85 6.85

TOTAL 170.64 170.64

* The annual Mushaira which was to be held on 16.03.2020, involving an estimated expenditure of Rs. 20 
Lakh was cancelled because of COVID-19 pandemic.

CSR Payment for the year 2019-20 made subsequent to 31.03.2020 due to Lockdown

(Rs./lakhs)

(Rs./lakhs)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
S. 

No.
CSR project or 

activity 
identifi ed

Sector in 
which the 
project is 
covered

(Ref. Sch. VII 
of the Cos. Act, 

2013)

Projects or 
programs 

1) local area or  
other 

2) Specify the 
State and District 
where projects 
or programs 

were undertaken 

Amount 
outlay 

(budget) 
proects or 
programs 

wise

Amount spent 
on the projects 

or programs 
Sub-heads:

1) Direct 
expenditure 

on projects or 
programs

2) Overheads

Cumulative 
expenditure 

upto the 
reporting 

period

Amount spent:
Direct or through 

implementing 
agency

1 Lung Care Health Care
[Sch. VII (i)]

Delhi 3.35 1) 3.35 3.35 In association 
with NGO

2. Prime 
Ministers 
National 
Relief Fund

PM National 
Relief Fund
[Sch. VII (viii)] 

Delhi 10.00 1)10.00 10.00 Direct

3 Disaster 
Mgmt. & 
National 
Calamity

PM Cares 
& Support 
to Covid-19 
affected 
persons.
[Sch. VII (xii)]

20.75 20.75 20.75 Directly and In 
association with 
NGOs.

TOTAL 34.10 34.10 34.10
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2020
Annexure - 4

Form No. MGT-9
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.	 REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
	 i)	 CIN:- L74899DL1989PLC035140
	 ii)	 Registration Date: 21.02.1989
	 iii)	 Name of the Company: DCM SHRIRAM INDUSTRIES LTD.
	 iv)	 Category/ Sub-Category of the Company: Manufacturing
	 v)	 Address of the Registered Office and contact details:
		  Kanchenjunga Building, 5th Floor, 18 Barakhama Road,
		  New Delhi – 110 001. 
		  Tel.No. 011-23759300 	 Fax No. 011-23350765  
		  Email- dsil@dcmsr.com  	 Website: https://www.dcmsr.com
	 vi)	 Whether listed Company: Yes 
	 vii)	 Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any:
   	  	 KFIN Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

1)	 Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli,
    	 Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad–500032
    	 Tel.no. 040 - 67161500 Toll free no.18003454001
     	email -  einward.ris@kfintech.com
2) 	New Delhi House, 305, 3rd Floor, Barakhamba Road,
    	 New Delhi – 110001  
    	 Tel.no. 011 - 43681700 	

II.	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
	 All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

Sl. 
No.

Name and Description of main 
products/ services

NIC Code of the 
Product/ Service                              

% to total turnover of the 
Company

1 Sugar*  1072 62.65

2 Industrial Fibers and related products 1399 /13999 18.33

3 Chemicals 2011/ 20119 19.02

Sl. 
No.

Name and address 
of the Company

CIN/ GLN                       Holding / Subsid-
iary/ Associate 

% of shares 
held (equity)

Applicable 
Section

1 Daurala Foods & Beverages Pvt. 
Ltd. 6th Floor, Kanchenjunga 
Bldg., 18 Barakhamba Road,
New Delhi -110001

U74899DL1994PTC062686 Subsidiary 100 2(87) and
129(3)

2 DCM Hyundai Ltd.
5th Floor, `Akash Deep', 26-A,
Barakhamba Road,
New Delhi - 110001

U93090DL1995PLC273604 Associate 	     49.28 2(6) and
129(3)

 * Comprising of sugar, power, alcohol and sanitizer.

III.	 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i)  Category-wise Share holding

Category of shareholders No. of shares held at the beginning of the year No. of shares held at the end of the year %age change 
during the 

year
Demat Physical Total %age of 

Total shares
Demat Physical Total %age of to-

tal shares
A.	Promoters
1)	Indian
	 a)	Individual/HUF 140900 0 140900 0.81 140900 0 140900 0.81 0
	 b) 	Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
	 c)	State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
	 d)	Bodies Corp. 7944549 0 7944549 45.66 8016182 0 8016182 46.07 0.41
	 e)	Banks/ FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
	 f)	 Any other  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SubTotal (A)(1) 8085449 0 8085449 46.47 8157082 0 8157082 46.88 0.41
2)	Foreign
	 a)	NRIs – Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
	 b)	Other – individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
	 c)	Bodies corp.. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
	 d)	Banks/ FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
	 e)	Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total shareholding of pro-
moter (A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)  8085449 0 8085449 46.47 8157082 0 8157082 46.88 0.41

B.	Public Shareholding
1)	Institutions
 	 a)	Mutual Funds 101 50 151 0 101 50 151 0 0
	 b)	Banks/FI 1867 1615 3482 0.02 1867 1108 2975 0.02 0
	 c)	Central Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
	 d)	State Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
	 e)	Venture  capital funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
	 f)	 Insurance companies  1240679 0 1240679 7.13 1161352 0 1161352 6.68 -0.46
	 g)	FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
	 h)	Foreign venture capital 
funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

	 i)	 Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B)(1) 1242647 1665 1244312 7.15 1163320 1158 1164478 6.69 -0.46
2)	Non-institutions
	 a)	Bodies corp.
    		 i)	 Indian 4009184 7814 4016998 23.09 3597084 7782 3604866 20.72 -2.37
   		  ii)	 Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
	 b)	Individuals
    		 i)	 Individual share-
holders holding nominal 
share capital upto Rs.1 lakh

1925474 512334 2437808 14.01 2027101 480982 2508083 14.42 0.40

   		  ii)	 Individual sharehold-
ers holding nominal share 
capital excess of Rs.1 lakh

1105011 0 1105011 6.35 1436759 0 1436759 8.26 1.91

	 c)	Others 
    		 -	 Clearing members 2752 0 2752 0.02 10261 0 10261 0.06 0.04
   		  -	 IEPF 406365 0 406365 2.34 405353 0 405353 2.33 -0.01
   		  -	 NRIs 82876 15163 98039 0.56 94819 15033 109852 0.63 0.07
   		  -	 Trusts 1703 0 1703 0.01 1703 0 1703 0.01 0
Sub-total(B)(2) 7533365 535311 8068676 46.38 7573080 503797 8076877 46.42 0.04
Total Public shareholding  
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2) 8776012 536976 9312988 53.53 8736400 504955 9241355 53.12 -0.41

C.	Shares held by custodian 
for GDRs & ADRs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grand Total (A+B+C) 16861461 536976 17398437 100 16893482 504955 17398437 100 0
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Sl. No Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year

Number of  
shares

% of total
shares of the 

Company

% of shares 
pledged / en-
cumbered to 
total shares

Number  of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

Company

% of shares 
pledged / en-
cumbered to 
total shares

% change in 
sharehold-
ing during 
the year

1 Versa Trading Ltd. 2224725 12.79 0 2224725 12.79 0 0
2 Bantam Enterprises Pvt. Ltd 1356968 7.80 0 1356968 7.80 0 0
3 Lily Commercial Pvt. Ltd. 1150323 6.61 0 2994479 17.21 0 10.60
4 H.R. Travels P.Ltd. 642580 3.69 0 642580 3.69 0 0
5 HI-VAC Wares Pvt. Ltd. 793257 4.56 0 793257 4.56 0 0
6 Divine Investments P. Ltd 682493 3.92 0 0 0 0 -3.92
7 Quick Lithographers P.Ltd 450434 2.59 0 0 0 0 -2.59
8 Peekay Alkalies P. Ltd. 258419 1.49 0 0 0 0 -1.49
9 Super Wares P. Ltd. 181473 1.04 0 0 0 0 -1.04

10 Gentech Chemicals P. Ltd 166367 0.96 0 0 0 0 -0.96
11 Meridian Marketing P. Ltd. 33337 0.19 0 0 0 0 -0.19

12 Tilak Dhar-Karta (L.Bansi 
Dhar & Sons- HUF) 53916 0.31 0 53916 0.31 0 0

13 Suman Bansi Dhar 56812 0.33 0 56812 0.33 0 0
14 Tilak Dhar 11816 0.07 0 0 0 0 -0.07
15 Alok B. Shriram 8536 0.05 0 8536 0.05 0 0
16 Divya Shriram 87 0 0 87 0 0 0
17 Urvashi Tilak Dhar 521 0 0 12337 0 0 0.07
18 Karuna Shriram 4346 0.02 0 4346 0.02 0 0
19 Madhav B. Shriram 66 0 0 66 0 0 0
20 DCM Hyundai Ltd. 4173 0.02 0 4173 0.02 0 0
21 Aditi Dhar 100 0 0 100 0 0 0
22 Akshay Dhar 100 0 0 100 0 0 0
23 Kanika Shriram 4500 0.03 0 4500 0.03 0 0
24 Rudra Shriram 100 0 0 100 0 0 0

TOTAL 8085449 46.47 0 8157082 46.88 0 0.41

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
No. of
shares

% of total shares of 
the company

No. of
shares

% of total shares
of the company

 At the beginning of the year 8085449 46.47
Date-wise increase / decrease in promoters 
shareholding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allot-
ment / Transfer/ Bonus / Sweat equity, etc)
Lily Commercial Pvt. Ltd. 1150323 6.61
Transfer (merger) – 07.06.2019 1772523 2922846 16.80
Purchase – 28.06.2019 27233 2950079 16.96
Purchase – 05.07.2019 21123 2971202 17.08
Purchase – 31.12.2019 19911 2991113 17.19
Purchase – 03.01.2020 3366 2994479 17.21
Divine Investments Pvt. Ltd. 682493 3.92
Transferred through merger – 07.06.2019 0 0
Quick Lithographers Pvt. Ltd. 450434 2.59
Transferred through merger – 07.06.2019 0 0
Peekay Alkalies Pvt. Ltd. 258419 1.49
Transferred through merger – 07.06.2019 0 0
Super Wares Pvt. Ltd. 181473 1.04
Transferred through merger – 07.06.2019 0 0
Gentech Chemicals Pvt. Ltd 166367 0.96
Transferred through merger – 07.06.2019 0 0
Meridian Marketing Pvt. Ltd. 33337 0.19
Transferred through merger – 07.06.2019 0 0
Tilak Dhar 11816 0.07
Transmission to Urvashi Tilak Dhar 
23.08.2019 0 0
Urvashi Tilak Dhar 521 0
Transmission from Tilak Dhar -23.08.2019 12337 0.07
At the end of the year (31.03.2020) 8157082 46.88

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Annexure - 4 (contd.)
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

S. No. For Each of the top 10 shareholders Shareholding at the beginning  of the year Cumulative shareholding during the year
No. of shares %age of total shares 

of the company
No. of shares %age of total shares 

of the company
At the beginning of the year

1 HB Portfolio Ltd. 2988173 17.17
2 LIC 1240679 7.13
3 Minal Bharat Patel 519118 2.98
4 Pearey Lall & Sons (EP)Ltd. 400000 2.30
5 Finquest Financial Solutions Pvt. Ltd. 212118 1.22
6 Puran Associates Pvt. Ltd. 210851 1.21
7 Seetha Kumari 119536 0.69
8 Rangappa N. 85500 0.49
9 Ruchit Bharat Patel 80865 0.46

10 Hardik B. Patel 39742 0.23
Date wise increase/ decrease in shareholding 
during the year  specifying the reasons for 
increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer / 
bonus / sweat equity etc)
06.09.19 HB Portfolio Ltd. (transfer) -777 2987396
13.09.19 -20379 2967017
20.09.19 -30000 2937017
27.09.19 -17912 2919105
22.11.19 -9481 2909624
29.11.19 -59807 2849817
06.12.19 -61097 2788720
13.12.19 -60161 2728559
20.12.19 -18092 2710467
27.12.19 -44430 2666037
31.12.19 -6250 2659787
03.01.20 -7706 2652081
10.01.20 -22065 2630016
17.01.20 -33742 2596247
24.01.20 -9058 2587216
31.01.20 -5223 2581993
07.02.20 -40651 2541342
21.02.20 -18558 2522784
28.02.20 -11049 2511735
27.12.19 LIC (transfer) -5000 1235679
31.12.19 -15000 1220679
03.01.20 -15549 1205130
10.01.20 -18205 1186925
17.01.20 -18573 1168352
24.01.20 -7000 1161352
27.03.20 Minal Bharat Patel (transfer) 500 519618
04.10.19 Pearey Lall & Sons (EP) Ltd.  (transfer) 200000 600000
04.10.19 -200000 400000
29.11.19 200000 600000
29.11.19 -200000 400000
27.03.20 -22500 377500
05.04.19 Finquest Financial Solutions Pvt. Ltd.   (Transfer) 5296 217414
12.04.19 5968 223382
19.04.19 5055 228437
26.04.19 1250 229687
10.05.19 10000 239687
17.05.19 643 240330
24.05.19 8392 248722
31.05.19 10108 258830
07.06.19 2001 260831
28.06.19 Puran Associates Pvt. Ltd. (Transfer) -24600 185981
05.07.19 -18300 167681
06.12.19 167681 335362
06.12.19 -167681 167681
28.02.20 -5000 162681
06.03.20 -10326 152355
13.03.20 -1000 151355
20.03.20 -7756 143599
31.05.19 Seetha Kumari (Transfer) 2980 122561
07.06.19 556 123072
12.07.19 2390 125462
09.08.19 603 126065
16.18.19 1988 128053
21.02.20 -128053 0
27.03.20 128053 128053
01.04.19 Venkattu Srinivasan 4307
26.04.19   (Transfer) 4162 8469
03.05.19 11465 19934
10.05.19 6565 26499



39

17.05.19 3890 30389
24.05.19 830 31219
28.06.19 4000 35219
08.11.19 -4000 31219
06.12.19 6000 37219
31.12.19 63000 100219
10.01.20 -6081 94138
17.01.20 -1266 92872
24.01.20 -1000 91872
28.02.20 3000 94872
06.03.20 6024 100896
27.03.20 100 100996
05.04.19 Rangappa N (Transfer) 200 85700
26.04.19 300 86000
10.05.19 300 86300
17.05.19 400 86700
31.05.19 600 87300
07.06.19 600 87900
14.06.19 300 88200
21.06.19 100 88300
28.06.19 400 88700
05.07.19 400 89100
12.07.19 700 89800
19.07.19 200 90000
30.08.19 300 90300

13.09.19 -1000 89300
27.09.19 700 90000
11.10.19 210 90210
18.10.19 290 90500
01.11.19 -1900 88600
08.11.19 200 88800
15.11.19 700 89500
22.11.19 900 90400
29.11.19 400 90800
06.12.19 200 91000
13.12.19 600 91600
20.12.19 161 91761
27.12.19 39 91800
03.01.20 -2500 89300
10.01.20 700 90000
17.01.20 -4500 85500
24.01.20 -3000 82500
31.01.20 -3900 78600
07.02.20 10400 89000
14.02.20 3800 92800
21.02.20 800 93600
05.07.19 Ruchit Bharat Patel (transfer) 280 81145
02.08.19 5692 86837
06.09.19 2900 89737
13.09.19 5027 94764
20.09.19 1698 96462
27.09.19 2390 98852
11.10.19 140 98992
18.10.19 1182 100174
25.10.19 1633 101807
01.11.19 354 102161
27.11.19 3851 106012
13.12.19 27655 133667
07.02.20 1155 134822
14.02.20 5000 139822
06.03.20 3000 142822
13.03.20 1786 144608

At the end of the year (or on the date of 
separation, if separated during the year).

31.03.20 HB Portfolio Ltd. 2511735 14.44
31.03.20 LIC 1161352 6.68
31.03.20 Minal Bharat Patel 519618 2.99
31.03.20 Pearey Lall & Sons (EP)Ltd. 377500 2.17
31.03.20 Finquest Financial Solutions Pvt. Ltd. 260831 1.50
31.03.20 Ruchit Bharat Patel 144608 0.83
31.03.20 Puran Associates Pvt. Ltd. 143599 0.83
31.03.20 Seetha Kumari 128053 0.74
31.03.20 Venkattu Srinivasan 100996 0.58
31.03.20 Rangappa N. 93600 0.54

Annexure - 4 (contd.)

For Each of the top 10 shareholders Shareholding at the beginning  of the year Cumulative shareholding during the year

No. of shares %age of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares %age of total shares 
of the company
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
S. No. Each of the 

Directors and KMP
Shareholding at the 

beginning  of the year
Cumulative shareholding 

during the year

No. of shares
%age of total 
shares of the 

company
No. of shares

%age of to-
tal shares of 
the company

At the beginning of the year
1 Sh. Tilak Dhar 11816 0.07 0 0
2 Sh. Alok B. Shriram 8536 0.050 8536 0.050
3 Sh. Madhav B. Shriram 66 0 66 0
4 Smt. Urvashi Tilak Dhar 521 0 12337 0.07
5 Sh. N.K. Jain 1 0 1 0
6 Sh. P.R. Khanna 960 0.006 960 0.006
7 Sh. Ravinder Narain 570 0.003 570 0.003
8 Ms. V. Kavitha Dutt 500 0.003 500 0.003
9 Sh. S.B. Mathur 0 0 0 0

10 Sh. C. Vikas Rao 0 0 0 0
11 Sh. S.C. Kumar 0 0 0 0
12 Sh. Sanjay C. Kirloskar 0 0 0 0
13 Sh. Y.D. Gupta (KMP) 0 0 0 0

Date wise increase/ decrease in shareholding during 
the year  specifying the reasons for increase/ decrease 
(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

23.08.19 Sh. Tilak Dhar (transmission) -11816 0
23.08.19 Smt. Urvashi Tilak Dhar 

(transmission from Sh. Tilak Dhar) 
11816 12337 0.07

V. INDEBTEDNESS

VI.	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
	 A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
(Rs./lakh)

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured Loans Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of 
the financial year
i)	 Principal amount 46030.92 – 557.63 46588.55
ii)	 Interest due but not paid – – – –
iii)	interest accrued but not due 23.27 – 62.52 85.79
Total (i+ii+iii) 46054.19 – 620.15 46674.34
Change in Indebtedness 
during the financial year (net)
•	 Addition 12210.91 – 51.39 12262.30
•	 Reduction – – – –
Net change 12210.91 – 51.39 12262.30
Indebtedness at the end of the 
financial year
I)	 Principal amount 58154.38 – 618.31 58772.69
ii)	 Interest due but not paid – – – –
iii)	Interest accrued but not  due  110.72 – 53.23 163.95
Total (i + ii  +iii) 58265.10 – 671.54 58936.64

(Rs./lakh)
S. no. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount

1 Gross salary Tilak Dhar
Sr.MD
(Upto 

30.06.19)

Alok B. 
Shriram
Sr.MD

Madhav B. 
Shriram

MD

Urvashi 
Tilak Dhar, 
WTD (w.e.f. 
14.08.19)

N.K. Jain 
 Dir.Fin. & 
CFO (w.e.f  
1.11.2019) 

K.N. Rao 
Dir.& CEO 
(Rayons)

(till 31.10.19)
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
Sec. 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961

18.00 70.80 69.60 41.69 14.40 15.54 230.03

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of 
Income-tax Act.

5.49 16.43 17.43 6.66 8.17 3.19 57.37

(c) Profits in lieu of salary u/s 17(3) of 
Income-tax Act.

9.00 35.40 34.80 20.84 – 9.32 109.36

2 Stock Option – – – – –
3 Sweat equity – – – – –
4 Commission: - As % of profit 

                      - others, specify (Reward)
38.93 172.21 173.08 85.77

12.50
469.99

12.50
5 Others, please specify 

Total (A)  71.42 294.84 294.91 154.96 22.57 40.55 879.25
Ceiling as per the Act Rs. 1020 lakh (being 10% of the Net profit of the Company calculated as per Section 

198 of the Companies Act, 2013) 
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	 B. Remuneration to other directors:

	 C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/ WTD/ Manager

S.No. Particulars of 
Remuneration

Name of Directors Total 
Amount

1 Independent Directors S.B.  
Mathur

P.R.
Khanna

Ravinder 
Narain

S.C. 
Kumar

C. Vikas 
Rao

V. Kavitha 
Dutt

Sanjay C. 
Kirloskar

•	 Fee for attending Board 
& Committee meetings

6.50 6.75 4.00 5.25 – 3.00 2.25 27.75

•	 Commission 17.29 16.29 14.29 16.29 – 11.29 13.30 88.75

•	 Others, Please specify – – – – – – – –

Total (1) 23.79 23.04 18.29 21.54 – 14.29 15.55 116.50

2 Other Non-Executive 
Directors

– – – – – – – –

•	 Fee for attending Board 
Committee meetings

– – – – 2.50 – – 2.50

•	 Commission – – – – 13.29 – – 13.29

•	 Others, Please specify – – – – – – – –

Total (2) – – – – 15.79 – – 15.79

Total (B)-(1+2) 23.79 23.04 18.29 21.54 15.79 14.29 15.55 132.29

Total Managerial 
remuneration 

1011.54

Overall Ceiling 
as per the Act 

Rs.1122 lakh (being 11% of Net Profit of the Company calculated as per Section 198 
of the Companies Act, 2013, sitting fee not to be included for the limit.)   

S.No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

Company   
Secretary

CFO
(upto 31.10.2019)

Total

1 Gross Salary

(a)	 Salary as per provisions contained in Section 
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

18.12 13.14 31.26

(b)	 Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of 
	 Income-tax Act, 1961

4.77 5.90 10.67

(c) 	Profits in lieu of salary u/s 17(3) of Income-tax 
Act, 1961

– 1.26 1.26

2 Stock Option – – –

3 Sweat equity – – –

4 Commission: - As % of profit 
- Others, specify

– – –

5 Others, please specify – – –

Total 22.89 20.30 43.19

(Rs./lakh)

(Rs./lakh)

VII. PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:  
There were no penalties/ punishments / compounding of offences for breach of any Section of the Companies Act, against the 
Company or its Directors or other officers in default during the year.

Annexure - 4 (contd.)
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Annexure - 5

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE  
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information as required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the 
Companies  (Accounts) Rules, 2014

A.	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 			 
	 i)	 Steps taken and impact on conservation of energy:		
		  -	 Installation of C&I (Concentration and Incineration) Plant for treating distillery effluent and generating 	
			   Green Power.	
		  -	 Reduction in steam consumption by installation of a new Multi Pressure Distillation Plant.   	
		  -	 Installation of VFDs (Variable Frequency Drives) on cane carriers, preparatory rack elevators and 

fans in place of dyno drives and slip ring starters. 	
		  -	 Installation of Condensate heaters for Raw Juice first heating.	
		  -	 Installation of Condensate flash tank at evaporators.  	
		  -	 In-house up gradation of PLC (Programmable Logic Controller) systems. 	
		  -	 Installation of high efficiency air screw compressors in new slop fired boiler.	
		  -	 Reduction in raw water consumption by recycling of DM water for feed pump cooling.	
		  -	 Installation of a Centralized Softening Plant for all cooling towers of sugar factory and distillery.	
		  -	 Replacement of old pumps and motors with energy efficient pumps and motors.	
		  -	 Installation of efficient Vapor Absorption Machine (VAM), 430 TR.	
		  -	 Installation of energy efficient Exhaust & Fresh Air Fans.	
		  -	 Installation of PHE for heat recovery from Hot Stretch Solution.	
		  -	 Installation of Hot Stretch Solution Heaters to replace inefficient heating arrangement. 	
		  -	 Cooling water circulation system rearranged to reduce power consumption.	
		  -	 Installation of Capacitors to improve Power Factor.	
		  -	 Water consumption reduction / recycling / re-use projects.	
		  -	 New column system installed with 3 column instead of 17 column for chlorinated mixture distillation.	
	 	 -	 Installation of High Efficiency water screw chiller.	
		  -	 Started replacement of streetlight with LED light.	
	 	 -	 Installation of efficient Air Screw compressor to replace old reciprocating compressor.	
		  -	 Process optimization.
	 ii) 	 Steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy:	
		  -	 Utilisation of agro waste as boiler fuel.	
		  -	 Concentration & Incineration Plant for distillery effluent installed. This also generates green power. 	
		  -	 Commissioned 100 KW Rooftop Solar Power Plant (BOOT Basis). 
    	 iii)	 Capital investment on energy conservation equipments:  Rs. 37.73 cr.

B.	 TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION :.				  
      	  i) 	 Efforts made towards technology absorption:
		  -	 Optimization of process parameters from time to time to streamline the process.		
		  -	 Process control to minimize the waste generation at source.		
		  -	 Installation of Plate type heat exchanger (PHE) for molasses cooling. 		
		  -	 Replacing tubular heaters with PHE for clear juice heating.		
		  -	 Installation of state of art DCS (Distributed Control System) at Concentration and Incineration Plant.
	 	 -	 Installation of latest technology MEPA (maximum efficiency particulate abatement system) as pollution 

control device in new slop fired Boiler.	 	
		  -	 Variable frequency drive installed in place of Star Delta Starter for Cabling machine.		
		  -	 Installed MCCB (Moulded Case Circuit Breaker) in power supply to Ply Cabling Machines.		
		  -	 Automatic Changeover facility to alternate power sources provided in electrical control room.		
	 	 -	 Installed CCTV High-definition cameras with night vision at various locations.	 	
		  -	 Polypropylene filter press installed to handle the waste viscose regeneration process.	 	
		  -	 Replaced lead with the engineering plastic (FRVE) for corrosive liquid services.		
		  -	 Pneumatic Temperature Recorders & Controllers replaced with Electronic Temperature Recorders & 	
			   Controllers at various locations in the Plant.		
		  -	 Digital Timer Controlled Agitator Switch provided on all Dissolvers.		
		  -	 Audio-Visual High-Level alarms provided at the all the Spinbath Solution Return Boxes on Spinning machines.	
		  -	 Trapped by interlock installed on CS2 Measuring Vessels Filling value and Draining value of Baratte. 	
	 	 -	 Improvement in the process to reduce waste and energy saving.		
		  -	 Replacement of hazardous Raw Material to reduce risk, improve quality and cost reduction in one of the products.
		  -	 An Agreement was signed with M/S GAIA Automotives, Israel to design and manufacture Two Prototype 

Bullet Proof Vehicles at Israel and manufacturing of Four Prototype Vehicles at DSIL R&D facility at 		
Faridabad, India.

 			   DSIL had sent One Ford Endeavour 2.2 Ltr MT and One 3.2 Ltr AT Vehicle to the   M/S GAIA Automotives 
to manufacture two prototype vehicles. Payment as per contract was also made to the overseas Partner. 
The work was completed on the Two Prototype vehicles and both the Bullet Proof Vehicles have been 
received by DSIL at R&D Facilities at Faridabad. Team of M/s GAIA Automotives, Israel had also visited 
our R&D facility and manufactured four prototype vehicles in India. The Bullet Proof Vehicle manufactured 
are presently undergoing testing for Type Approval Certification at ARAI, Pune.	 	

			   Road mileage accumulation is being done of the vehicles.  The design, drawings and bill of material 
have 	 been obtained under the transfer of technology clause of our agreement.

		  -	 DSIL has signed a MOU with an overseas party for designing, development and manufacturing of 
Unmanned Aerial Vehicles (UAV). There are a few Tenders which have been floated by CRPF and one 
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is likely from the Army. Our partner is developing prototypes as per the specifications given in the CRPF 
Tenders.  We are likely to purchase and supply them as NCNC samples.

	 	 -	 We are also seeking technology for making Night Vision Devices from an Israeli partner.  An Agreement 
has been signed between us.  There are a few RFIs floated by the Army for sights.  The specifications 
have been shared and work on prototype is presently at hand. 

	 ii)  	Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:
		  -	 Through installation of new Plants viz., the MPD plant and the Concentration & Incineration Plant we have 

been able to reduce the steam consumption per litre of the product considerably, besides generation of 
green energy and also achieving zero liquid discharge from the Unit. 		

		  -	 Improvement in quality of products, de-bottlenecking to improve overall realisation, optimization of steam & power 
consumption, reduction in carbon foot print, lower costs and downtime, reduction in consumption in water & coal, 
reduction in liquid effluent, a cleaner and safer environment, lower waste generation at source, better realisation 
due to waste recovery, safe working, increased boiler throughput, time saving, and power factor improvement.

		  -	 We have obtained a world class design for Light Bullet Proof Vehicles. We will use this basic knowledge to design 
a whole range of Bullet Proof Vehicles including Light, Medium and Mine Protected Vehicles in the future. 

		  -	 We are developing prototypes with our foreign partners for hand launched Mini UAVs and Night Vision 
Devises. These will be fielded for NCNC trials with our security forces.

	 iii) 	Particulars of technologies imported during last three years:
		  -	 Basic Design methodology for manufacture of Bullet Proof Vehicles to meet the protection upto STANAG 1 Level. 	
	 	 -	 Setting up of a workshop equipped with all the infrastructure to fabricate upto four vehicles in a month.	
	 	 -	 Development of Tools, Jigs and Fixtures for mass production.		
		  -	 Training of Welders in Bullet Proof Steel and Aluminium sheets.		
	 iv) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development:  Rs. 5.96 cr.

C.	 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO 2019-2020: 
		  -  Total Foreign exchange earned Rs. 435.92 cr. and used Rs. 392.00 cr. 

1. 	 Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median of the employees of the Company for the financial year 2019-20 :
−	 Shri Tilak Dhar, Sr.MD (till 30.06.2019)	 -	 28 :1   
−	 Shri Alok B. Shriram, Sr.MD 	 - 	 113 :1 
−	 Shri Madhav B. Shriram, MD	 - 	 113 :1
−	 Smt. Urvashi Tilak Dhar, WTD (w.e.f. 14.08.2019)	 -   	 60 :1  
−	 Shri N.K. Jain, Director Finance & CFO (w.e.f. 01.11.2019)	 -    	  9 :1
−	 Shri K.N. Rao, Director & CEO (Rayons) (till 31.10.2019)	 -   	 16 :1    
−	 Shri P.R. Khanna, Ind. Director	 -    	  8 :1      
−	 Shri S.B. Mathur, Ind. Director	 -     	 9 :1  
−	 Shri Ravinder Narain, Ind. Director	 -     	 7 :1  
−	 Shri S.C. Kumar, Ind. Director	 -     	 8 :1  
−	 Shri C. Vikas Rao, Ind. Director	 -     	 6 :1  
−	 Ms. V. Kavitha Dutt, Ind. Director	 -     	 5 :1  
−	 Shri Sanjay C. Kirloskar, Ind Director 	 -     	 6 :1       

2. 	 The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, CFO and Company Secretary in the financial year 2019-20:
−	 Shri Tilak Dhar, Sr.MD	 :      	  –
−	 Shri Alok B. Shriram, Sr.MD	 :      	3.23
−	 Shri Madhav B. Shriram, MD	 :     	 3.23
−	 Smt. Urvashi Tilak Dhar, WTD	 :    	   NA
−	 Shri N.K. Jain, Director Finance & CFO	 :	     34.76 *
−	 Shri P.R. Khanna, Ind. Director	 :  	(-)3.33
−	 Shri S.B. Mathur, Ind. Director	 :   	   1.01   
−	 Shri Ravinder Narain, Ind. Director	 :  	(-)2.24 
−	 Shri S.C. Kumar, Ind. Director	 :  	(-)3.52  
−	 Shri C. Vikas Rao, Ind. Director	 :   	   1.20
−	 Ms. V. Kavitha Dutt, Ind. Director	 :  	(-)5.66 
−	 Shri Sanjay C. Kirloskar, Ind. Director	 :  	   44.05**  
−	 Shri Y.D. Gupta, Company Secretary 	 :    	  9.42      

3.  	 Percentage increase in the median 
     	 Remuneration of employees in the financial year	 :   	   7.11     
4.  	 Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company   	 :   	  2474
5. 	 Average increase in remuneration of employees other than managerial personnel during the year 2019-20 was 

8.06%, whereas the average managerial remuneration was increased by 5.38%. Three of the managerial personnel 
are entitled to commission on profits, as may be decided by the Board within the limit laid down by the shareholders, 
apart from salary and perquisites.  The Company’s profit for the year was substantially higher than the previous year 
and as such the remuneration of the managerial personnel was also increased comparing to last year. 

*  	 There has been increase in remuneration from 01.11.2019 upon elevation as Director Finance & CFO.
** 	 The remuneration for 2018-19 was for seven months only and hence the higher increase in percentage over previous year. 
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Corporate Governance Philosophy
Adhering to effective Corporate Governance practices ensure transparency and strengthen confidence of stakeholders 
in a company. Corporate Governance practices constitute the strong foundation on which successful enterprises are built 
to last. Corporate Governance and compliance are complimentary to each other. Good Corporate Governance ensures 
compliance of rules and regulations. This in turn ensures transparency. Governance is the management approach used 
to control and direct a company’s operations. Compliance is the process of conforming to specific requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts, strategies and policies, in achieving an organization’s objectives in a transparent manner. The 
Company’s Corporate Governance (CG) Policy is based on the above principles.  The Company firmly believes and adheres 
to the need for those in control of the Company to distinguish between personal and corporate interests while managing 
the affairs of the Company.  For the Company, adherence to Corporate Governance stems not merely from the letter of 
law but also from the inherent belief in doing fair business the right way.   

Annexure - 8

CORPORATE  GOVERNANCE REPORT

Statement of Particulars under Section 197(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies  
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forming part of the Report of 
Directors for the year ended March 31, 2020.

Annexure - 7

(A) 	 Name of top ten employees and the name of every employee who if employed throughout the year under review 
and were in receipt of remuneration for the year in aggregate of not less than Rs. 1,02,00,000/-.

	 Mr. Madhav B. Shriram is related to Mr. Alok B. Shriram.

(B) 	 Employed for part of the year under review and were in receipt of remuneration for part of the year in aggregate of 
not less than Rs.8,50,000/- per month.

	 Mr. Tilak Dhar and Mrs. Urvashi Tilak Dhar are related to Mr. Alok B. Shriram.

Name
Designation 
and Nature 
of Duties

Remuneration 
Received  

(Rs.)
Qualification Experience 

(Years)
Date of  

Commencement
Age 

(Years)
Particulars of Last 

Employment

Alok B. 
Shriram

Sr. Managing 
Director & CEO 30610855 B.Com (Hons)  40 01.01.1990 59

Dy. General Manager, 
Shriram Honda Power 
Equipment Ltd.

Madhav B. 
Shriram

Managing 
Director 30611012 B.Com.(Hons.)

MBA 32 22.05.1990 55 Executive Trainee, 
Nissho Iwai

Narayan Rao 
Karanam

President 
(Business 
Strategy)

6770003 B.Sc Engg.
(Mech.) 46 29.07.1991 70 Shriram Refrigeration 

Industries Ltd.

Anil Gujral CEO 
(Chemicals) 6466214 B.E(Hons.) 53 01.04.1992 74 Daurala Organics

Gyanendra 
Kumar Advisor to Sr. MD 5474518 Post Graduate 

Engineer from IIT 55 12.11.1965 78 DCM Limited

N.K. Jain Director Finance 
& CFO 5033372 CA 43 12.03.1991 69 Indo Rama Synthetics 

(India) Ltd.
Abraham 
Thomas COO (SUD) 4720376 B.Com 52 02.04.1990 73 ALSA Group. Chennai

Vinod Kumar 
Jaitly

COO (BG 
Rayons) 4632260 LLB, Diploma in 

Business Admn. 45 01.02.1993 65 UPTRON Ltd.

B.P. 
Khandelwal

Executive 
President 4146279 FCS, LLB 58 21.05.1990 79 Madan Mohan Lal 

Shriram Pvt. Ltd.

Girish Yajnik Sr. Vice 
President, DO 4093376 M.Sc, Organic 

Chemistry 35 16.03.1991 57 Indian Maize & Chemicals 
Ltd.

Name
Designation 
and Nature 
of Duties

Remuneration 
Received  

(Rs.)
Qualification Experience 

(Years)
Date of  

Commencement
Age 

(Years)
Particulars of Last 

Employment

Tilak Dhar
Sr. Managing 
Director (Up to 
30.06.2019)

7610939 B.Com., CA 
(Inter), MBA. 40 08.09.1980 64 Manager, DCM Ltd.

Urvashi 
Tilak Dhar

Director (w.e.f. 
14.08.2019) 16170386 Post Graduate 

(Sociology) -- 14.08.2019 64 --
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The Company’s CG philosophy in a nutshell encompasses five areas viz. Rights and equitable treatment of shareholders, 
Interests of other stakeholders, Role and responsibility of the Board, Integrity & ethical behavior and disclosure & transparency. 
The Company ensures full compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance under the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR Regulations). 

The CG Report in respect of the year ended 31.03.2020 is given below:

Board of Directors
The Company’s Board comprises of an ideal combination of executive and non-executive directors, headed by a non-
executive independent Chairman.  Of the 11 directors, 4 are executive directors. Three executive directors represent the 
promoters. Six non-executive directors are independent directors, one is nominee director, representing Life Insurance 
Corporation of India. They are all persons of eminence with experience in the fields of finance, law, trade or industry.  
The Board’s composition is in consonance with the CG requirements under Regulation 17 of the LODR Regulations and 
Section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.  

Board Meetings, attendance and other directorships
During the year five Board meetings were held on 27.05.2019, 17.07.2019, 13.08.2019, 29.10.2019 and 10.02.2020. 
Attendance and other details are given below: 

S. 
No

Name of Director DIN Category of 
Directorship

No. of 
Board

Meetings
Attended

Atten-
dance
at last 
AGM

Other Direc-
tor-ships*

No. of Committee 
Memberships ** 

(other companies)
Member Chairman

1 Shri S.B. Mathur 00013239 Chairman 
(Non-
executive 
Independent)

5 Yes 3 5 4

2 Shri Tilak Dhar (ex-
pired on 01.07.2019)

00204912 Sr. MD 
(Promoter)

0 N.A.

3 Shri Alok B. Shriram 00203808 Sr. MD 
(Promoter)

5 Yes Nil Nil Nil

4 Shri Madhav B 
Shriram

00203521 MD  
(Promoter)

4 Yes Nil Nil Nil

5 Smt. Urvashi 
Tilak Dhar (w.e.f 
14.08.2019)

00294265 WTD  
(Promoter)

2 N.A. Nil Nil Nil

6 Shri K N Rao (term 
ended on 31.10.2019)

06730043 WTD 4 Yes

7 Shri Nalin Kumar Jain 
(w.e.f 01.11.2019)

00203581 Director 
Finance & 
CFO

1 N.A. NIL Nil Nil

8 Shri P.R. Khanna 00048800 Non-
executive/ 
Independent 

5 Yes 1 2 Nil

9 Shri Ravinder Narain 00059197 “ 5 Yes Nil Nil NiL

10 Shri Samir Chandra 
Kumar   

00064453 “ 5 Yes Nil Nil Nil

11 Shri Collu Vikas Rao 06900458 Nominee 
Director

5 Yes Nil Nil Nil

12 Ms. V. Kavitha Dutt  00139274 Non-
executive/ 
Independent

5 Yes 2 3 1

13 Shri Sanjay Chan-
drakant Kirloskar

00007885 “ 3 Yes 2 1 Nil

	 *		 Exclude directorships in private limited companies/foreign companies/ companies   registered   u/s 8 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

	 **	 Audit and Stakeholders' Relationship Committees.

Shri Madhav B. Shriram is related to Shri Alok B. Shriram, Sr. MD.
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Details of Directorships in other listed entities:

S. 
No.

Name of Directors Name of Listed Entities where the 
person is a Director

Category of Directorship

1. Shri S B Mathur ITC Limited Independent Director

Ultratech Cement Limited Independent Director

Thomas Cook (India) Ltd. Independent Director

2 Shri Tilak Dhar
(expired on 01.07.2019)

Kirloskar Brother Ltd. Additional Director

3 Shri Alok B. Shriram Nil Nil

4 Shri Madhav B Shriram Nil Nil

5 Smt. Urvashi Tilak Dhar Nil Nil

6 Shri Nalin Kumar Jain Nil Nil

7 Shri Prithvi Raj Khanna Indag Rubber Limited Independent Director

8 Shri Ravinder Narain Nil Nil

9. Shri Samir Chandra Kumar   Nil Nil

10 Shri Collu Vikas Rao Nil Nil

11 Ms. V. Kavitha Dutt  The KCP Limited Managing Director

Centum Electronics Limited Independent Director

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited Independent Director

12 Shri Sanjay Chandrakant 
Kirloskar 

Kirloskar Brothers Limited Managing Director

KPT Industries Limited Independent Director

The Independent Directors had scheduled a separate meeting pursuant to Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 on 
27.03.2020. The meeting was cancelled due to the lock down. However, such a meeting was held on 29.05.2020 through 
video conferencing.  In the said meeting the Independent Directors, inter alia, evaluated the performance of Executive 
Directors (non-independent directors), Chairman, the Board as a whole and the Committees.  

Number of shares and Convertible Instruments held by Non-executive Directors in the Company are as under:

Name of Non-executive Director Number of shares held (equity shares 
of Rs.10 each)

1 Shri P.R. Khanna 960

2 Shri Ravinder Narain 570

3 Ms. V. Kavitha Dutt 500

4 Shri S.B. Mathur --

5 Shri S.C. Kumar --

6 Shri C. Vikas Rao --

7 Shri Sanjay C. Kirloskar --

Familiarization programme for independent directors 
As, except Shri Sanjay C. Kirloskar all other independent directors have been on the Board of the Company for over 5 years 
and they are fully familiar with the operations of the Company. Shri Sanjay C. Kirloskar visited the Units of the Company 
located at Daurala, Meerut District and familiarize with their operations. He may visit Shriram Rayons Unit at Kota at an 
opportune time. The Board of Directors had laid down a Familiarization Programme for independent directors, copy of 
which is placed on the Company's website - 

http://www.dcmsr.com/other_files/Familiarization%20Programme%20for%20Independent%20Directors.pdf.
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Core Skills, expertise and competence of Board of Directors
The Board comprises of highly qualified and experienced members who possesses required skills, expertise and competence 
which allow them  to make effective contributions to the functioning of the Board and its committees. The core skills/expertise/
competencies required in the Board in the context of the Company’s business functioning effectively as identified by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company are tabulated below:

Name of 
Directors

Core Skills / Expertise /Competencies
Leadership/
Operational 
Experience

Strategic 
Planning

Sector/Industry 
Knowledge & 

Experience, R&D 
Innovation

Technology Financial, 
Regulatory/
Legal & risk 

Mgmt.
S B Mathur • • • • •
Alok B Shriram • • • • •
Madhav B Shriram • • • • •
Urvashi Tilak Dhar • • • • •
N K Jain • • • • •
P R Khanna • • • • •
Ravinder Narain • • • • •
S C Kumar • • • • •
C Vikas Rao • • • • •
V Kavitha Dutt • • • • •
S C Kirloskar • • • • •

Independent Directors
The Board confirm that in its opinion the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in Section 149 and Schedule 
IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and they are independent 
of the management.   

None of the Independent Directors resigned before their tenure in the Company during the year under report.

Audit Committee     
Terms of reference
The composition, terms of reference and role of the Audit Committee are as per requirements of Regulation 18 of LODR 
Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, besides other terms as may be laid down by the Board of 
Directors, from time to time.  

The Audit Committee, inter alia, ensures that an effective internal financial control system is in place. During the year 4 
meetings of the Audit Committee were held on 27.05.2019, 13.08.2019, 29.10.2019 and 10.02.2020.

The Audit Committee comprised of three non-executive independent directors and one executive director. The Company 
Secretary is the Secretary of this Committee. The attendance at these meetings was as follows:

Name of the Member Status No. of Meetings attended
Shri P.R. Khanna Chairman 4
Shri S.B. Mathur Member 4
Shri  S.C. Kumar Member 4
Shri K.N. Rao  
(ceased w.e.f. 31.10.2019) Member 3

Shri Madhav B. Shriram  
(joined w.e.f 01.11.2019) Member 1

All the Members have extensive financial and accounting knowledge/ background and the Chairman is an expert in accounting 
and financial management being a Fellow member of ICAI.  Apart from the members, all the Executive Directors, Executive 
President, CFO, Head of Internal Audit, and representative(s) of the Statutory Auditors attend the meetings of the Committee.   

The Minutes of the meetings of the Committee are placed before the Board.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee   
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) carries out the functions as per Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 
and Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The composition of the Committee is given below.  
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Name of the Member Status No. of Meetings attended
Shri S.C. Kumar Chairman 5
Shri S.B. Mathur Member 5
Shri P.R. Khanna  Member 5
Shri Ravinder Narain Member 5
Shri Sanjay C. Kirloskar Member 3

During the year five meetings of the Committee was held on 27.05.2019, 17.07.2019, 13.08.2019, 29.10.2019 & 10.02.2020.

All the members of the NRC were present at the AGM. 

The NRC, inter alia, laid down the criteria for evaluation of the Board, its Committees, Directors and the Chairperson based 
on Guidance note issued by SEBI on 05.01.2017.  The criteria are followed by the Board and the Independent Directors in 
the evaluation process.  A gist of the criteria is given in Annexure 2 of the Directors’ Report.

Remuneration Policy
The Board on the recommendation of the NRC had laid down a Remuneration Policy for the Company in line with the 
requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.  A gist of the policy has been given in the Directors’ Report. A copy 
of the Policy has been put on the web-site of the Company -  http://www.dcmsr.com/other_files/remuneration%20policy.pdf.

The details of remuneration of executive directors for the year ended 31.03.2020 are given below: 

Whole-time Directors Salary Commission/ Reward Perquisites Retirement benefits
Shri Tilak Dhar  (Sr. MD)  
(till 30.06.2019) 18.00 38.93 14.31 4.86

Shri Alok B. Shriram (Sr. MD) 70.80 172.21 43.98 19.11
Shri Madhav B. Shriram (MD) 69.60 173.08 44.63 18.79
Smt. Urvashi Tilak Dhar 
(WTD) (w.e.f 14.08.2019)

41.69 85.77 22.98 11.25

Shri K N Rao (till 31.10.2019) 15.54 12.50 11.04 4.19
Shri N K Jain [Director Finance & 
CFO] w.e.f 01.11.2019

14.40 9.58 3.24

(Rs./lakh)

Non-Executive Directors Sitting fees  
(Rs./lakhs)

Commission
(Rs./lakhs)

No. of Shares held
(equity/ Rs.10 each)

Shri S.B. Mathur* 6.50 17.29 --

Shri P.R. Khanna* 6.75 16.29 960

Shri Ravinder Narain 4.00 14.29 570

Shri S.C. Kumar 5.25 16.29 --

Shri C. Vikas Rao 2.50 11.29 --

Ms. V. Kavitha Dutt 3.00 13.29 500

Mr. Sanjay C. Kirloskar 2.25 13.30 --

The appointments are contractual in nature and can be determined by either party by giving notice as per their terms 
of appointment or lesser notice as may be agreed to.  In the event of termination of appointment by the Company, the 
managerial personnel shall be entitled to compensation in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act.  No stock 
options were issued by the Company to its directors/ employees.  

Non-executive directors are paid sitting fees for attending the Board and Committee meetings.  Presently the sitting fees is 
Rs.50,000 per Board meeting and Rs.25,000 per Committee meeting.  The shareholders in their meeting held on 10.08.2016 
accorded their approval for payment of commission on profits of up to 1% of the net profit of the Company, computed 
in the manner laid down u/s 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, in such amount and proportion as may be decided by the 
Board of Directors to non-executive directors. The details of the sitting fee and commission paid for the year 2019-20 to 
non-executive directors are given below.  Their shareholdings in the Company are also as under:

*  The sitting fees of Rs.25,000 each to Shri S.B.Mathur & P.R.Khanna for the meeting of the  Approving Borrowings 
Committee held on 21.03.2020  were paid subsequent to financial year 2019-20 and hence not included above

Except a fixed deposit of Rs.10 lakh in the name of Shri P.R. Khanna, ID, another fixed deposit of Rs.10 lakh in the name 
of P.R. Khanna (HUF) and a deposit of Rs.17.50 lakh in the name of Mrs. Kiran Khanna, wife of Shri P.R. Khanna, there 
have been no other pecuniary relationships with the non-executive directors vis-a-vis the Company during the year. The 
terms of the deposits are as applicable to other depositors.
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Stakeholders' Relationship Committee
The Committee monitors shareholders’ complaints, if any, and also approves transfer/ transmission of shares.  The 
Committee meets on need basis.  

During the year one meeting of the Committee was held on 10.02.2020, which was attended by all members.   The 
composition of the Committee is as under: 

All the members of the Committee attended the AGM on 13.08.2019. Shri Y.D. Gupta, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer. 

During the year 2019-2020, the Company received seven shareholders' complaints all of which were resolved to the 
satisfaction of the shareholders.

General Body Meetings
The last three Annual General Meetings (AGM) were held at New Delhi, as under:

Name of the Members Status
Shri P.R. Khanna Chairman
Shri Tilak Dhar (expired on 01.07.2019)  Member 
Shri Alok B. Shriram Member
Shri Ravinder Narain Member
Shri Madhav B. Shriram (w.e.f. 01.04.2019) Member 

No Special resolution was proposed in the AGMs held in the years 2016- 2017 & 2017-18. In the year 2018-19, a special 
resolution was passed for the re-appointment of Ms. V Kavitha Dutt (w.e.f 02.02.2020), an Independent Director on the Board. 

Postal Ballot
No special resolution was passed last year through postal ballot and no special resolution is proposed to be passed by 
postal ballot presently.

Means of communication
The Company publishes quarterly, half-yearly and annual results as required under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015 
in the prescribed format. The results are published in one English and one Hindi daily.  During the year under review the 
results were published in the Financial Express and the Jansatta. The unabridged version of the results is uploaded on 
the Bombay Stock Exchange Listing portal, which is available on its web-site, www.bseindia.com.  The results are also put 
on the Company's website http://www.dcmsr.com/inv_rel_1.html#tab4.  The Company has not released any official news 
release and has not made any presentation to the institutional investors or to the analysts during the year. 

The notice of the AGM along with Annual Report is sent to the shareholders well in advance of the AGM. In cases where 
the email IDs are notified the same is sent by email.  The gist of the notice is also published in newspapers.  In addition, 
the Stock Exchange is notified of any material developments or price sensitive information as required under Regulation 
30 of the LODR Regulations. Disclosures with regard to shareholding pattern, change in major shareholding, quarterly 
secretarial capital audit report, CG compliance report, etc. are also sent to the Stock Exchange as required under various 
Regulations.  The Company has a website – https://www.dcmsr.com – in which general information about the Company, 
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, Remuneration Policy, Shareholding Pattern, Related Party Transaction Policy, 
Quarterly/ Annual results, Code of Conduct framed under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, etc. have 
been posted.  Particulars of unclaimed dividend/ deposits, etc. are also posted on the website for information of investors.  

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
Ministry of Corporate Affairs had notified Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer 
and Refund) Rules, 2016 effective from 7.9.2016.  As per the Rules, unclaimed/ unpaid dividends are to be transferred 
to IEPF at the end of 7 years.  The shares in respect of which dividend have not been claimed for 7 consecutive years or 
more shall also be transferred to the IEPF following the prescribed procedure.  The Company had in compliance with the 
Rules transferred 406365 equity shares held by 27848 shareholders to IEPF in the month of December, 2017.  No unpaid 
dividend/ unclaimed shares were due for transfer to IEPF by the Company, during the year 2019-20. The shares and dividend 
transferred in the previous year(s) can be claimed from the IEPF after complying with the prescribed requirements.  As 
per the Rules the holders of such shares cannot exercise any of the rights attached to the shares unless the shares are 
reclaimed from the IEPF.

Financial Year Date Time Venue

2016-2017 22/08/2017 10:00 A.M. Kamani Auditorium, Copernicus Marg, 
New Delhi – 110 001

2017-2018 11/08/2018 10:00 A.M. - Do – 
2018-2019 13/08/2019 11:00 A M - Do – 
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General Shareholder Information  
The ensuing AGM will be held on Wednesday, the 02nd September, 2020 at 11:00 A.M. through video conferencing/ other 
audio video means as permitted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in view of the COVID-19 pandemic. The detailed 
procedures in this regard are given in the Notice for the eAGM and also will be notified in newspapers.

Financial Year – April to March

Cut-off Date 
The cut-off date for deciding the entitlement for casting e-vote etc is 26th August, 2020.

Dividend
Considering the economic slowdown and the uncertainties being faced by business in every  Sector and the need to preserve 
resources to meet future liabilities and commitments during the year 2020-21, the Board decided that the interim dividend 
of Rs.5 per equity share (50%) paid in March, 2020, be taken as the final dividend for the year 2019-20. 

Listing on Stock Exchange
The shares in the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001.   

It is confirmed that the Company has paid Annual Listing Fee to the above Stock Exchange.  The Company's stock code 
on BSE is 523369.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents and Share Transfer System
KFIN Technologies Pvt. Ltd. is the share transfer agent of the Company, having the following addresses:

    Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, 	    New Delhi House, 305, 3rd Floor, 
    Gachibowli, Financial District.		  Barakhamba Road, 
    Nanakramguda, Hyderabad – 500 032		  New Delhi - 110001
    Phone 040-67161500/ 18003454001		  Phone 011-43681700   
    Email ID: einward.ris@kfintech.com 	 	

Market price of DSIL’s Share (BSE)								             (Rs.)

BSE Sensex Data									         (in points)

DCM Shriram Industries Ltd.’s Share Price Vs. BSE Sensex 

Month April 2019 May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. 2020 Feb. Mar.
High 190 230 198 189 163 174 187 186 172 196 180 151
Low 175 175 167 141 138 145 150 150 146 166 139 84

Month April 2019 May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. 2020 Feb. Mar.
High 39487 40125 40312 40032 37808 39441 40392 41164 41810 42274 41709 39083
Low 38460 36956 38871 37128 36102 35988 37416 40014 40135 40477 38220 25639
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The shareholders/ investors may also write to the Company at its Registered Office for any grievance/ share transfer related 
matters to enable the Company to get the matter sorted out expeditiously.  

In order to expedite transmission of shares in physical form, the Board had delegated authority to the Company Secretary 
to approve transmission of up to 2000 shares in any one case at a time. Such shares are registered and the certificates 
are returned, duly endorsed, within a fortnight’s time of completion of documents by the Registrars.  Beyond 2000 shares, 
in any one case, transmission is approved by Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

Distribution of Shareholding

Nominal value of Shareholding Shareholders Face Value
(Rs.) Number                   %age (Rs.)                   %age

Up to  5000 50095 98.28 1,35,46,380 7.78
5001 To 10000 427 0.83 32,66,450 1.87
10001 To 20000 218 0.42 32,80,030 1.88
20001 To 30000 79 0.15 19,87,710 1.14
30001 To 40000 26 0.05 9,10,740 0.52
40001 To 50000 28 0.05 12,89,200 0.74
50001 To 100000 45 0.08 33,19,760 1.90
100001 &   Above 49 0.09 14,63,84,100

TOTAL 50967 100% 17,39,84,370  100%

Category No. of shares held (in lakhs) Percentage
Promoters 81.57 46.88
FIs, Banks & Mutual funds 11.64 6.70
Others (public) 80.76 46.52

TOTAL 173.98 100.00

Shareholding pattern

Dematerialization of shares
The shares in the Company are under compulsory dematerialized trading. Up to 31.03.2020, 168.93 Lakh out of 173.98 
Lakh (97.09%) equity shares in the Company have been dematerialized. The Company's ISIN No. is INE843D01019.

Outstanding instruments
The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs and no convertible instrument is outstanding.

Plant locations
Daurala Sugar Works 	 Shriram Rayons	 Daurala Organics		
Daurala, Meerut (U.P.)	 Shriram Nagar, Kota (Raj.) 	 Daurala, Meerut (U.P.)	

Address for correspondence with the Company:
‘Investor Service Section’
5th Floor, Kanchenjunga Building,
18, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi – 110001.
e-mail ID – investorservices@dcmsr.com
CIN - L74899DL1989PLC035140

Credit Ratings
Credit ratings obtained by the Company are as under:

Instrument Rating Remarks
Fixed Deposit CARE A + (FD) Reaffirmed on 16.09.2019  

Valid  till 15.09.2020
Short term bank facilities CARE A1 + Reaffirmed on 16.09.2019  

Valid  till 15.09.2020
Long term facilities CARE A + Reaffirmed on 16.09.2019  

Valid  till 15.09.2020

Other Disclosures
a)	 There have been no materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interest 

of the Company at large. 
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b) 	 There has been no instance of non-compliance by the Company of any requirements related to capital markets during 
the last 3 years. 

c)	 The Board of Directors have established a Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) for the Company and no personnel 
has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

d) 	 The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements. Regarding non-mandatory requirements, the Company 
has endeavored to move towards a regime of financial statements with unmodified audit opinion.  The Internal auditors’ 
reports are submitted to the Audit Committee, which interacts with them directly. 

e) 	 The policies regarding determination of material subsidiary and related party transactions are available on the Company’s 
website http://www.dcmsr.com/other_files/mspolicy.pdf

f)	 The policy on dealing with related party transactions is available on the Company’s website http://www.dcmsr.com/
other_files/related%20party%20trx%20policy.pdf

g)	 The Company is not engaged in commodity trading on the Commodity Exchange/s.

h)	 The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment / qualified institutions placement as specified 
under Regulation 32(7A) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, during the year 2019-20.

i)	 A certificate from M/s. Chandrasekaran & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, confirms that none of the 
Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
Directors of companies by SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such statutory authorities.

j)	 There has been no case where the Board did not accept any recommendation of any of the Committees of the Board.

k)	 The total fees paid by the Company and its subsidiary to the Statutory Auditors of the Companies during the year 
2019-20 are given below:

Auditors Amount (Rs./ lakh)
Company – BSR & Co. LLP -  Statutory Audit

-  Others 
25.00
34.21

Subsidiary – SR Dinodia & Co. -  Statutory Audit
-  Others 

0.59
0.71

Particulars No. of Folios No. of Shares

Outstanding shares in the suspense 
Account as on 1st April, 2019.

513 8126

Number of shareholders approached listed entity for transfer of shares from 
suspense account during the year 2019-20.

0 0

Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense 
account during the year 2019-20.

0 0

Shares transferred to IEPF as per IEPF Rules 2016 (for the year 2019-20) 0 0

Outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at the end of 31.3.2020 513 8126

	 No other payment has been made to any entity, which is linked to the above statutory auditors.

l)  	 No complaint was received under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and redressal) 
Act, 2013.

	 The Company has complied with all the requirements of Corporate Governance and CG Report as per Regulations 17 
to 27, 46 and Schedule V(C) of LODR Regulations so far as they apply to the Company.

Demat Suspense Account / Unclaimed Suspense Account
The position with regard to the unclaimed equity shares, transferred to the Demat Suspense Account as required under 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, is as under:

The voting rights on the above shares remain frozen till the shares are released to the rightful owners.
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

To the Members of DCM Shriram Industries Limited
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by DCM Shriram Industries Limited for the 
year April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020 as required under Schedule V(E) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management.  Our examination was 
limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions 
of	Corporate	Governance.		It	is	neither	an	audit	nor	an	expression	of	opinion	on	the	fi	nancial	statements	of	the	Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company 
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

We state during the year April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020, seven investor grievances were received and no investor 
grievances were pending against the Company as per the records maintained by the Company as on 31.3.2020.

We	further	state	that	such	compliance	is	neither	an	assurance	as	to	the	future	viability	of	the	Company	nor	the	effi	ciency	
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Upender Jajoo & Associates,
Company Secretaries in Whole-time Practice

SD/-
                            (Upender Jajoo) 
            M No. 10155
New Delhi                                                                                                                                               CP No. 14336
Date: June 28, 2020        UDIN:F010155B000404725

Confi rmation of compliance of Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

I	declare	that	all	Board	members,	Key	Managerial	and	Senior	Management	personnel	have	individually	affi	rmed	compliance	
with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics adopted by the Company during the year 2019-20. 

June 27, 2020

(Alok B. Shriram)
Senior Managing Director & CEO

(DIN 00203808)

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To
The Members, 
DCM Shriram Industries Limited 
Kanchenjunga Building 18, 
Barakhamba Road 
New Delhi-110001

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of DCM Shriram 
Industries	Limited	and	having	CIN	L74899DL1989PLC035140	and	having	registered	offi	ce	at	Kanchenjunga	Building	18,	
Barakhamba Road New Delhi -110 001  (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company 
for	the	purpose	of	issuing	this	Certifi	cate,	in	accordance	with	Regulation	34(3)	read	with	Schedule	V	Para-C	Sub	clause	
10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

	In	our	opinion	and	to	the	best	of	our	information	and	according	to	the	verifi	cations	(including	Directors	Identifi	cation	Number	
(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and  explanations furnished to  us by  the  Company  
&	its	offi	cers,	We	hereby	certify	that	none	of	the	Directors	on	the	Board	of	the	Company	as	stated	below	for	the	Financial	

with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics adopted by the Company during the year 2019-20. 

(Alok B. Shriram)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
The Company’s business comprises of Sugar, Alcohol, Co-generation of Power, Hand Sanitizer, Fine Chemicals and 
Rayon, with manufacturing facilities at Daurala (U.P.) and Kota (Rajasthan). The Directors’ Report gives segment-wise/ 
product-wise performance and future outlook of these operations.  The Directors’ Report also deals with internal financial 
control systems, their adequacy, risk and concerns.    

The industry situation and competitive scenarios for the various products are given below:-

Sugar
India is a major international sugar player being the largest consumer and second largest producer of sugar in the world. In 
India, the Sugar Industry plays an important role in the rural economy especially in Uttar Pradesh, Maharashtra and Karnataka. 
Sugar Industry impacts a large number of stakeholders comprising of farmers, consumers, workers, traders and transporters. 

Traditionally, Indian sugar industry had a cyclical nature with high production during three years and followed by low production 
in two years. This helped in maintaining sugar stocks at reasonable levels. However, with propagation of better cane varieties 
having higher yield and sucrose content, the domestic sugar production has been on the rise and during last few years, the 
Industry is straddled with high sugar stocks resulting in storage and liquidity problems. Additionally, the returns on cane crop 
are assured and higher compared to other crops resulting in farmers continuing to grow cane despite mounting cane dues.

The Government has taken some positive steps to address the high sugar stocks and for last few years, support is being 
extended for export against quota declared by the Government. Additionally, from last year, Government has relaxed sugar 
norms to allow production of Anhydrous Alcohol from `B’ heavy molasses and cane juice. To augment distillery capacities, 
soft loans have been advanced by the Government. Though, these steps have helped in managing sugar stocks continued 
support of Government is necessary to keep the Industry afloat. 

The demand for sugar has been rising at a nominal 1 – 2 percent but during the current year the same has been hit due to 
nationwide lock-down on account of global pandemic Covid-19. Government has announced package to provide liquidity but 
more needs to be done. Further, the impact of Covid-19 is expected to last for at least one year with consumption expected 

S. No. Name of director DIN Date of appointment in Company
1 Sanjay Chandrakant Kirloskar 00007885 01/09/2018
2 Sunil Behari Mathur 00013239 14/01/2008
3 Prithvi Raj Khanna 00048800 05/10/2005
4 Ravinder Narain 00059197 29/01/2008
5 Samir Chandra Kumar 00064453 10/02/2013
6 Velagapudi Kavitha Dutt 00139274 02/02/2015
7 Madhav Bansidhar Shriram 00203521 05/10/2005
8 Alok Bansidhar Shriram 00203808 01/04/1992
9 Urvashi Tilak Dhar 00294265 14/08/2019

10 Nalin Kumar Jain 00203581 01/11/2019
11 Collu Vikas Rao 06900458 14/08/2014

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the manage-
ment of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither 
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management 
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Chandrasekaran Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

								          Dr. S. Chandrasekaran  
Senior Partner

							       Membership No. FCS 1644
New Delhi                                                                                                                               Certificate of Practice No. 715  	
Date: June 16, 2020                                                                                                                UDIN: F001644B000345834

Year ending on March 31, 2020 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of com-
panies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority:
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to remain low as curbs on social gatherings, celebrations, weddings and hospitality sector continue. Further, people are 
also avoiding cold drinks and ice creams to avoid falling sick. FMCGs and beverages companies are working on reduced 
capacities. Overall, demand is expected to be lower by 2 - 3 Million MT, if the situation persists beyond one year.

In the current year, the International prices of white sugar were stable at around     US$ 350 per MT due to expected global 
shortage of 6 -7 Million MT.  However, considering wide  fall in crude prices, Brazil is expected to divert more cane towards 
sugar in the next season. This is expected to dampen the International sugar prices and Government’s higher support would 
be required in the next season.  

The alcohol business is steady with alcohol prices remaining stable, but the Uttar Pradesh Government has been increasing 
reservation of molasses for producing country liquor. This is affecting the profitability of the Industry.  Overall, the alcohol 
business is growing at a decent rate. Many players have started producing Anhydrous Alcohol from ̀ B’ heavy molasses and 
some have also quoted to supply to OMCs from cane juice. 

The crude prices have fallen sharply to below US$50 per barrel because of global slow down due to Covid-19 and price 
competition between Russia & Saudi Arabia. The domestic petroleum requirement has been hit because of country wide lock-
down resulting in lower pick-up of Anhydrous Alcohol by Oil Marketing Companies. The situation is expected to normalize as 
Government relaxes the lock-down. The Alcohol Industry, including DSW, has started producing alcohol based hand sanitizers.

Going forward, the sugar stocks are expected to be high because of higher sugar production projected in next season. This 
will create liquidity and storage problems. The Government needs to keep supporting sugar exports and take other measures 
like keeping cane prices unchanged, increase buffer stock quantity, advance soft loans, etc. Additionally, to encourage lower 
production of sugar, prices of anhydrous alcohol produced from ̀ B’ heavy and cane juice need to be kept remunerative. The 
sugar industry is expected to perform satisfactorily despite above challenges.

Rayon
Shriram Rayons manufactures Rayon tyre yarn, greige and treated fabric. The products are predominantly used as reinforcement 
material in high performance tyres. The Unit is exporting the products to major international tyre manufacturers in various countries.

Initially the tyre companies had indicated good volumes for the Unit to achieve full capacity utilisation. However, the actual lifting 
during the year was lower due to recessionary economic conditions, which were further aggravated by worldwide lockdown, 
due to Covid-19 pandemic, started in the last quarter of the financial year.

The Unit adjusted its production according to reduced market requirement during the year. Various cost reduction measures 
were also taken. These along with reduced prices of inputs, helped the Unit in maintaining the operating margins even with 
lower volumes.

The Unit has built up capability to supply treated fabric which is a readily usable product and is preferred by the tyre companies. 
The treated fabric share in export has been growing and constituted 80% of the exported volume during the year.

The Unit has been working continuously to increase its market share by seeking approvals from other plants of the customers 
and also becoming a major supplier in China and other new markets outside Europe. Based on market assessment, the Unit 
initiated implementation of a capacity expansion project. The project was partly operationalised. The project for installation 
of a new dipping unit with state-of-the-art technology is in an advance stage of implementation. However, lockdown due to 
Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in delay in the completion of the project.

The Unit has been implementing energy related projects in previous years to reduce energy cost and increase use of agro-
fuel.  Operationalisation of project for installation of one agro-fuel boiler and an extraction cum condensing turbine to increase 
captive generation helped in reducing the energy cost. During the year agrofuel consumption increased to 92% and the fossil 
fuel consumptions reduced to 8%. In addition, captive power generation was also increased to improve reliability and reduce 
drawl of costly grid power.

The Unit is already operating a One MW Solar Power Plant. The same is working satisfactorily, supplementing the grid/ captive 
power. Installation of one more One MW Solar Power Plant is in progress and is expected to be operationalized in next year.

The Unit continued its efforts to reduce, recycle and reuse water and achieved reduction in water consumption.

The Unit is continuously upgrading the monitoring and control system for effluent and gas emissions. The effluent monitoring 
data is being transmitted online to pollution monitoring agencies of the State and Central Government on real time basis.

Chemicals
The Chinese competitors for our main products continued to face stricter inspections from their environment authorities on 
waste disposal.  As a result, international prices of our main products continued at reasonable levels. 

The Company strengthened its financial performance in the Chemicals Business by increased production and sales of high 
value, high margin products, and reducing costs through energy savings, and improved efficiencies in some processes, 
through intensive R&D / technology upgradation. 
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The Company continued its efforts towards debottlenecking of capacities based on market opportunities. 

Also, the Company is evaluating several new Projects with interesting prospects, and propose to rapidly conclude on the 
way ahead for some of these. 

Financial Ratios
Following are ratios for the current financial year and their comparison with preceding financial year. The changes have 
been less than 25% and as such no explanations are required.

Sl. 
No.

Ratio 
description Unit 2018-19 2019-20 Change 

%

1 Debtors turnover No. of times 9.50 9.57 0.07

2 Inventory turnover No. of times 1.87 1.79 -0.08

3 Interest coverage ratio No. of times 5.63 3.78 -1.85

4 Current ratio No. of times 1.21 1.30 0.09

5 Debt equity ratio No. of times 0.18 0.33 0.15

6 Operating profit margin % 8.00 9.38 1.38

7 Net profit margin % 4.36 4.76 0.40

8 Return on Net worth % 15.41 15.39 -0.02

Material Development in human resources/ industrial relations front
The Company's HR philosophy continues to be that a dedicated, enlightened and contented work force is the lifeline for 
any business to achieve its goals.  Strength of any organization is its employees. The Company's focus on HR always is on 
development of a work force to meet the present and future challenges with adequate skills. A concerted effort has been 
initiated to induct fresh and youthful talents at various disciplines with a long term perceptive. The Company believes that 
a contented work force is the pillar of the organization. 

Industrial relations remained cordial in all operations during the year.  As on 31.03.2020 the total number of employees 
on the Company's pay roll was 2474. 

Corporate Social Responsibility has always been integral to the business policy of the Company.  The Company undertakes/ 
supports several activities in and around the areas where its operations are located to ensure that the expenditure being 
incurred by the Company on CSR activities benefits the maximum people in those areas.  The activities cover promotion 
of education and cultural activities, health including preventive health care, rural development, environment protection and 
infrastructure development.

Environment protection
The Company gives utmost importance to environment protection in and around the areas, where its operations are located.  
Tree plantation is an on-going activity both at Daurala and Kota.  This activity not only improves the quality of air in the 
area, but also mitigates greenhouse emissions, which are the major cause of global warming.  The emphasis continues 
to be on using environment friendly agrofuels for power generation in place of fossil fuels.   Effluent treatment plants are 
maintained for utmost efficiency with technology.  

The Company's Units have progressively shifted to environment friendly fuels from fossil fuels for power generation.  DSW 
has fully eliminated use of coal and Shriram Rayons continue to use agrowaste fuels in place of fossil fuels to a large 
extent.  Research and innovation are ongoing activities in the Company to develop systems and measures to minimize 
emissions from its operations and remained environment friendly.

Covid-19 – Concerns & preventive measures
The health and wellbeing of the employees at all levels is of prime concern to the management.  As soon as the spread of 
Covid-19 has become known the Company initiated measures to ensure social distancing and observance of hygiene in 
all its offices and factories.  This was even before it was declared a pandemic by WHO and the lockdown announced by 
the Central Government from 25.03.2020. The Delhi offices of the Company made arrangements to work from home and 
closed down the work places for over 2 months.  There being no treatment in sight and the dangers posed by the virus 
and the fast pace at which it is spreading, the Company made special efforts to make the workers and other employees at 
all levels aware the need to prevent rather than seek cure, by adhering to the measures announced by the Government 
agencies from time to time.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF 
DCM SHRIRAM INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the standalone financial statements of DCM Shriram Industries Limited (“the Company”), which comprise 
the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income and expense), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of the 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31 March 2020, and profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the 
year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. 
Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone financial statements.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Description of Key Audit Matters
(a)	 Determination of net realizable value of inventory of sugar 
	 See note 2A(d) and 10 to the standalone financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
As at 31 March 2020, the Company has inventory of sugar 
with the carrying value of Rs. 48,768.12 lakhs. The inventory 
of sugar is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
We believe that the determination of net realizable value of 
inventory of sugar is a key audit matter considering the size of 
inventory in the financial statements and judgement involved 
in the consideration of factors including minimum sale price, 
regulatory intervention in determining periodical restrictions 
on quantity of sales, frequent fluctuations in selling prices and 
the related notifications and policies of the Government in this 
business segment.

We understood and tested control as established by the 
management in determination of net realizable value of 
inventory of sugar.
We have considered factors of actual selling prices prevailing 
around and subsequent to the year end, management 
estimation of scenarios of overall production and 
consumption of sugar, minimum selling price, notification of 
the Government of India, and other measures taken by the 
Government with respect to sugar industry as a whole.
Based on the above procedures performed, the management’s 
determination of the net realizable value of the inventory of 
sugar as at the year end is considered to be reasonable.

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Government authorities have issued various notifications 
impacting sugar mills. These include export of sugar along 
with compliances with several conditions to be eligible to 
get certain Government grants for offsetting the cost of cane 
crushed and to facilitate timely payment of farmers’ dues.

We evaluated the management’s assessment regarding 
reasonable certainty for complying with the relevant conditions 
as specified in the notifications/ policies and collections and 
tested control around it.

During the year, the Company has recognised grants/
assistance aggregating to Rs. 10,026.53 Lakhs for 
maintaining buffer stock and to fulfil the maximum admissible 
export quantity (MAEQ) as notified by the Government. These 
have been considered significant to the financial statements. 
These areas involved significant management judgement in 
recognition, considering stringent compliances. The areas 
of judgement include assessment of fulfilment of regulatory 
conditions, reliability of amounts recognised and timing of 
accruals. 

We obtained understanding of the relevant notifications/ 
policies issued by various authorities to assess the 
appropriateness of claims and related adjustments pursuant 
to any changes and basis for determination of claims.
We tested the ageing analysis and assessed the information 
used by the management to determine the realisability of claims 
and its corresponding accrual in the financial statements.
Based on the above procedures performed, the management’s 
estimates related to recognition of grants/ assistance are 
considered reasonable.

(b)	 Impact of Government policies/ notifications 
	 See note 2A(h) and 50 to the standalone financial statements
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The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
The Company has recognised Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit 
entitlement amounting to Rs. 4,328.99 Lakhs as at 31 March 2020. The 
utilisation of this asset will be by way of adjustment from taxes when the 
Company pays taxes under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 
Therefore, the recoverability of MAT credit entitlement is dependent upon 
generation of sufficient future taxable profits within the stipulated period 
prescribed under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Further, with effect from financial year 2019-20, the Income Tax Act provides 
an option of paying income taxes at a lower rate subject to complying with 
certain prescribed conditions (‘new tax regime’). The Company has opted 
to shift to the new tax regime from a financial year in the future.
Accordingly, the deferred tax balances which are expected to reverse 
subsequent to the Company shifting to the new tax regime in the specified 
future year were remeasured and the consequential amount has been 
recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss of the current year.
Assessment of recoverability of MAT credit entitlement and determination of the 
point in time at which the Company would shift to the new tax regime involves 
judgement and estimation (including consideration of uncertainties associated 
with COVID 19 pandemic) regarding forecasting future taxable profits.
Since the impact of remeasurement of deferred tax balances as stated above is 
sensitive to these judgements and estimates, it affects the amount of deferred 
tax balances (including MAT credit).
Given the volume and level of judgement involved, we have determined 
this to be a key audit matter.

We have examined the implications of the new 
provisions on the tax position of the Company 
to assess the impact of adopting the new tax 
regime from the specified future financial year.
We have obtained the budgets and business 
projections (including profit forecast) prepared 
by the Company and assessed these by 
comparing with the historical trends, current 
year performance and approved future business 
plans.
We have assessed the appropriateness of 
the management’s estimation, including key 
assumptions, of recoverability of MAT credit 
entitlement against the forecasted taxable 
profits and timing of shift to new tax regime 
which impacts the measurement of deferred tax 
balances. We also performed sensitivity analysis 
of the taxable profits for such assessment.
We have assessed the adequacy of related 
disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements.

(c)	 Recoverability of MAT credit entitlement and impact of adopting the new income tax regime 
	 See note 2A(f) and 38 to the standalone financial statements

Other Information
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/
loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the 
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate  internal  financial  controls that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
standalone financial statements. 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:
•	 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the 
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one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control;

•	 obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls;

•	 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors;

•	 conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

•	 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are, therefore, the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government  in terms of 

section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order, to the extent applicable.
(A)	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

	 a)	 we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were  
	 necessary for the purposes of our audit;

	 b)	 in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from  
	 our examination of those books;

	 c)	 the standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),  
	 the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement of cash flows, dealt with by this Report,  
	 are in agreement with the books of account;

	 d)	 in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act;
	 e)	 on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020 and taken on record by  

	 the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from being appointed as a director  
	 in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; and

	 f)	 with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company  
	 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

	 i.	 the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2020 on its financial position in its  
	 standalone financial statements - Refer Note 41 and 52 to the standalone financial statements;

	 ii.	 the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material  
	 foreseeable losses during the year ended 31 March 2020;

	 iii.	 there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection  
	 Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2020; and

	 iv.	 the disclosures in the standalone financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes  
	 during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made in these financial statements  
	 since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2020. 

(C)	 With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16): 
	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to 

its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid 
to any director is not in excess of the limits laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has 
not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

	 For B S R & Co. LLP
	 Chartered Accountants
	 Firm's Registration No. 1012482W/W-100022

	 Kaushal Kishore
                                                                                   	 Partner
Place: New Delhi                                                                                                       	Membership No. 090075
Date: 27.06.2020	 UDIN: 20090075AAAAAQ9356



60

Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of DCM Shriram Industries Limited on the 
Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.
(i)	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper records showing full  

	 particulars, including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a regular programme of physical 
verification of its property, plant and equipment, by which all property, plant and equipment are verified, in a 
phased manner, over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain 
assets have been physically verified by the management during the current year. As informed to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company and based on the confirmation obtained by the Company from the custodian of the title deeds, with whom 
the title deeds are deposited as security for loans and the examination of the registered sale deed/ transfer deed/ 
conveyance deed, provided to us, we report that  the title deeds of the immovable property are held in the name of 
the Company, except for:

Situated at Whether leasehold 
/ freehold

Gross block as at  
31 March 2020 (Rs. in lakhs)

Net block as at  
31 March 2020 (Rs. in lakhs)

Daurala, Uttar Pradesh* Freehold 379.04 379.04

Daurala, Uttar Pradesh** Freehold    44.95    44.95

Kota, Rajasthan* Leasehold 465.00 465.00

*  	Vested pursuant to a Scheme of Arrangement of erstwhile DCM Limited and yet to be endorsed in the name of  
	 the Company.

** 	The title deeds are in the name of Daurala Organics Limited, an erstwhile Company that was merged with the  
	 Company under sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956, in terms of the approval of the Honourable High  
	 court of judicature.

(ii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories, except good-in-transit, have been physically 
verified by the management at the year end. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable having regard 
to the size of the Company and nature of its business. In our opinion and as per the information and explanations received 
by us, the discrepancies noticed on comparison of physical verification of inventories with book records were not material 
and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.  According to the information and explanations given to us, 
Goods-in-transit have been verified from the underlying documentation.

(iii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, 
to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of 
the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into any transactions during the year related to loans, investment, guarantees 
and securities, to which the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable.

(v)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 73 
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 
2014, as amended with regards to the deposits accepted. According to the information and explanations given to us, no 
order has been passed by the Company Law Board or the National Company Law Tribunal or the Reserve Bank of India 
or any Court or any other Tribunal with regard to acceptance of deposits by the Company.

(vi)	 The Central Government has prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act 
for activities carried out by the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company 
pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148 of the Act, 
and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, 
we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records.

(vii)	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, amounts deducted or accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including 
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’), Duty of customs, Cess 
and other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate 
authorities. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
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	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, GST, Duty of customs, Cess and other material 
statutory dues, were in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable.

(b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of Income-tax,  Sales-tax, 
Service tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise, GST and Value added tax which have not been deposited with the 
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except for the following:

	  *    amount as per demand orders, including interest and penalty wherever indicated in the demand orders

	 **  Order passed by ITAT in favour of the Company, though may be subject to appeal by the department within the  
      prescribed time.

	 *** Order received under Section 92CA (3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for additions, against which the Company has filed  
      an appeal in DRP.

Name of the 
Statute

Nature of 
dues

Forum where dispute 
is pending

Period to which the amount 
related (Various years 
covering the period)

Amount 
involved* 

(Rs. lakhs)

Amount paid 
under protest 

(Rs. lakhs)

Income Tax 
Act, 1961

Income 
Tax

Income Tax Appellate 
Tribunal**

2003-2006 1,708.75 1,708.75

Income Tax 
Act, 1961

Transfer 
Pricing

Dispute Resolution 
Panel (DRP) ***

2016-17 3,631.97 -

Central Excise 
Act, 1944

Excise 
Duty 

Commissioner 
(Appeals)

March 2012 to February 2013
2004 -2005

32.13 10.03

High Court June 1998 to February 1999 3.54 -

CESTAT, Delhi 1995- 1996 3.22 -

Assistant 
Commissioner 
(Appeals)

June 2017 39.28 -

Sales Tax Laws Sales Tax High Court 1989-1990, 1992-1993, 
1995-1996, 1997-1998,
2008-2009, 2009-2010,
2010-2011, 2013-2014

115.42 -

Additional 
Commissioner 
(Appeals)

2004-2005 2.21 0.88

Service Tax 
Laws – Finance 
Act, 1994

Service 
Tax

Assistant 
Commissioner

April 2014 to December 2015 10.31 -

GST Act, 2017 GST Additional 
Commissioner

2017-18 1.78 1.78

UP VAT  Act, 
1956

VAT Joint Commissioner July 2017 to March 2018 
April 2018 to March 2019

9,104.00 -
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the standalone financial statements of DCM Shriram Industries 
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020.
Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial statements under Clause 
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
[Referred to in paragraph 2 (A) (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date]

Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of DCM Shriram Industries Limited (“the 
Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting, issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

(viii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no default existing at the balance sheet date in 
repayment of loans or borrowings to banks, government or a financial institution. The Company has not issued any 
debentures during the year.

(ix)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records, the Company has utilized the money raised during the year by way of term loans, for the purposes for which 
they were raised. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year.

(x)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its 
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided by the Company in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 197, read with Schedule V of the Act.

(xii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 
3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, all the transactions with related parties are in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the 
Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements, as required by 
the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)	 According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year.

(xv)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order and provisions of section 192 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

	
	 For B S R & Co. LLP
	 Chartered Accountants
	 Firm Registration No. 101248W / W-100022

	 Kaushal Kishore
	 Partner
Place : New Delhi	 (Membership No. 090075)
Date  : June 27, 2020	 UDIN: 20090075AAAAAQ9356
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Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud, may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
	

	 For B S R & Co. LLP
	 Chartered Accountants
	 Firm Registration No. 101248W / W-100022

	 Kaushal Kishore
	 Partner
Place : New Delhi	 (Membership No. 090075)
Date  : June 27, 2020	 UDIN: 20090075AAAAAQ9356
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

Particulars Note  As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
ASSETS
Non-current assets  
Property, plant and equipment 3 43,039.64 38,925.47 
Capital work-in progress 3 3,423.63 2,245.66 
Right-of-use-assets 40 2,499.22 - 
Intangible assets 4 112.76 90.32 
Intangible assets under development 4 - 16.50 
Financial assets
  	(i) Investments in subsidiary and associate 5 613.40 613.40 
  	(ii) Loans 6 532.74 500.24 
  (iii) Other financial assets 7 445.56 99.67 
Income-tax assets (net) 8 1,599.70 1,393.90 
Other non-current assets 9 165.89 983.88 
Total non-current assets 52,432.54 44,869.04 
Current assets
Inventories 10 66,274.39 61,643.95 
Financial assets
  	(i)  Investments 11 1,161.03 1,710.18 
  	(ii) Trade receivables 12 18,457.16 19,053.59 
  	(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 4,357.85 597.56 
  (iv) Other bank balances 14 392.23 695.03 
  (v) Loans 15 47.99 12.11 
  (vi) Other financial assets 16 13,347.65 308.86 
Other current assets 17 2,398.07 2,806.30 
Total current assets 106,436.37 86,827.58 
TOTAL ASSETS 158,868.91 131,696.62 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 18 1,739.84 1,739.84 
Other equity 19 52,399.62 45,491.53 
Total equity 54,139.46 47,231.37 
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
  (i)  Borrowings 20 17,782.29 8,321.62 
  (ii)  Lease liabilities 40 2,154.54 - 
  (iii) Other financial liabilities 21 87.79 73.93 
Provisions 22 1,613.74 1,173.73 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 38 1,114.85 2,896.97 
Other non-current liabilities 23 57.95 73.28 
Total non- current liabilities 22,811.16 12,539.53 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
  (i)  Borrowings 24 35,212.30 34,791.90 
  (ii) Lease liabilities 40 414.40 - 
  (iii) Trade payables 25
        -Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 397.88 337.19 
        -Total outstanding dues other than Micro and Small Enterprises 26,974.49 30,095.40 
  (iv) Other financial liabilities 26 7,510.73 4,863.67 
Other current liabilities 27 1,584.36 1,454.36 
Provisions 28 9,824.13 383.20 
Total current liabilities 81,918.29 71,925.72 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 158,868.91 131,696.62 
Significant Accounting Policies 2A
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the  
standalone financial statements			 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
DCM Shriram Industries Limited

N.K. Jain
Director Finance & Chief 
Financial Officer

Y.D. Gupta
Vice President  &
Company Secretary

P.R. Khanna
Director

Place : New Delhi
Date  : 27.06.2020

Place : New Delhi
Date  : 27.06.2020

S.B Mathur
Chairman

Alok B. Shriram 
Sr. Managing Director

Madhav B. Shriram
Managing Director

Kaushal Kishore 
Partner
Membership No.: 090075

As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.:  
101248W/W-100022
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Revenue

Revenue from operations 29 179,494.90 168,900.18 

Other income 30 2,306.36 1,818.47 

Total revenue 181,801.26 170,718.65 

Expenses

Cost of material consumed 31 97,584.53 101,734.37 

Purchase of traded goods 32 20,514.47 13,151.74 

Changes in inventories of finished goods 33 (3,437.49) (10,693.40)

and work-in-progress

Employee benefits expense 34 14,236.10 13,480.17 

Finance costs 35 4,454.09 2,400.18 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 36 2,760.95 2,079.54 

Other expenses 37 36,066.84 39,526.75 

Total expenses 172,179.49 161,679.35 

Profit before tax 9,621.77 9,039.30 

Tax expense

Current tax expense 38 2,323.02 1,948.03 

Deferred tax (credit)/ charge 38 (2,296.89) 68.66 

Tax  relating to earlier years 38 - (335.05)

26.13 1,681.64 

Profit for the year 9,595.64 7,357.66 

Other comprehensive income/(expense)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

Re-measurement (loss) on defined benefit obligation (584.62) (124.02)

Income tax pertaining to items that will not be 204.29 43.34 

reclassified to profit or loss

Total other comprehensive income/ (expense), net of taxes (380.33) (80.68)

Total comprehensive income 9,215.31 7,276.98 

Earnings  per equity share of Rs. 10 each- basic/ diluted  (Rs.) 43 55.15 42.29 

Significant Accounting Policies 2A

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the  
standalone financial statements

Particulars Note  For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss for the  year ended March 31, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
DCM Shriram Industries Limited

N.K. Jain
Director Finance & Chief 
Financial Officer

Y.D. Gupta
Vice President  &
Company Secretary

P.R. Khanna
Director

Place : New Delhi
Date  : 27.06.2020

Place : New Delhi
Date  : 27.06.2020

S.B Mathur
Chairman

Alok B. Shriram 
Sr. Managing Director

Madhav B. Shriram
Managing Director

Kaushal Kishore 
Partner
Membership No.: 090075

As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.:  
101248W/W-100022
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Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars  For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES		

Profit before tax  9,621.77  9,039.30 
Adjustments for :
	 Depreciation and amortisation  2,760.95  2,079.54 
	 Finance costs  4,454.09  2,400.18 
	 Interest income  (59.42)  (231.95)
	 Interest received against subvention  (963.48)  (286.04)
	 Loss/ (Profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment / discarded assets (net)  179.91  (52.68)
	 Profit on sale of current investments  (19.72)  (175.78)
	 Net gain on fair value of investments  (63.77)  (64.07)
Operating profit before changes in assets and liabilities  15,910.33  12,708.50 
Changes in assets and liabilities
	 (Decrease) / Increase in trade payables  (3,508.99)  11,086.41 
	 Increase in financial liabilities  869.35  8.53 
	 Increase in other liabilities & provisions  9,410.99  143.22 
	 Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables  596.43  (2,565.32)
	 (Increase) in inventories  (4,630.44)  (12,038.41)
	 (Increase) / Decrease in financial assets  (13,479.82)  943.88 
	 Decrease / (Increase) in other assets  426.55  (383.64)
Cash generated from operations  5,594.40  9,903.17 
	 Income tax paid (Net)  (1,809.76)  (1,530.99)
Net cash from operating activities ( A )  3,784.64  8,372.18 

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES		
Capital expenditure on acquisition of items of property, plant and equipments 
and intangible assets  (7,509.99)  (8,853.36)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments  303.42  117.18 
Purchase of current investments  (315.00)  (10,375.00)
Proceeds from sale of current investments  947.64  8,904.66 
Changes in other bank balances  302.80  (166.78)
Interest received  86.18  229.45 
Net cash used in investing activities ( B )		   (6,184.95)  (10,143.85)

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES		
	 Proceeds from long term borrowings  14,618.23  8,959.17 
	 Repayment of long term borrowings  (2,775.37)  (3,000.63)
	 Proceeds / (repayments) from short term borrowings (net)  420.40  (1,148.86)
	 Repayments of Lease Liabilities  (375.10)  -   
	 Payment of Inter Corpoate deposit  -    (150.00)
	 Finance costs paid (Net of subvention)  (3,461.46)  (2,167.82)
	 Dividend paid  (1,872.71)  (680.44)
	 Dividend distribution tax paid  (393.39)  (143.05)
Net cash from / (used) in financing activities ( C )		   6,160.60  1,668.37 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  3,760.29  (103.30)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  597.56  700.86 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of  the year  4,357.85  597.56 

Component of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with scheduled banks:
	 - Current accounts  4,329.64  569.35 
	 - Cash in hand  28.21  28.21 
Cash and cash equivalents at the close of  the year		   4,357.85  597.56 

Contd. on next page
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Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing 
activities :

(Rs. lakhs)

Particulars Non-current 
borrowings*

Current 
borrowings

Lease   
liability Total

Opening balance as at April 1, 2018  5,980.25  36,090.76  -    42,071.01 

Cash flows during the year  5,633.97  (3,142.11)  -    2,491.86 

Non-cash changes due to:

- Interest expense (net of subvention)  270.88  1,843.25  -    2,114.13 

 -   

Closing balance as at March 31, 2019  11,885.10  34,791.90  -    46,677.00 

Opening balance as at April 1, 2019  11,885.10  34,791.90  -    46,677.00 

Cash flows during the year  11,353.49  (2,399.42)  (527.37)  8,426.70 

Non-cash changes due to:

- Interest expense (net of subvention)  518.52  2,819.82  -    3,338.34 

- Finance cost on lease liability  -    -   152.27  152.27 

- Lease liability recognised  -    -   2944.04  2,944.04 

Closing balance as at March 31, 2020  23,757.11  35,212.30  2,568.94  61,538.35 

* Includes current maturities of non current borrowings, interest accrued but not due on borrowings and unclaimed 
deposits and interest accrued thereon, refer Note 21 and 26.

Notes

1.	 The standalone cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with "Indirect Method" as set out on Indian Account-
ing Standard -7 on  "Statement on Cash Flows ".

Significant Accounting Policies			   2A

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
DCM Shriram Industries Limited

N.K. Jain
Director Finance & Chief 
Financial Officer

Y.D. Gupta
Vice President  &
Company Secretary

P.R. Khanna
Director

Place : New Delhi
Date  : 27.06.2020

Place : New Delhi
Date  : 27.06.2020

S.B Mathur
Chairman

Alok B. Shriram 
Sr. Managing Director

Madhav B. Shriram
Managing Director

Kaushal Kishore 
Partner
Membership No.: 090075

As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.:  
101248W/W-100022
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Statement of Standalone Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

B. Other equity             (Rs.lakhs) 

Particulars Reserve and surplus Items of Other  
Comprehensive 

Income
Total

Amalgama-
tion reserve

General 
reserve

Capital 
redemption 

reserve

Securities 
Premium

Retained 
Earnings 

"Remeasurement 
of defined benefit 

obligations"
Balance as at April 1, 2018 1,411.38 13,465.60 0.10 3,406.68 20,989.86 (220.08) 39,053.54 
Profit for the year - - - - 7,357.66 - 7,357.66 
Other comprehensive income / (expense)  
for the year - - - - - (80.68) (80.68)

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,411.38 13,465.60 0.10 3,406.68 28,347.52 (300.76) 46,330.52 
Transactions with shareholders,  
recorded directly in equity
Distribution to shareholders
	 Final dividend on equity shares 
	 (Rs.4.00 per equity share of Rs.10 each) - - - - (695.94) - (695.94)

	 Dividend distribution tax on final dividend - - - - (143.05) - (143.05)
Balance as at March 31, 2019 1,411.38 13,465.60 0.10 3,406.68 27,508.53 (300.76) 45,491.53 
Balance as at April 1, 2019 1,411.38 13,465.60 0.10 3,406.68 27,508.53 (300.76) 45,491.53 
Profit for the year - - - - 9,595.64 - 9,595.64 
Other comprehensive income / (expense)  
for the year - - - - - (380.33) (380.33)

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,411.38 13,465.60 0.10 3,406.68 37,104.17 (681.09) 54,706.84 
Transactions with shareholders, 
recorded directly in equity
Distribution to shareholders
	 Final dividend on equity shares  (Rs.6.00 
	 per equity share of Rs.10 each) - - - - (1,043.91) - (1,043.91)
	 Dividend distribution tax on final dividend - - - - (214.58) - (214.58)
	 Interim dividend on equity shares   
	 (Rs.5.00 per equity share of Rs.10 each) - - - - (869.92) - (869.92)
	 Dividend distribution tax on final dividend - - - - (178.81) - (178.81)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 1,411.38 13,465.60 0.10 3,406.68 34,796.95 (681.09) 52,399.62 

A. Equity share capital  

Particulars (Rs.lakhs)
Balance as at April 1, 2018 1,739.84 
Changes in equity share capital during the year ended March 31, 2019 - 
Balance as at March 31, 2019 1,739.84 
Changes in equity share capital during the year ended March 31, 2020 - 
Balance as at March 31, 2020 1,739.84 

Nature and purpose of reserve
a. Amalgamation reserve
Amalgamation reserve had been created on amalgamation of Daurala Organics Limited with the Company.		
b. General reserve
Profits earned by the Company are transferred to General reserve as decided
c. Capital redemption reserve
Created on redemption of preference shares as per requirements of the Companies Act, 1956.
d. Securities premium
Securities premium has been created on account of the premium received on issue of shares and capital and reorganisation reserve 
reclassified in the year ended March 31, 1993.
Significant Accounting Policies					     2A
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
DCM Shriram Industries Limited

N.K. Jain
Director Finance & Chief 
Financial Officer

Y.D. Gupta
Vice President  &
Company Secretary

P.R. Khanna
Director

Place : New Delhi
Date  : 27.06.2020

Place : New Delhi
Date  : 27.06.2020

S.B Mathur
Chairman

Alok B. Shriram 
Sr. Managing Director

Madhav B. Shriram
Managing Director

Kaushal Kishore 
Partner
Membership No.: 090075

As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.:  
101248W/W-100022
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Items Measurement basis

Derivative financial instruments and certain 
other financial assets and liabilities Fair value

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of 
defined benefit obligations

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1.	 Corporate Information 

DCM Shriram Industries Limited (the “Company”) is a Public Limited Listed Company incorporated in 
India and having its registered office at Kanchenjunga Building, 6th Floor, 18, Barakhamba Road, New 
Delhi – 110001. The Company is primarily engaged in production and sale of sugar, alcohol, power, 
chemicals and industrial fibers.

2.	 Basis of preparation of financial statements

	 a)	 Statement of Compliance

These Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements (“Standalone Financial Statements”) of the 
Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under section 133 of 
Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’), Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 
2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act, as applicable. 

These Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 are 
approved by the Company's Audit Committee and by the Board of Directors on June 27, 2020.

	 b)	 Functional and presentation currency

These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the 
Company’s functional currency. All amounts are in Rupees lakhs with two decimal points rounded-
off to the nearest thousands, unless otherwise stated. 

	 C)	 Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the 
historical cost convention, except for the following items:

	 d)	 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised prospectively. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation/ 
uncertainty and judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects 
on the standalone financial statements are included in the following notes:
−	 Recognition and estimation of tax expense including deferred tax- Note 2A(f) and 38.
−	 Assessment of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset-  

Note 2A(b) and (c).
−	 Estimation of obligations relating to employee benefits: key actuarial assumptions -  

Note 2A(g)
−	 Valuation of Inventories- Note 2A(d)
−	 Fair Value Measurement of financials instruments- Note 2A(p)
−	 Lease Classification- Note 2A(m)
−	 Recognition and Measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the 

likelihood and magnitude of outflow of resources- Note 2A(k)
−	 Impairment of financial assets- Note 2A(p)
−	 Impairment of non-financial assets- Note 2A(j)
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

e)	 Changes in significant accounting policies

Effective April 01, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” using the modified retrospective 
approach on all the lease contracts existing on that date. Accordingly, the comparative information 
has not been restated. It replaces Ind AS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations. This resulted in 
recognising a right-of-use asset with a corresponding lease liability as at April 01, 2019.  Refer to note 
2A(m) and 40 for details. 

2A.	 Significant accounting policies

a)	 Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products/ activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition 
of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its 
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current 
and non-current.

b)	 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

		  (i)	 Recognition and measurement

All items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized 
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation/ amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. 

Cost of acquisition or construction of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase 
price including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade 
discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition 
for its intended use. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an 
asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for 
a provision are met. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, net of impairment loss, if any. 

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other 
costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition and location for their 
intended use, and the estimated cost of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the 
site on which they are located. 

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment having significant cost have different 
useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, 
plant and equipment. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is 
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal 
or when no further benefit is expected from its use and disposal. Assets retired from active 
use and held for disposal are generally stated at the lower of their net book value and net 
realizable value. Any gain or losses arising on disposal of property, plant and equipment is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, property, plant and equipment are no longer depreciated.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 
and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

		  (ii)	 Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset 
when it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to 
the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured.
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		  (iii)	 Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis using the straight-line method as per the useful 
lives prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Assets costing up to Rs. 0.05 
lakhs are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. No depreciation is provided on assets 
sold, discarded, etc. during the year. Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight 
line basis over the unexpired period of lease.  Freehold land and leasehold land are not 
depreciated.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed in each financial year, 
and changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively. 

	 c)	 Intangible assets

	 (i)	 Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets comprise computer software. Intangible assets that are acquired by the 
Company are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses. Cost includes any directly attributable incidental expenses necessary to make the 
assets ready for its intended use.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible 
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is 
derecognised.

		  (ii)	 Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profit 
or loss as incurred.

		  (iii)	 Amortisation 

Intangible assets, being computer software are amortised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
over the estimated useful life of 5 years using the straight line method.

The amortisation method and the useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed annually and 
adjusted as necessary.

	 d)	 Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is ascertained on a 
‘weighted average’ basis. 

Raw materials and stores and spares - Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred 
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The aforesaid items are valued 
at Net Realisable Value if the finished products in which they are to be incorporated are expected 
to be sold at a loss.

Finished goods and work in progress - Cost comprises raw material cost, other direct costs, 
appropriate share of labour, and overheads incurred in bringing them to their present location and 
condition. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, 
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

	 e)	 Revenue recognition

		  (i)	 Sales of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of products is 
transferred to the customer. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns and allowances, 
trade discounts and rebates. The Company collects Goods and Services Tax on behalf of the 
government and therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, 
these are excluded from the revenue.
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Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted 
for variable consideration such as volume discounts, cash discounts etc. as specified in the 
contract with the customer. 

Contract asset is the entity’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that 
the entity has transferred to the customer. A contract asset becomes a receivable when the 
entity’s right to consideration is unconditional, which is the case when only the passage of 
time is required before payment of the consideration is due. 

Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which 
the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the 
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services 
to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is 
due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company 
performs under the contract.  

		  (ii)	 Rendering of services
Revenue from sale of services is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured and is recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction 
at the reporting date when the underlying services are performed. Job work is recognized 
upon full completion of the job work. 

		  (iii) 	 Interest and dividend income
Interest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest 
method and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on 
a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding. Dividends income from investments is 
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established. 

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition:

- Judgement is required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction 
price could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with 
elements such as volume discounts, price concessions and incentives. Any consideration 
payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a 
distinct product or service from the customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration 
is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant 
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed 
at the end of each reporting period. The Company allocates the elements of variable 
considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable 
evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations.

- The Company’s performance obligation under revenue contracts, is satisfied at a point in 
time and judgement is exercised in determining point in time.

	 f)	 Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and 
Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in 
equity or in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

• 	 Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss 
for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. 
The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount 
expected to be paid or received after considering uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. 
It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

• 	 Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net 
basis or simultaneously.

• 	 Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:
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- 	 temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and that effects neither accounting nor 
taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

- 	 temporary differences related to freehold land and investments in subsidiaries, to the 
extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary 
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- 	 taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets (DTA) include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax 
laws in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off 
against future income tax liability.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which they can be used. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each 
reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the 
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement 
of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the 
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and 
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or 
simultaneously 

	 g)	 Employee benefits

	 	 (i)	 Short-term benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are 
classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus 
and ex-gratia. Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted 
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the 
amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 
to pay the amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of 
obligation can be estimated reliably.

	 	 (ii)	 Defined contribution plans

The defined contribution plans i.e. provident fund (administered through Regional Provident 
Fund Office), superannuation fund and employee state insurance corporation are  post-
employment benefit plans under which a Company  pays fixed contributions and will have 
no legal and constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to 
defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the 
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. 

	 	 (iii)	 Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution 
plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately 
for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the 
current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan 
assets. 

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the Gratuity Plan) covering all 
eligible employees. In accordance with the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Gratuity plan 
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees on retirement, death, incapacitation or 
termination of employment. These are funded by the Company and are managed by LIC.



74

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed by a qualified actuary separately 
for each plan using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each year of service 
as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit 
separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount 
rate used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based 
on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity 
periods approximating to the terms of related obligations. 

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, 
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit (excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in 
the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI 
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent periods.

The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined 
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability 
(asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the 
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other 
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Provident fund (other than those made to the Regional Provident Fund Office of the 
Government)

Provident Fund Contributions other than those made to the Regional Provident Fund Office of 
the Government which are made to the Trusts administered by the Company are  accounted 
for on the basis of actuarial valuation. The interest rate payable to the members of the Trust 
shall not be lower than the statutory rate of interest declared by the Central Government 
under the Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and shortfall, 
if any, shall be made good by the Company.  

	 	 (iv)	 Other long-term employee benefits

Benefits under the Company’s privilege leaves and medical leave are other long term 
employee benefits. The Company’s net obligation in respect of privilege leave and medical 
leave are the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service 
in the current and prior periods. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The 
obligation is measured on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit 
method. 

		  Re-measurements are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

  	 h)	 Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable 
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. 

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate 
and presented within other income (operating and non-operating) other than export benefits which 
are accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in 
receiving the same.  

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses incurred 
in a previous period, is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which it becomes receivable.

	 i)	  Foreign currency transactions and translation

The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 
Company operates i.e., functional currency, to be Indian Rupees (INR). The financial statements 
are presented in INR which is Company’s functional and presentational currency. 
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Monetary and non-monetary transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the 
functional currency of the Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or at an 
average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettled on reporting date are 
translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on reporting date. Gains/ (losses) arising on account 
of realisation/ settlement of foreign exchange transactions and on translation of monetary foreign 
currency assets and liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using 
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

The derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts to hedge its risk 
associated with foreign currency fluctuations are stated at fair value. Any gains or losses arising 
from changes in fair value are taken directly to Statement of Profit or Loss.

	 j)	 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 
‘Impairment of Assets’. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair 
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to 
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that 
cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates 
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or 
groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”, or “CGU”). 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the 
assets of the CGU.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation 
or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

	 k)	 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period., If the effect of the time value of money is 
material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, 
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the 
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence 
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not 
wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic 
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as 
a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

	 l)	 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or erection of qualifying 
assets are capitalised as part of cost of such asset until such time that the assets are substantially 
ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which take a substantial period of time 
to get ready for their intended use or sale.
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When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, 
the borrowing costs incurred are capitalized. When Company borrows funds generally and uses 
them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalization of the borrowing costs is 
computed based on the weighted average cost of general borrowing that are outstanding during 
the period and used for the acquisition of the qualifying asset. 

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare 
the qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete. Borrowing costs consist of interest and 
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs include 
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded 
as an adjustment to interest costs.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

	 m)	 Leases

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has applied Ind AS 116 using modified retrospective approach 
and, therefore, the comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported 
under Ind AS 17. The details of accounting policies under Ind AS 17 are disclosed separately, if 
they are different from those under Ind AS 116 and the impact of changes is disclosed in note 40.

		  Policy applicable from April 1, 2019

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A 
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assess whether:

-	 the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or 
implicitly and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a 
physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is 
not identified;

-	 the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the 
asset through the period of use; and

-	 the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it 
has the decision- making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose 
the asset is used. In rare cases, where the decision about how and for what purpose the 
asset is used is predetermined, the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset if 
either:

	 •	 the Company has the right to operate the asset; or

	 •	 the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose 
		  it will be used

An entity shall reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease only if the terms and conditions 
of the contract are changed.

This policy is applicable to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 April 2019.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company 
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative 
stand-alone prices.

Company as a lessee

As a lessee, the Company at the commencement date recognizes a Right-of Use (RoU) asset at 
cost and corresponding lease liability, except for leases with term of less than twelve months (short 
term) and low-value assets. The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial 
measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the inception date of 
the lease plus any initial direct costs etc. Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost 
less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The right-of-use 
asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter 
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of lease term or useful life of right-of-use assets. For lease liabilities at the commencement date, 
the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not 
paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, 
if that rate is readily determined and in other cases, the lease payments are discounted using the 
incremental borrowing rate. For short-term and low value assets, the Company recognizes the 
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Policy applicable before April 1, 2019

In the comparative period, a lease arrangement is classified as either a finance lease or an 
operating lease, based on the substance of the lease arrangement.

Finance leases

Assets held under finance lease are initially recognised as assets at the fair value at the inception 
of lease or at the present value of the minimum lease payments, whichever is lower. Lease 
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to 
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are 
recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable 
to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general 
policy on the borrowing cost.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable 
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is 
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating leases

Lease rental expenses from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight line basis over 
the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with 
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, 
such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising 
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

	 n)	 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings / (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year 
attributable to the shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus / rights issue, if any, that 
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in 
resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable 
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period 
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

	 o)	 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).

In accordance with Ind AS 108 – “Operating Segments”, the operating segments used to present 
segment information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s 
Management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. 

The Executive Committee, comprising of Chairman and Managing Director, Whole Time 
Directors, Business Heads, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary is collectively the 
Company’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ or ‘CODM’ within the meaning of Ind AS 108. All 
operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the CODM to make decisions 
about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance. Refer Note 39 for 
segment information.

Based on “Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates the resources 
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based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments. Inter segment 
sales and transfers are reflected at market prices.

Unallocable items includes general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated 
to any business segment.

Segment Policies:

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted 
for preparing and presenting the standalone financial statements of the Company as a whole. 
Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on an appropriate basis.

	 p)	 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used 
in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs).

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair 
values. It regularly reviews significant inputs and valuation adjustments.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market 
data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall 
into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in 
its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant 
to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the 
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing these 
financial statements is included in the respective notes.

Initial recognition and measurement

With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component, the 
Company initially measures financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset 
not at fair value through profit or loss, net of transaction costs. Trade receivables do not contain a 
significant financing component and are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind 
AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section 2A (e) Revenue recognition. 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established 
by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade 
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets of the Company are classified in three 
categories:

a)	 At amortised cost
b)	 At fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
c)	 At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)



79

Financial Asset is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a)	 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 	
	 contractual cash flows, and

b)	 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 	
	 payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The 
EIR amortisation is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies 
to trade and other receivables.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at 
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets and current investments in mutual funds. On 
initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets 
the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates 
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Equity Investments

All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments 
which are held for trading are measured at fair value through profit and loss. 

For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present 
subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The Company makes such 
election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and 
is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes 
on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive income. This 
cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to statement of profit and loss on disposal of such 
instruments.

Investments representing equity interest in subsidiary and associate are carried at cost less any 
provision for impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on:

- Financial assets measured at amortized cost; and

- Financial assets measured at FVOCI – debt instruments.

Loss allowance for trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all 
financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, ECLs are measured at 
an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk 
from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECLs (or 
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is 
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost 
and debt instruments at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one 
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial 
asset have occurred.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is 
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as 
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains 
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
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method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement 
of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance 
sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the 
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously.

Derecognition

		  (i)	 Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows 
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance 
sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred 
assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

		  (ii)	 Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged 
or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms 
are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this 
case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new 
financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 q)	 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents 
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and 
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance 
sheet.

	 r)	 Research and development

Expenditure on research and development activities is recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalized as part of cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the 
expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially 
feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient 
resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognized in 
profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is measured at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, if any.

	 s)	 Dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the 
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per 
the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A 
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

2B.	 Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. 
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

4. 	 Intangible assets
(Rs.lakhs)

Particulars Software 
Intangible 

assets under 
development  

Gross carrying amount  

Balance as at April 1, 2018 164.58 - 

Add: Additions during the year  22.56 16.50 

Less: Disposals / adjustments during the year  - - 

Balance as at March 31, 2019 187.14 16.50 

Add: Additions during the year  65.56 - 

Less: Disposals / adjustments / capitalized during the year  - 16.50 

Balance as at March 31, 2020 252.70 - 

Accumulated amortisation 

Balance as at April 1, 2018 64.38 - 

Amortisation expense during the year  32.44 - 

Less: Disposals / adjustments during the year - - 

Balance as at March 31, 2019 96.82 - 

Add: Amortisation expense for the year  43.40 - 

Less: Disposals / adjustments during the year  0.28 - 

Balance as at March 31, 2020 139.94 - 

Net carrying value 

As at March 31, 2020 112.76 - 

As at March 31, 2019 90.32 16.50 
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5.	 Investment in subsidiary and associate (non-current)

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Investment in equity instruments
Unquoted equity instruments
Daurala Co-operative Development Union Limited
2 (March 31, 2019 - 2) equity shares of face
value of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up  @ (Rs. 20) @ @ 

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiary at cost
Unquoted equity instruments
Daurala Foods & Beverages Private Limited
75,00,000 (March 31, 2019 - 75,00,000)
equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 447.40 447.40 

Investments in equity shares of associate at cost
Unquoted equity instruments
DCM Hyundai Limited
19,72,000 (March 31, 2019 - 19,72,000)
equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 166.00 166.00 

Sub total 613.40 613.40 

Investments in preference shares
Unquoted instruments
Preference shares measured at Fair value through Profit and loss
Versa Trading Limited
7,00,000 (March 31, 2019 – 7,00,000) 5%
redeemable non-cumulative preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid 700.00 700.00 

Impairment in the value of investments
Versa Trading Limited 700.00 700.00 
Sub total - - 
Total 613.40 613.40 

Aggregate value of non-current unquoted investments (net of impairment) 613.40 613.40 
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments 700.00 700.00 

6.	 Loans- Non current
	 (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
To Related Parties 
Security deposits 49.71 49.56 

To Parties other than Related Parties 
Security deposits 445.37 413.64 
Loans to employees 37.66 37.04 
Total 532.74 500.24 

7.	 Other financial assets- Non current		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Bank deposits with maturity of more than twelve months 8.44 88.33 
Bank deposits held as margin money or security against borrowings,
guarantees and other commitments 437.12 11.34 

Total 445.56 99.67 
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11.	 Investments	

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Investment in mutual funds measured at fair value through profit and loss 
Unquoted investment
240348.592 (March 31, 2019: 297651.699) Aditya Birla Sunlife 
Saving Fund – Growth Regular Plan Units of Rs. 100 each 955.43 1,098.28 

488625.746 (March 31, 2019: Nil) HDFC Low duration 
Fund – Regular Plan Growth Units of  Rs. 10 each 205.60 - 

Nil (March 31, 2019: 78762.677 ) Aditya Birla Sunlife
Low duration Fund  - Growth Regular Plan Units of Rs. 100  each - 353.85 

Nil (March 31, 2019: 1579087.091) HSBC Low duration 
Fund - Growth Units of Rs. 10 each - 258.05 
Total 1,161.03 1,710.18 

8.	 Income tax assets (net)		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Advance income tax [net of provision] 1,599.70 1,393.90 
Total 1,599.70 1,393.90 

9.	 Other non-current assets
	 (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
To Parties other than Related Parties 
Capital advances 146.39 946.06 
Advance other than capital advances
Deferred rent 2.59 16.05 
Balance with government authorities 4.18 14.50 
Other advances 12.73 7.27 
Doubtful
Other advances 1.30 1.30 

167.19 985.18 
Less: Loss allowance for advances 1.30 1.30 
Total 165.89 983.88 

10.	 Inventories
	 (Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Raw material* 6,580.64 4,858.00 
Work in progress 1,378.96 1,651.02 
Finished goods**# 54,446.76 50,737.21 
Stores and spares 3,868.03 4,397.72 
Total 66,274.39 61,643.95 

*	 Includes raw material in transit Rs. 736.40 lakhs (March 31, 2019:  	Rs. 456.44 lakhs)
** 	Includes finished goods in transit Rs. 164.00 lakhs (March 31, 2019: 	Rs. 1,981.61 lakhs)
# 	 The write-down of inventories to net realisable value during the year amounted to  

Rs. 182.41 lakhs  (March 31, 2019: Nil)
	 The write-down is included in changes in inventories of finished goods.	
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12.	Trade receivables		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
To Parties other than Related Parties  
Unsecured, considered good 18,457.16 19,053.59 
Doubtful 29.97 29.97 

18,487.13 19,083.56 
Less : Loss allowance for trade receivables 29.97 29.97 
Total 18,457.16 19,053.59 

13.	Cash and cash equivalents		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Balances with banks
- On current accounts 4,321.00 569.35 
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 8.00 - 
Cash on hand 28.85 28.21 
Total 4,357.85 597.56 

14.	Other bank balances		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but upto twelve months

- Earmarked deposits held as margin money or security against

  borrowings, guarantees and other commitments 195.84 539.76 

Earmarked balances with banks – unclaimed dividend accounts 196.39 155.27 

Total 392.23 695.03 

15.	Loans - Current
	 (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
To Parties other than Related Parties 
Security deposits 17.41 0.02 
Loans to employees (including accrued interest) 12.69 10.09 
Others 17.89 2.00 
Total 47.99 12.11 

16.	Other financial assets - Current
	 (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
To Parties other than Related Parties 
Interest accrued on term deposits 33.95 60.71 
Government grant receivable 6,210.22 234.93 
Reimbursement assets* 6,987.08 - 
Others 116.40 13.22 
Total 13,347.65 308.86 

*  Refer note 52
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e) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Particulars As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Number  

of shares
% of 

holding  
Number  

of shares
% of 

holding  
Bantam Enterprises Private Limited 13,56,968 7.80% 13,56,968 7.80% 
HB Portfolio Limited 25,11,735 14.44% 29,88,173 17.17% 
Life Insurance Corporation of India 11,61,352 6.68% 12,40,679 7.13% 
Lily Commercial Private Limited 29,94,479 17.21% 11,50,323 6.61% 
Versa Trading Limited 22,24,725 12.79% 22,24,725 12.79% 

Particulars As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019

Number  
of shares

Amount
Rs. lakhs

Number  
of shares

Amount
Rs. lakhs

Equity shares

At the commencement of the year 1,73,98,437 1,739.84 1,73,98,437 1,739.84 

Add: Shares issued during the year - - - - 

At the end of the year 1,73,98,437 1,739.84 1,73,98,437 1,739.84 

d) Terms, rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible 
for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 
to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in 
proportion to the equity shares held by the shareholder.

17.	Other current assets
	 (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
To Related Parties 
Advances to contractors 27.80 - 

To Parties other than Related Parties 
Advances to contractors 270.57 541.59 
Other advances
 Advance to employees 20.18 17.58 
 Balance with government authorities 1,387.08 1,480.45 
 Duty drawback & other incentive receivables 352.28 355.49 
 Prepaid expense 272.82 323.94 
 Others 67.34 87.25 
Total 2,398.07 2,806.30 

18.	Equity share capital		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
a) Authorised 
6,50,00,000 (March 31, 2019: 6,50,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each	 6,500.00 6,500.00 

b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
1,73,98,437 (March 31, 2019: 1,73,98,437) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully 
paid-up 1,739.84 1,739.84 

c) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period:
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19.	 Other equity

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
	 a.	 Amalgamation reserve
		  Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 1,411.38 1,411.38 

	 b.	 General reserve
		  Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 13,465.60 13,465.60 

	 c.	 Capital redemption reserve
		  Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 0.10 0.10 

	 d.	 Securities Premium 
		  Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 3,406.68 3,406.68 

	 e.	 Retained earnings
		  Balance as at the beginning of the year 27,207.77 20,769.78 
		  Add: Profit for the year 9,595.64 7,357.66 

Items of other comprehensive income/ (expense) 
recognised directly in retained earnings
Remeasurement of employee benefit obligation, net of tax* (380.33) (80.68)
Less: Appropriations
Final dividend on equity shares [Dividend per share Rs. 6.00  
(March 31, 2019: Rs. 4.00)] (1,043.91) (695.94)

Tax on dividend (214.58) (143.05)
Interim dividend on equity shares [Dividend per share Rs. 5.00  
(March 31, 2019: Nil)] (869.92) - 

Tax on dividend (178.81) - 
Balance at the end of the year 34,115.86 27,207.77 

	 Total 52,399.62 45,491.53 

* 	 Included in 'Items of other comprehensive income' in statement of  
changes in equity.

20.	Borrowings 

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
From Related Parties
Unsecured loans
Public Deposits 292.27 192.27 

From Parties other than Related Parties 
Secured loans
Term loans from banks 22,305.37 11,039.92 
Term loans from others 636.71 199.10 
Unsecured loans
Public Deposits 326.04 365.36 

23,560.39 11,796.65 
Less: Current maturity of long term borrowing 5,778.10 3,475.03 
Total 17,782.29 8,321.62 

Details of current maturity of long term borrowing:
Secured loans
Term loans from banks 5,642.11 3,177.51 
Term loans from others 56.89 56.89 
Unsecured loans
Public Deposits 79.10 240.63 
Total 5,778.10 3,475.03 
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A.	 SECURED
	 I.	 From Banks

a)	 Rs.47.95 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.205.12 Lakhs), Rs.1,392.82 lakhs (March 31,2019: 
Rs.1,853.88 lakhs) and Rs.1,453.43 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.1,967.31 lakhs) carrying interest 
between 9.25% p.a. to 10.55% p.a., repayable in 1, 9 and 9 quarterly installments respectively, 
are secured by a first mortgage and charge on all the immovable and movable properties of 
the Company excluding all assets of Daurala Organics, a unit of the Company and assets on 
exclusive charges, subject to prior charges created / to be created in favour of the Company’s 
bankers for securing the borrowings for working capital requirements, the charges ranking pari-
passu with the charges created/to be created in favour of first charge holders for their respective 
term loans.

b)	 Nil (March 31,2019: Rs.6.53 lakhs) was secured by residual charge on fixed assets of sugar 
factory at Daurala Sugar Works, a unit of the Company.

c)	 Rs.22.77 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.97.58 lakhs) carrying interest of 9.40% p.a., repayable in 1 
quarterly installment, is secured by first charge on specific movable assets of Distillery division of 
Daurala Sugar Works, a unit of the Company.

d)	 Rs.474.85 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.1,052.51 lakhs) carrying interest of 9.40% p.a., repayable 
in 9 quarterly installments, is secured by first exclusive charge on specific movable assets of 
Sugar division of Daurala Sugar Works, a unit of the Company.

e)	 Rs.4,610.53 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.5,424.15 lakhs) carrying interest of 5% p.a., repayable in 
51 monthly installments, is secured by first pari-passu charge on all the immovable and movable 
properties of the Company excluding assets on exclusive charges.

f)	 Rs.989.57 lakhs (March 31,2019: Nil), Rs.688.98 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.174.76 lakhs) and 
Rs.2,243.49 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.242.78) carrying interest of 9.10% p.a., repayable in 15, 
15 and 16 quarterly installments, are secured by first pari-passu charge on all the immovable and 
movable properties of the Company excluding assets on exclusive charges. 

g)	 Rs.4,000.00 lakhs (March 31,2019: Nil), Rs.2,500.00 lakhs (March 31,2019: Nil) and Rs.1,451.00 
lakhs (March 31,2019: Nil) carrying interest rate of 2.40% p.a. (net of subvention), repayable in 8 
quarterly installments, are secured by residual pari-passu charge on fixed assets of sugar factory 
at Daurala Sugar Works, a unit of the Company. 

h)	 Rs.2,425.42 lakhs (March 31,2019: Nil) carrying interest of 3.15% (net of subvention) and 9.15% 
p.a., repayable in 16 quarterly installments, is secured by first charge on specific movable assets 
of Distillery division of Daurala Sugar Works, a unit of the Company.

i)	 Rs.4.56 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.15.30 lakhs) currently carrying interest of 10.45% p.a., 
repayable in 6 monthly installments, is secured by hypothecation of specific assets. 

	 II.	 From Others
	 Rs.494.50 lakhs (March 31,2019: nil) and Rs.142.21 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.199.10 lakhs) carrying 

interest of 3.40% p.a. and 4.25% p.a. respectively, repayable in 10 and 5 half yearly installments, are 
secured by first pari-passu charge on immovable and movable properties of sugar factory at Daurala 
Sugar Works, a unit of the Company.

B.	 Unsecured
	 Rs.618.31 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.557.63 lakhs), Deposits from public, carries interest of 9.5% p.a 

to 10.50% p.a., are currently repayable after 3 years from the date of acceptance of deposits.
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21.	Other financial liabilities- Non current	  

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
From Related Parties

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 11.83 - 

From Parties other than Related Parties 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 18.50 - 

Deposits from contractors and others 10.08 11.90 

Others 47.38 62.03 

Total 87.79 73.93 

22.	Provisions- Non current 	  

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 44)

- Gratuity 436.52 196.58 

- Compensated absences 959.53 877.15 

- Others (Refer note 44(D)) 117.69 - 

Provision for contingencies* 100.00 100.00 

Total 1,613.74 1,173.73 

* Provision for contingencies of Rs. 100 lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs. 100 lakhs) represents the maximum 
possible exposure on ultimate settlement of issues relating to reorganisation arrangement of the 
Company.	

23.	Other non-current liabilities	  	  

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Others 57.95 73.28 

Total 57.95 73.28 

24.	Borrowings	  	  

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Secured loans

From banks - loans repayable on demand* 35,212.30 34,791.90 

Total 35,212.30 34,791.90 

* 	Secured by hypothecation of stocks, stores, book debts and receivables, both present and future / pledge of stocks/ 
third pari passu charge on some of the Company's property, plant and equipment. Some of these are further 
secured by way of  second / third pari-passu mortgage and charge on the property, plant and equipment, both 
present and future.
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Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 44)
- Compensated absences 387.53 383.20 
- Others (Refer note 44(D)) 9.18 - 
Provision for contingencies (Refer note 52) 9,427.42 - 
Total 9,824.13 383.20 

28.	Provisions-Current  		   

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

25.	Trade payables 		   

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises* 397.88 337.19 
Total outstanding dues other than Micro and Small Enterprises# 26,974.49 30,095.40 
Total 27,372.37 30,432.59 

* Refer note  49  for Micro and Small Enterprises.
# Includes payable to related parties Rs. 573.62 lakhs (March 31, 2019 Rs. 699.70 lakhs), refer note 45.

Notes:
a) Includes acceptances Rs. 3,282.34 lakhs (March 31, 2019 Rs. 3,111.26 lakhs).
b) The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 46.

26.	Other financial liabilities- Current 		   

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
From Related Parties
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 7.74 16.73 

From Parties other than Related Parties 
Creditors for capital purchases 172.78 384.90 
Current maturities of long term borrowings  (refer note 20) 5,778.10 3,475.03 
Security deposits 2.60 2.60 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 125.88 69.06 
Unclaimed dividends 196.39 155.27 
Unclaimed deposits and interest accrued thereon 32.77 2.66 
Other payables
Deposits from contractors and others 274.70 266.00 
Employees related payable 875.33 448.77 
Others 44.44 42.65 
Total 7,510.73 4,863.67 

27.	Other current liabilities  		   

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Advances from customers 281.17 144.73 
Statutory dues payable 1,136.27 1,154.66 
Others 166.92 154.97 
Total 1,584.36 1,454.36 
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29.	Revenue from operations  		   

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

Sale of products
Export 40,250.71 47,154.87 
Domestic # 1,22,875.07 1,14,332.03 
Sale of services
Processing charges 4,422.85 3,026.41 
Others 36.87 38.70 
Other operating revenue
Sale of scrap 563.79 872.09 
Duty draw back, export benefits and other government assistance* 10,603.86 2,707.41 
Sale of renewable energy certificates 544.56 759.08 
Others 197.19 9.59 
Total 1,79,494.90 1,68,900.18 

# Includes Rs.11,348.90 lakhs (March 31, 2019: Nil) in respect of sales made to domestic parties to fulfill export 
obligation as per Maximum Admissible Export Quantity (MAEQ) Scheme.	

* Refer note 50

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:
Contracted price  1,67,110.73  1,64,122.06 
Less: Discounts, allowances and claims 474.77 429.95 

1,67,585.50 1,64,552.01 

	 Contract Balances  For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Contract assets
Trade receivables (Refer note 12) 18,457.16 19,053.59 
Contract liabilites
Advances from customers (Refer note 27) 281.17 144.73 

Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost
-	 From deposits with banks 58.79 231.39 
-	 Unwinding of discount on security deposits 0.63 0.56 
-	 Interest subsidy* 963.48 286.05 
Provisions/liabilities no longer required, written back 20.35 6.97 
Rental income 43.41 36.17 
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) - 52.68 
Profit on sale of current investments 19.72 175.78 
Net change in fair value of financial assets measured 63.77 64.07 
at fair value through profit or loss
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 1,005.95 840.68 
Miscellaneous income 130.26 124.12 
Total 2,306.36 1,818.47 

* Refer note 50 .		

30.	Other income  		   

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
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34.	Employee benefits expense 		   

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Salaries, wages and bonus 12,409.24 11,659.45 
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,495.74 1,370.81 
Staff welfare expenses 331.12 449.91 
Total 14,236.10 13,480.17 
Refer note 44 for disclosure on gratuity.

31.	Cost of material consumed  		   

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Raw materials at the beginning of the year 4,858.00 3,805.86 
Add: Purchases 99,307.17 1,02,786.51 

1,04,165.17 1,06,592.37 
Less: Raw materials at the end of the year 6,580.64 4,858.00 
Total 97,584.53 1,01,734.37 

Particulars of materials consumed are as under:
Sugarcane 66,027.76 66,084.56 
Wood pulp 7,753.43 8,519.70 
Others 23,803.34 27,130.11 
Total 97,584.53 1,01,734.37 

33.	Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress  	

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Opening stock
Finished goods 50,737.21 40,278.01 
Work-in-progress 1,651.02 1,416.82 
Total 52,388.23 41,694.83 

Closing stock
Finished goods 54,446.76 50,737.21 
Work-in-progress 1,378.96 1,651.02 
Total 55,825.72 52,388.23 

(3,437.49) (10,693.40)

Particulars of stocks of finished goods and work-in-progress are as under :
Finished goods
Sugar 48,768.12 47,751.22 
Alcohol 1,296.28 247.57 
Organic/ Fine chemicals 753.54 1,072.35 
Industrial fibers 3,628.82 1,666.07 

Total 54,446.76 50,737.21 

Work-in-progress
Sugar 465.18 641.06 
Alcohol 45.94 18.72 
Organic/ Fine chemicals 533.69 581.81 
Industrial fibers 334.15 409.43 
Total 1,378.96 1,651.02 

32.	Purchase of traded goods  		   

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Grain spirits 20,514.47 13,151.74 
Total 20,514.47 13,151.74 
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Stores and spares 9,637.04 8,848.24 
Power and fuel 9,948.41 10,984.47 
Repair and maintenance
- Buildings 975.67 674.33 
- Plant and machinery 4,514.10 4,375.68 
Rent* 238.39 626.53 
Payment to auditors
- As auditors 25.00 25.00 
- Limited review of unaudited financial results 22.50 22.50 
- Verification of statements and other records 7.50 12.50 
- Out-of-pocket expenses 4.21 3.35 
Insurance 270.97 164.19 
Rates and taxes 71.97 182.03 
Freight and transport 1,515.57 1,273.23 
Commission to selling agents 1,869.73 2,180.83 
Loss on Export obligation** 72.41 4,125.87 
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 179.91 - 
Donation 0.10 0.20 
Corporate social responsibility ( refer note below) 170.65 172.00 
Bad debts and advances written off 2.60 - 
Miscellaneous expense # 6,540.11 5,855.80 
Total 36,066.84 39,526.75 

Note: Details of corporate social responsibility expenditure
a) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year  204.75  171.66 
b) Amount spent during the year (in cash)
	 (i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - 31.44 
	 (ii) On purposes other than (i) above 170.65*** 140.56 

	 *	 Refer note  40
	 ** 	 Consequent to Orders of Central Government allocating sugar 	factory -
      	 wise Minimum Indicative Export Quotas (MIEQ) of sugar for export.
	*** 	 Rs. 34.10 lakhs was spent subsequent to March 31, 2020  due to lockdown.
	 # 	 Refer note 50

Interest expense* 4,335.72 2,301.54 
Other borrowing costs 118.37 98.64 
Total 4,454.09 2,400.18 

* Refer note 50

35.	Finance costs

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 2,272.73 2,047.10 
Amortisation on intangible assets 43.40 32.44 
Amortisation on right-of-use assets 444.82 - 
Total 2,760.95 2,079.54 

36.	Depreciation and amortisation expense  		   

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

37.	Other expenses  		   

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
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Current tax expense  2,323.02  1,948.03 

Deferred tax charge/ (credit)  (2,296.89)  68.66 

Tax relating to earlier years

- Deferred tax charge/ (credit)  -    (335.05)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss  26.13  1,681.64 

38.	 Income tax expense  		   
	
A.	 Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

	 The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are:

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

Income tax
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation  204.29  43.34 
Income tax charges to other comprehensive income/(expense)  204.29  43.34 

B. Amounts recognised in other comprehensive Income/ (expense)

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are:

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

 Rate  Rs. lakh  Rate  Rs. lakh 

Profit before tax from continuing operations, including OCI 34.94%  9,037.15 34.94%  8,915.28 

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate  3,157.94  3,115.36 

Tax effect of:

Non-deductible expenses 0.74%  66.52 0.64%  57.00 

Tax-exempt income -0.77%  (69.89) -17.64%  (1,572.48)

Change in estimates* -25.75%  (2,327.36) 0.25%  22.39 

Others # -11.12%  (1,005.37) 0.18%  16.03 

Effective tax rate -1.97%  (178.16) 18.38%  1,638.30 

* 	 Section 115 BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, introduced by Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 gives 
a one-time irreversible option to domestic companies for payment of corporate tax at reduced rates. As per CBDT 
Circular, in case this option is exercised, the Company shall not be able to utilise the outstanding MAT credit. 
The Company is likely to exercise the option at a later date. Consequently, during the year, the Company has 
remeasured the deferred tax assets / liabilities likely to be reversed at the time the Company would opt for new 
tax regime, which has resulted in write back of deferred tax liability amounting to Rs. 2,053.83 lakhs pertaining to 
previous years and Rs.273.53 lakhs pertaining to current year.

# 	 Includes Rs.1,032.89 lakhs recognised during the year with the credit to profit and loss on the basis of 
reassessment of a MAT credit charged-off in the previous years.

	 C.	 Reconciliation of effective tax rate		

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit/ (loss) multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the year ended March 
31, 2020 and March 31, 2019:

For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 
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39.	 Operating segments

	 A.	 Basis for segmentation

In accordance with Ind AS 108 'Segment Reporting' as specified in section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 , the Company 
has identified three business segments viz. Sugar, Industrial fibres and related products, and Chemicals. The above 
segments have been identified and reported taking into account the differing risks and returns, and the current internal 
financial reporting systems. For each of the segments, the Chief operating decision maker (CODM) reviews internal 
management reports on at least a quarterly basis. The CODM monitors the operating results separately for the purpose 
of making decisions about resource allocation and performance measurement (Refer Note 2A (O)).

Segment revenue, results and capital employed include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments. 
Other unallocable expenditure includes expenses incurred on common services provided to the segments, which are 
not directly identifiable.
In addition to the significant accounting policies applicable to the business segments as set out in note 2A(o) above, the 
accounting policies in relation to segment accounting are as under:
a) Segment revenue and expenses
Segment revenue and expenses are, generally, directly attributable to the segments. Joint revenue and expenses of 
segments are allocated amongst them on a reasonable basis.
b) Segment assets and liabilities
Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of operating trade receivables, 
inventories and property plant and equipment and intangible assets, net of allowances and provisions, which are reported 
as direct offsets in the balance sheet. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally of creditors 
and accrued liabilities and do not include deferred income taxes and borrowings. While most of the assets / liabilities can 
be directly attributed to individual segments, the carrying amount of certain assets / liabilities pertaining to two or more 
segments are allocated to the segments on a reasonable basis.
The following summary describes the operations in each of the Company's reportable segments:
Sugar Comprising sugar, power and alcohols
Industrial fibres and related products Comprising rayon, synthetic yarn, cord, fabric etc.
Chemicals Comprising organics & fine chemicals 

FY 2018-19 (Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars  Opening 
balance 

 Recognised 
in statement of 
Profit & Loss 

 Recognised in 
other comprehen-

sive income 

 Closing  
balance 

Deferred tax assets
Accrued expense deductible on payment  742.12  (466.95)  275.17 
Provision for gratuity, compensated 
absences and other employee benefits  322.17  143.60  43.34  509.11 

Loss allowance for trade receivables  10.37  -    10.47 
Loss allowance for other assets  0.45  -    0.45 
Others  22.29  0.22  22.51 

 1,097.40  (323.13)  43.34  817.71 
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference in book written down 
value and tax written down value of property, 
plant and equipment/ intangible assets

 (7,067.51)  (634.34)  (7,701.85)

 (7,067.51)  (634.34)  -    (7,701.85)
Total  (5,970.11)  (957.47)  43.34  (6,884.14)

F.	 Availability of MAT Credit is upto:
 As at   As at  

 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 
 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

Financial year Amount Amount
2024-25  313.82  -   
2027-28  281.78  281.78 
2028-29  980.47  980.47 
2029-30  281.91  281.91 
2030-31  851.08  851.08 
2032-33  996.93  703.23 
2033-34  623.00  888.70 

 4,328.99  3,987.17 



97

Pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
s

R
ep

or
ta

bl
e 

se
gm

en
ts

El
im

in
at

io
n

To
ta

l
Su

ga
r

In
du

st
ria

l fi
br

es
 a

nd
 

re
la

te
d 

pr
od

uc
ts

C
he

m
ic

al
s

 F
or

 th
e 

 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 
 F

or
 th

e 
 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 

 F
or

 th
e 

 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 
 F

or
 th

e 
 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 

 F
or

 th
e 

 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 
 F

or
 th

e 
 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 

 F
or

 th
e 

 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 
 F

or
 th

e 
 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 

 F
or

 th
e 

 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 
 F

or
 th

e 
 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 

 3
1.

03
.2

02
0 

 3
1.

03
.2

01
9 

 3
1.

03
.2

02
0

 3
1.

03
.2

01
9 

 3
1.

03
.2

02
0 

 3
1.

03
.2

01
9 

 3
1.

03
.2

02
0 

 3
1.

03
.2

01
9 

 3
1.

03
.2

02
0 

 3
1.

03
.2

01
9 

 R
s.

 la
kh

s 
 R

s.
 la

kh
s

 R
s.

 la
kh

s 
 R

s.
 la

kh
s

 R
s.

 la
kh

s 
 R

s.
 la

kh
s

 R
s.

 la
kh

s 
 R

s.
 la

kh
s

 R
s.

 la
kh

s 
 R

s.
 la

kh
s

 S
eg

m
en

t r
ev

en
ue

 
 - 

E
xt

er
na

l r
ev

en
ue

s 
 1

,0
2,

10
5.

03
 

 9
2,

68
0.

41
 

 3
1,

83
6.

25
 

 3
8,

34
4.

59
 

 3
3,

64
4.

21
 

 3
3,

52
7.

01
 

 -   
 -   

 1
,6

7,
58

5.
49

 
 1

,6
4,

55
2.

01
 

 - 
In

te
r s

eg
m

en
t r

ev
en

ue
 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 - 
O

th
er

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
re

ve
nu

e 
 1

0,
34

5.
30

 
 2

,3
84

.2
5 

 1
,0

65
.3

8 
 1

,4
50

.3
8 

 4
98

.7
3 

 5
13

.5
4 

 -   
 -   

 1
1,

90
9.

41
 

 4
,3

48
.1

7 
 S

ub
to

ta
l 

 1
,1

2,
45

0.
33

 
 9

5,
06

4.
66

 
 3

2,
90

1.
63

 
 3

9,
79

4.
97

 
 3

4,
14

2.
94

 
 3

4,
04

0.
55

 
 -   

 -   
 1

,7
9,

49
4.

90
 

 1
,6

8,
90

0.
18

 
 - 

O
th

er
 in

co
m

e 
 7

5.
39

 
 2

10
.5

2 
 8

40
.8

0 
 5

97
.1

2 
 2

85
.4

1 
 2

61
.3

9 
 (2

.8
4)

 (3
.0

6)
 1

,1
98

.7
6 

 1
,0

65
.9

7 
 - 

U
na

llo
ca

bl
e 

in
co

m
e 

 1
,1

07
.6

0 
 7

52
.5

0 
 T

ot
al

 r
ev

en
ue

 
 1

,1
2,

52
5.

72
 

 9
5,

27
5.

18
 

 3
3,

74
2.

43
 

 4
0,

39
2.

09
 

 3
4,

42
8.

35
 

 3
4,

30
1.

94
 

 (2
.8

4)
 (3

.0
6)

 1
,8

1,
80

1.
26

 
 1

,7
0,

71
8.

65
 

 S
eg

m
en

t r
es

ul
ts

 
 9

,1
01

.8
9 

 7
,2

59
.2

4 
 3

,2
99

.4
0 

 3
,9

86
.7

8 
 4

,3
99

.1
3 

 3
,2

04
.3

9 
 -   

 -   
 1

6,
80

0.
42

 
 1

4,
45

0.
41

 

 U
na

llo
ca

te
d 

ex
pe

ns
es

 
(n

et
 o

f u
na

llo
ca

te
d 

in
co

m
e)

 
 2

,7
24

.5
6 

 3
,0

10
.9

3 

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
pr

ofi
t 

 1
4,

07
5.

86
 

 1
1,

43
9.

48
 

 F
in

an
ce

 c
os

ts
 

 4
,4

54
.0

9 
 2

,4
00

.1
8 

 P
ro

fit
 b

ef
or

e 
ta

x 
 

 9
,6

21
.7

7 
 9

,0
39

.3
0 

 C
ur

re
nt

 ta
x 

ex
pe

ns
e 

 2
,3

23
.0

2 
 1

,9
48

.0
3 

 D
ef

er
re

d 
ta

x 
(c

re
di

t)/
 c

ha
rg

e 
 (2

,2
96

.8
9)

 6
8.

66
 

 T
ax

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 e

ar
lie

r y
ea

rs
 

 -   
 (3

35
.0

5)
 N

et
 p

ro
fit

 a
ft

er
 ta

x 
 9

,5
95

.6
4 

 7
,3

57
.6

6 
C

ap
ita

l e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 3
,4

63
.5

6 
 4

,7
54

.9
8 

 3
,7

57
.9

0 
 2

,5
23

.6
4 

 5
61

.6
0 

 1
,2

32
.4

4 
 -   

 -   
 7

,7
83

.0
6 

 8
,5

11
.0

6 
U

na
llo

ca
te

d 
ca

pi
ta

l e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 3
14

.4
8 

 4
2.

25
 

To
ta

l c
ap

ita
l e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

du
ri

ng
 th

e 
ye

ar
 8

,0
97

.5
4 

 8
,5

53
.3

1 

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
 8

68
.9

1 
 6

77
.9

8 
 9

86
.6

3 
 9

21
.9

1 
 4

51
.1

5 
 4

24
.4

2 
 -   

 -   
 2

,3
06

.6
9 

 2
,0

24
.3

1 
U

na
llo

ca
te

d 
de

pr
ec

ia
tio

n 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 4
54

.2
6 

 5
5.

23
 

To
ta

l d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
du

ri
ng

 th
e 

ye
ar

 2
,7

60
.9

5 
 2

,0
79

.5
4 

N
on

 c
as

h 
ex

pe
ns

e 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

de
pr

ec
ia

tio
n

 9
1.

25
 

 -   
 7

1.
98

 
 -   

 1
9.

64
 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 1

82
.8

7 
 -   

U
na

llo
ca

te
d 

no
n 

ca
sh

 e
xp

en
se

  o
th

er
 

th
an

 d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 -   
 -   

To
ta

l n
on

 c
as

h 
ex

pe
ns

e 
ot

he
r 

 
th

an
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

du
ri

ng
 th

e 
ye

ar
 1

82
.8

7 
 -   

B
.	

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t r
ep

or
ta

bl
e 

se
gm

en
ts



98

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)
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	 C.	 Reconciliations of information on reportable segments to Ind AS measures

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
	 i	 Revenues
		  Total revenue for reportable segments  1,80,696.50  1,69,969.21 
 		  Unallocated amounts: 
		  Revenue for other segments  1,107.60  752.50 
 		  Inter-segment elimination  (2.84)  (3.06)
 		  Total revenue  1,81,801.26  1,70,718.65 

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
	 ii	 Profit before tax
		  Total profit before tax for reportable segments  16,800.42  14,450.41 
 		  Unallocated cost: 
		  Finance costs  (4,454.09)  (2,400.18)
 		  Other unallocated amounts  (2,724.56)  (3,010.93)

 		  Profit before tax as per statement of profit and loss  9,621.77  9,039.30 

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
	 iii	 Assets
		  Total assets for reportable segments  1,46,985.62  1,25,878.59 
 		  Unallocated amounts: 
 		  Investments  1,774.43  2,323.58 
 		  Corporate assets  10,108.86  3,494.45 

 		  Total assets as per the balance sheet  1,58,868.91  1,31,696.62 

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
	 iv	 Liabilities
		  Total liabilities for reportable segments  40,478.92  32,673.74 
		  Unallocated amounts: 
		  Share capital  1,739.84  1,739.84 
		  Reserves and Surplus  52,399.62  45,491.56 
		  Unallocated corporate liabilities   64,250.53  51,791.48 

 		  Total liabilities as per the balance sheet  1,58,868.91  1,31,696.62 

	 D.	 Geographical information
The geographical information analyses the Company’s revenues and assets by the Company’s country of domicile 
(i.e. India) and other countries. In presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been based on the 
geographic location of customers and segment assets which have been based on the geographical location of the assets.

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
	 i	 Revenues
		  (a)	 India  1,41,553.39  1,23,566.85 

		  (b)	 Other countries
     			   Europe  11,171.23  14,130.72 
    			   China  11,271.17  12,514.73 
     			   Rest of the World  17,808.31  20,509.41 
		  Total (b)  40,250.71  47,154.86 

		  (c)	 Inter-segment elimination  (2.84)  (3.06)

		  Total (a+b+c)  1,81,801.26  1,70,718.65 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

40.	 Leases

The details of the right-of-use asset held by the Company is as follows:

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

The impact on the statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 is as follows:

Particulars
 Year ended  
 31.03.2020 

 Rs. lakhs 
Rent expense is lower by  527.37 
Amortisation is higher by  (444.82)
Finance cost is higher by  (152.27)
Profit before tax is (lower) by  (69.72)

Total cash outflow for leases during the year	  527.37 

The Company has discounted lease payments using the applicable incremental borrowing rate which 
is 9.00% for measuring the lease liability. The Company has used hindsight in determining the lease 
term where the contracts contain options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Company incurred Rs.238.39 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2020 towards expenses relat-
ing to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. 

The reconciliation of lease liabilities is as follows:

Particulars
 As at  

 31.03.2020 
 Rs. lakhs 

Balance as at April 01, 2019  646.73 
Additions  2,297.31 
Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss as interest expense  152.27 
Payment of lease liability  (527.37)
Balance as at March 31, 2020  2,568.94 

	 ii	 Assets
		  (a)	 India  1,48,265.39  1,18,124.74 

		  (b)	 Other countries
     			   Europe  2,918.83  3,365.55 
    			   China  3,581.05  5,231.09 
     			   Rest of the World  4,103.64  4,975.24 
		  Total (b)  10,603.52  13,571.88 

		  Total (a+b)  1,58,868.91  1,31,696.62 

E.	 Major customer
Revenue from transactions with any single customer does not exceed 10 per cent or more of the Company's total revenue.

(Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars Opening as on 
April 01, 2019

Additions for the 
year ended  

March 31, 2020

Amortisation  
during the year

Net Carrying 
amount as at 

 March 31, 2020
Building  646.73  2,297.31  444.82  2,499.22 

 646.73  2,297.31  444.82  2,499.22 

Effective April 01, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" using the modified retrospective approach on all 
the lease contracts existing on that date. Accordingly, the comparative information has not been restated. This resulted in 
recognising a right-to-use asset of Rs. 646.73 lakhs with a corresponding lease liability as at April 01, 2019.
In the statement of Profit & Loss for the current year the nature of expenses in respect of operating leases has changed from 
lease rent in previous year to depreciation cost of right -to-use asset and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability. 
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The following table presents a maturity analysis of expected cash flows for lease liabilities:

Particulars
 As at  

 31.03.2020 
 Rs. lakhs 

Within one year  414.40 
Within one-five years  1,776.31 
Above five years  378.23 
Balance as at March 31, 2020  2,568.94 

41.	 Contingent liabilities and commitments

A.	 Contingent liabilities*
	 Particulars As at As at

31.03.2020  31.03.2019 
 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs 

	 Income tax matters  5,340.73  1,708.75 
	 Excise and Service tax matters  68.15  108.18 

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (excluding claims by 
employees, where amount is not ascertainable)  750.17  755.16 

	 Sales tax matters  55.06  55.06 
	 Sugarcane related matters  4,545.26  4,545.26 
	 Total  10,759.37  7,172.41 

	 * 	 Matters are subject to legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business. The legal proceedings, when ultimately concluded 
will not, in the opinion of the management, have a material effect on the results of the operations or financial position.

B.	 Commitments

a. 	 Capital commitments: Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net 
of advances) amounts to Rs. 909.73 lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs. 3910.68 lakhs).

b.	 Other commitments: The Company has other commitments, for purchase / sales orders which are issued after considering 
requirements per operating cycle for purchase / sale of goods and services, employee benefits including union agreement in 
normal course of business. The Company does not have any long term commitments / contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there will be any material foreseeable losses.

42. 	Proceedings in a Petition challenging the Preferential Issue of equity warrants by the Company filed by a shareholder before 
the Hon'ble Company Law Board (now National Company Law Tribunal) are continuing since November, 2007.

Particulars Unit For the year ended For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

Profit/ (loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders Rs. Lakhs  9,595.64  7,357.66 
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year

Numbers  1,73,98,437  1,73,98,437 

Nominal value per share Rs.  10  10 
Basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per share Rs.  55.15  42.29 

43. 	Earnings per share
	 Basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per share
	 Basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/ (loss) during the year attributable to equity 

shareholders of the Company by the weighted number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

44. 	Employee benefits

A.	 Defined Contribution plans
	 Rs. 299.11  lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs. 754.04 lakhs) for provident fund contribution and Rs. 185.85 lakhs (March 31, 2019:  

Rs. 178.92 lakhs) for superannuation fund contribution have been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions 
towards these schemes are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. In case of provident fund administered through a 
trust, shortfall if any, shall be made good by the Company.



102

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

Balance at the beginning of the year  3,658.56  3,378.36 
Expected return on plan assets  279.88  261.82 
Contribution by the Company  12.26  11.65 
Benefits paid  (136.81)  (30.94)
Actuarial gains / (losses) recognised in other comprehensive income  (258.49)  37.67 
Balance at the end of the year  3,555.40  3,658.56 

Current service cost  235.54  209.29 

Interest cost  295.73  275.76 

Expected return on plan assets  (279.88)  (261.82)

Actuarial (gains) / losses recognised in other comprehensive income  455.62  124.02 

 707.01  347.25 

(ii) 	Reconciliation of the plan assets

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the plan assets and its components

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

(iii) 	Expense recognized in profit or loss

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

The following table sets out the status of gratuity obligation

Particulars As at As at
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs 

Net Gratuity liability / (asset)  436.52  196.58 

Non current  436.52  196.58 

Current  -    -   

 436.52  196.58 

(i) 	 Reconciliation of the gratuity benefit liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balance to the closing balance for gratuity liability and its components

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the year  3,855.14  3,558.15 
Current service cost  235.54  209.29 
Interest cost  295.73  275.76 
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on arising from changes in financials assumptions  99.63  22.99 
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on arising from changes in experience adjustments  97.51  138.70 
Benefits paid  (591.63)  (349.75)
Balance at the end of the year  3,991.92  3,855.14 

B.	 Defined benefit plans
	 a)	 Liability for gratuity, privilege leaves and medical leaves is determined on actuarial basis. Gratuity liability is provided to 	

	 the extent not covered by the funds available in the gratuity fund.

	 Gratuity:
	 Gratuity scheme provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on 

termination of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service, except death while in employment.
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Other than equity, debt, property and bank account

Funded with  Life Insurance Corporation of India*  3,555.40  3,658.56 

*	 The plan assets are maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India Gratuity Scheme. The details of Investments 
maintained by Life Insurance Corporation are not made available and have therefore not been disclosed.

Actuarial (gain) / loss on plan assets  258.49  (37.67)

Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from changes in financials assumptions  99.63  22.99 

Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from changes in experience adjustments  97.51  138.70 

(iv) 	 Constitution of plan assets

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

(v) 	  Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

(vi) 	Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Particulars  As at   As at  

 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

Financial assumptions

Discount rate 6.80% 7.65%

Future salary growth 5.00% 5.00%

Rate of return on plan assets 7.65% 7.75%

Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years)  16.85  16.69 

Demographic assumptions

Mortality rate IALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)

Withdrawal rate Up to  30 years- 3% Up to  30 years- 3%

31 to  44 years- 2% 31 to  44 years- 2%

Above 44 years- 1% Above 44 years- 1%

Retirement age 58 years and 60 years 58 years and 60 years

Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2021 are Rs. 291.13 lakhs (March 
31, 2020: Rs. 247.35 lakhs).

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other long term benefits are determined using actuarial valuations. Actuarial valuations 
involve making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These includes the determination 
of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rate. Due to these complexity involved in the valuation it is highly 
sensitive to the changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The present value of the 
defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost and planned service cost were measured using the projected 
unit cost method.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

E.	 Risk exposure
	 These defined benefit plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks as under:

	 a)	 Investment Risk
	 The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to 

market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

	 b)	 Interest rate risk
	 A decrease in bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this shall be partially off-set by increase in return as 

per debt investments.

	 c) 	 Longevity risk
	 The present value of the defined plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants. 

An increase in the life expectancy will increase the plan's liability.

	 d)	 Salary risk
	 Higher than expected increase in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

Particulars  As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Within 1 year  704.33  75.66 
1 year to 5 years  1,659.85  1,716.74 
More than 5 years  2,299.46  2,123.22 

   Increase Decrease     Increase Decrease

Discount rate (0.50%)  (405.88)  106.24  (449.96)  176.32 
Future salary growth (0.50%)  109.11  (416.84)  181.08  (462.11)

Although the analysis does not take into account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does not 
provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are insignificant & hence not considered in sensitivity analysis disclosed.

(viii) Maturity profile
The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based 
on past service of the employees as at the valuation date:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs 

C.	 Compensated absences:

	 The obligation of compensated absence in respect of the employees of the Company as at 31 March 2020 works out to  
Rs. 1,347.06 lakhs (31 March 2019: Rs. 1,260.35 lakhs)

D.	 Provident fund:

	 The Company manages the Provident Fund plan through Provident Fund Trusts for a majority of its employees which is 
permitted under The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The plan envisages contribution by 
the employer and employees and guarantees interest at the rate notified by the Provident Fund authority. For other employees 
contributions are made to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioners. The Government mandates the annual yield to be 
provided to the employees on their corpus. This plan is considered as a Defined Contribution Plan. For the first category of 
employees (covered by the Trust), the Company has an obligation to fund any shortfall on the yield of the trust’s investments 
over the administered interest rates on an annual basis. Based on actuarial estimate by an approved actuary of the provident 
fund liabilities the Company has provided an amount of Rs. 126.87 lakhs for possible shortfall on the yield of the trust’s 
investments over the administered interest rates.

(vii) Sensitivity analysis

The significant actuarial assumption for the determination of defined benefit obligations are discount rate and expected salary 
increase.

Sensitivity of gross benefit obligation as mentioned above, in case of change in significant assumptions would be as 
under:
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45.	 Related party disclosures:

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on Related Party Disclosures, the names of the related parties where control exists 
and/or with whom transactions have taken place during the year and description of relationships, as identified and certified by the 
management are:

A.	 Names of related parties and nature of related party relationship

Subsidiary: Daurala Foods and Beverages Private Limited
Associate
DCM Hyundai Limited
Versa Trading Limited (subsidiary of DCM Hyundai Limited till 23.03.2020)

Key management personnel
Mr. S. B. Mathur, Chairman
Mr. Tilak Dhar, Senior Managing Director (upto 30.06.2019)
Mr. Alok B. Shriram, Sr. Managing Director
Mr. Madhav B. Shriram, Managing Director
Mrs. Urvashi Tilak Dhar, Director (w.e.f. 13.08.2019)
Mr. N. K.Jain, Director & CFO (Director w.e.f. 01.11.2019)  
Mr. P. R. Khanna, Independent Director
Mr. Ravinder Narain, Independent Director
Mr. S. C. Kumar, Independent Director
Mr. C. Vikas Rao, Independent Director
Ms. V. Kavitha Dutt, Independent Director
Mr. Sanjay C. Kirloskar, Independent Director 
Mr. K.N.Rao Director & CEO Rayons (upto 31.10.2019 )
Mr. Y. D. Gupta, Vice President & Company Secretary

Relatives/HUF of key management personnel
M/s. Bansi Dhar & Sons - HUF
Mr. Akshay Dhar
Ms. Kanika Shriram
Mr. Rudra Shriram
Mr. Rohan Shriram
Mr. Uday Shriram
Mrs. K. Rao
Mrs. Anita Gupta
Mrs. Manju Jain
Mr. Nirmal Kumar Jain
Mrs. Maya Rani Jain
Mr. Rajat Jain
Mrs. Kiran Khanna
Mr. P. R. Khanna (HUF)
Mrs. Suman Bansi Dhar
Mrs. Divya Shriram
Mrs. Karuna Shriram
Ms. Aditi Dhar
Mrs. Manju Narain
Mr. Rohit Gupta

Trusts
Employees' Provident Fund Trust, DCM Shriram Industries Limited
Daurala Organics Limited Employees' Provident Fund Trust
DCM Shriram Industries Limited Superannuation Trust 

Others (Enterprises over which key management personnel or their relatives are able to exercise significant influence)
Bantam Enterprises Private Limited
H.R. Travels Private Limited
Hindustan Vaccum Glass Private Limited
Kirloskar Corrocoat Private Limited
Lily Commercial Private Limited
Divine Investments Private Limited
Hi-Vac Wares Private Limited
Quick Lithographers Private Limited
Peekay Alkalies Private Limited
Super Wares Private Limited
Gentech Chemicals Private Limited
Meridian Marketing Private Limited
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs 

Rent expenses
Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  188.39  167.51 
Others  40.95  39.74 

Total  229.34  207.25 

Interest expense
Key management personnel  -  2.01 

Relatives of Key management personnel  20.59  17.98 

Independent Directors & their relatives/HUF  3.78  3.89 

Total  24.37  23.88 

Other expenses
Others  -  46.27 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Others  4.22  11.01 

Equity dividend paid
Associate  245.18  89.16 

Key management personnel  2.53  0.45 

Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  13.24  5.29 

Others  635.20  225.05 

 896.15  319.95 

Public deposits received
Key management personnel  100.00  -   

Security deposit paid
Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  1.17  7.01 

Public Deposits paid
Key Management Personnel  -    75.00 

Relatives of Key Management Personnel  -    8.00 

Salaries and bonus including contributions made to provident fund
Key management personnel
Mr. Tilak Dhar  76.11  296.20 

Mr. Alok B.Shriram  306.11  296.20 

Mr. Madhav B.Shriram  306.11  296.20 

Mrs. Urvashi Tilak Dhar  161.70  -   

Mr. K.N. Rao  43.28  61.93 

Mr. N. K. Jain  50.33  41.03 

Mr. Y. D. Gupta  29.93  26.76 

Relatives of key management personnel  90.31  82.15 

Total  1,063.88  1,100.47 

B.	 Transactions with related parties:  
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Post-employment defined benefit plan

Gratuity

Key management personnel

Mr. Tilak Dhar  -    56.10 

Mr. Alok B.Shriram  6.56  41.65 

Mr. Madhav B.Shriram  6.45  43.04 

Mrs. Urvashi Tilak Dhar  3.08  -   

Mr. K.N. Rao  4.32  4.81 

Mr. N.K. Jain  8.24  3.18 

Mr. Y.D. Gupta  4.89  2.76 

Relatives of key management personnel  2.45  2.21 

Total  35.99  153.75 

Other long term defined benefit plan

Compensated absences

Key management personnel

Mr. Tilak Dhar  -    21.03 

Mr. Alok B.Shriram  10.86  20.70 

Mr. Madhav B.Shriram  8.75  21.60 

Mrs. Urvashi Tilak Dhar  4.53  -   

Mr. K.N. Rao  1.62  1.24 

Mr. N. K. Jain  1.84  1.40 

Mr. Y. D. Gupta  1.25  0.65 

Relatives of key management personnel  3.47  2.84 

Total  32.32  69.46 

Commission to Independent Directors

Mr. P. R. Khanna  16.29  17.05 

Mr. S. B. Mathur  17.29  17.05 

Mr. Ravinder Narain  14.29  14.95 

Mr. S. C. Kumar  16.29  17.05 

Mr C Vikas Rao  11.29  12.85 

Ms. V. Kavitha Dutt  13.29  12.85 

Mr. Sanjay C. Kirloskar  13.30  6.96 

Total  102.04  98.76 

Total compensation paid to key management personnel  1,234.23  1,422.44 

Post-employment defined benefit plan

Contribution paid to provident fund

Trusts  1,353.88  1,274.33 

Other long term defined contribution plan

Superannuation

Trust  185.85  178.92 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

46.	 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

	 a. 	 Financial instruments – by category and fair values hierarchy
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their 
levels in the fair value hierarchy.

	 i.	 As on March 31, 2019 			   (Rs. lakhs)

Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised 
cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets 
Non-current
  (i) Loans*  -    -    500.24  500.24  -    -    -   
  (ii) Other financial assets*  -    -    99.67  99.67  -    -    -   
Current
  (i) Investments*
Debt instrument (Mutual funds)  1,710.18  -    -    1,710.18  1,710.18  -    -   
  (ii) Trade receivables*  -    -    19,053.59  19,053.59  -    -    -   
  (iii) Cash and cash equivalents*  -    -    597.56  597.56  -    -    -   
  (iv) Other bank balances*  -    -    695.03  695.03  -    -    -   
  (v) Loans*  -    -    12.11  12.11  -    -    -   
  (vi) Other financial assets*  -    -    308.86  308.86  -    -    -   
Total  1,710.18  -    21,267.06  22,977.24 
Financial liabilities 
Non-current
  (i) Borrowings (including current 
maturities)#  -    -    11,796.65  11,796.65  -    -    11,790.46 

  (ii) Other financial liabilities*  -    -    73.93  73.93  -    -    -   
Current 
  (i) Borrowings#  -    -    34,791.90  34,791.90  -    -    -   
  (ii) Trade payables*  -    -    30,432.59  30,432.59  -    -    -   
  (iii) Other financial liabilities*  -    -    1,388.64  1,388.64  -    -    -   
Total  -    -    78,483.71  78,483.71 

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs 

Security deposit receivable
Relatives/HUF of key management personnel 49.71 49.56 
Other advances
Others  27.80  -   
Payables
Public deposits including interest accrued
Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  274.34  171.50 
Independent Directors & their relatives  37.50  37.50 
Total    311.84  209.00 
Trade payables
Others  1.59  23.95 
Commission to Independent Directors  102.04  98.76 
Remuneration
Key management personnel  469.99  576.99 

 573.62  699.70 

Note:
Transactions with the related parties are made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.

	 Balances with related parties 
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ii.	 As on March 31, 2020                  			   (Rs. lakhs)

Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using

FVTPL FVOCI Amor-
tised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets 

Non-current

	 (i) 	 Loans*  532.74  532.74  -    -    -   

	 (ii) 	 Other financial assets*  445.56  445.56  -    -    -   

	Current

  	(i) 	 Investments*

		  Debt instrument (Mutual funds)  1,161.03  1,161.03  1,161.03  -    -   

 	(ii) 	 Trade receivables*  18,457.16  18,457.16  -    -    -   

 	(iii) 	 Cash and cash equivalents*  4,357.85  4,357.85  -    -    -   

 	(iv) 	 Other bank balances*  392.23  392.23  -    -    -   

	 (v) 	 Loans*  47.99  47.99  -    -    -   

  (vi) 	 Other financial assets* 13,347.65 13,347.65  -    -    -   

Total  1,161.03  -   37,581.18 38,742.21 

Financial liabilities 

Non-current
  (i) 		  Borrowings (including cur	

	 rent maturities)#  23,560.39  23,560.39  -    -    22,561.49 

  (ii) 	 Lease liabilities*  2,154.54  2,154.54  -    -    -   

  (iii) 	 Other financial liabilities*  87.79  87.79  -    -    -   

Current 

 	 (i)  	 Borrowings#  35,212.30  35,212.30  -    -    -   

    	(ii)	   Lease liabilities*  414.40  414.40  -    -    -   

   	(iii) 	  Trade payables*  27,372.37  27,372.37  -    -    -   

   	(iv) 	  Other financial liabilities*  1,732.63  1,732.63  -    -    -   

Total  -    -    90,534.42  90,534.42 

# The Company's borrowings have been contracted at both floating and fixed rates of interest. The borrowings at floating 
rates reset at short intervals. Accordingly, the carrying value of such borrowings (including interest accrued but not due) 
approximates fair value. The fair value of long-term borrowings with fixed rates of interest is estimated by discounting future 
cash flows using current rates (applicable to instuments with similar terms, currency, credit risk and remaining maturities 
to discount the future payout).

* 	 The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, lease liabilites, cash and cash equivalents, investments, bank 
balances other than cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets and liabilities, approximates the fair values, due 
to their short-term nature. The other non-current financial assets represents security deposits given to various parties, 
loans and advances to employees and bank deposits (due for maturity after twelve months from the reporting date), lease 
liabilities and other non-current financial liabilities, the carrying value of which approximates the fair values as on the report-
ing date.

	 There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 
2019.

Valuation
Following financial instruments are remeasured at fair value as under :
(a) The fair value of investments in quoted Equity Shares and Mutual Funds are measured at quoted price or NRV.
(b)The fair value of all derivate contracts is determined using forward exchange rate at the balance sheet.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables is given below:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs 
Balance at the beginning of the year  29.97  29.97 
Impairment loss recognised / (reversed)  -    -   
Amount written off  -    -   
Balance at the end of the year  29.97  29.97 

Note
Cash and cash equivalents
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally transacts with the Banks with high credit ratings 
assigned by domestic and international credit rating agencies.

Other financial assets
Other financial assets do not have any significant credit risk

Risk Management
The Company Manages risk arising from financial instruments as under :

b.		 Financial risk management (continued)
(i)		 Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the 
Balance Sheet:

Particulars  As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Investments  1,774.43  2,323.58 

Trade receivables  18,457.16  19,053.59 

Cash and cash equivalents  4,357.85  597.56 

Other bank balances  392.23  695.03 

Loans  580.73  512.35 
Other financial assets  13,793.21  408.53 

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to perform or pay amounts due causing 
financial loss to the Company. It arises from cash and cash equivalents, financial instruments and principally from credit 
exposure to customers relating to outstanding receivables. The Company continuously reviews the credit to be given and the 
recoverability of amounts due. Majority of the trade receivables are from parties with whom the Company had long standing 
satisfactory dealings.

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables is as follows:

Gross carrying amount
Particulars  As at   As at  

 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 
 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

1-90 days past due *  2,286.69  7,183.28 

91 to 180 days past due  551.86  19.32 

More than 180 days past due #  27.78  12.59 

Not due  15,590.83  11,838.40 

 18,457.16  19,053.59 

* The Company believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, 
based on historical payment behaviour.

# The Company continuously reviews the credit to be given and the recoverability of amounts due. Majority of the trade 
receivables both domestic and overseas, are from parties with whom the company had long standing satisfactory dealings.
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b.		 Financial risk management (continued)
	 (ii)	 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities 
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far 
as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.		

The Company believes that its liquidity position, including total cash and cash equivalent and bank balances other than cash and 
cash equivalent of Rs.4,750.09 lakhs as at March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019 Rs. 1,292.59 lakhs), anticipated future internally 
generated funds from operations, and its fully available, revolving undrawn credit facility will enable it to meet its future known 
obligations in the ordinary course of business. However, if  liquidity needs were to arise, the Company believes it has access 
to financing arrangements,  which should enable it to meet its ongoing capital, operating, and other liquidity requirements. The 
Company will continue to consider various borrowing or leasing options to maximize liquidity and supplement cash requirements 
as necessary.				  

 The Company's liquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the following:
	 - Day to day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met.
	 - Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows.
	 - Maintaining diversified credit lines.

	 I. 	 Financial arrangements
	 The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars  As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
From banks  10,713.69  9,281.73 

(Rs. lakhs)

As at March 31, 2019 Carrying 
amount

Contractual cash flows
0-1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total

Non-current liabilities
  Borrowings*  8,321.62  -    7,973.47  348.15  8,321.62 
  Other financial liabilities  73.93  -    73.93  -    73.93 

Current liabilities
  Borrowings  34,791.90  34,791.90  -    -    34,791.90 
 Trade payables  30,432.59  30,432.59  -    -    30,432.59 
  Other financial liabilities  4,863.67  4,863.67  -    -    4,863.67 
Total  78,483.71  70,088.16  8,047.40  348.15  78,483.71 

(Rs. lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020 Carrying 
amount

Contractual cash flows
0-1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total

Non-current liabilities
  Borrowings*  17,782.29  -    17,584.49  197.80  17,782.29 
  Lease liabilities*  2,154.54  -    1,776.31  378.23  2,154.54 
  Other financial liabilities  87.79  -    87.79  -    87.79 

Current liabilities
  Borrowings  35,212.30  35,212.30  -    -    35,212.30 
  Lease liabilities  414.40  414.40  -    -    414.40 
  Trade payables  27,372.37  27,372.37  -    -    27,372.37 
  Other financial liabilities  7,510.73  7,510.73  -    -    7,510.73 

 -    -    -   
Total  90,534.42  70,509.80  19,448.59  576.03  90,534.42 

* Contractual cash flows does not include interest expense

	 II. 	 Maturities of financial liabilities
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted:
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

	 b.	 Financial risk management (continued)

	 III. 	 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk 
comprises two types of risk: currency risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The Board of directors is responsible for setting up of 
policies and procedures to manage market risks of the Company.

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. 
The Company is exposed to the effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and 
cash flows. Exposure arises primarily due to exchange rate fluctuations between the functional currency and other currencies from the 
Company's operating, investing and financing activities.

Exposure to currency risk
The summary of quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk, as expressed in Indian Rupees (Lakhs) as at March 
31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.

(Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020
USD EURO GBP

Financial assets 
Trade receivables*  7,657.76  943.87  -   
Sundry Advances  15.26  5.06  -   
Cash and cash equivalents  0.16 

 7,673.18  948.93  -   
Financial liabilities 
Borrowings  271.38  251.82  -   
Trade payables  5560.08  506.86  0.82 

 5,831.46  758.68  0.82 

(Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2019
USD EURO GBP

Financial assets 
Trade receivables*  7,657.76  943.87  -   
Sundry Advances  15.26  5.06  -   

 0.16 

 7,673.18  948.93  -   
Financial liabilities 
Borrowings  1,483.01  4.81  -   
Trade payables  874.39  30.50  -   

 2,357.40  35.31  -   

* Trade receivables are net of corresponding foreign exchange contracts			 

(Rs. lakhs)
Particulars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax

Weakening Strengthening Strengthening Weakening
1% depreciation / appreciation in Indian Rupees against 
following foreign currencies:

For the year ended March 31, 2020
 USD  18.42  (18.42)  11.98  (11.98)
 EUR  1.90  (1.90)  1.24  (1.24)
 GBP                 (0.01)  0.01  (0.01)  0.01 

 20.31  (20.31)  13.21  (13.21)
For the year ended March 31, 2019
 USD  10.88  (10.88)  7.08  (7.08)

   EUR (0.08)  0.08 (0.05) 0.05 
10.80  (10.80)  7.03  (7.03)

USD: United States Dollar, EUR: Euro, GBP: Great British Pound

	 Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible strengthening / weakening of the Indian Rupee against below currencies at March 31, 2020 (previous year ended 
as on March 31, 2019) would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in functional currency and affected 
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is performed on foreign currency denominated monetary financial 
assets and financial liabilities outstanding as at the year end.  This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, 
remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.		
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Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the 
Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The Company’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the term loans from banks carrying floating rate of interest. These 
obligations exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate 
changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period along with the interest rate profile are as follows:

	 Foreign exchange derivative contracts
The Company uses derivative financial instruments exclusively for hedging financial risks that arise from its commercial business 
or financing activities. The Company’s Corporate Treasury team manages its foreign currency risk by hedging transactions 
that are expected to occur within of 1 to 24 months for hedges of forecasted sales, purchases and capital expenditures. When 
a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match 
the terms of the hedged exposure. For hedges of forecast transactions the derivatives cover the period of exposure from the 
point the cash flows of the transactions are forecasted up to the point of settlement of the resulting receivable or payable that 
is denominated in the foreign currency. All identified exposures are managed as per the policy duly approved by the Board 
of Directors.

The following table details the foreign currency derivative contracts outstanding at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars  As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Financial Assets
Fixed Rate Instruments 
Bank Balances other than Cash & cash Equivalents  392.23  695.03 
Loans  580.73  512.35 
Other Financial assets  13,793.21  408.54 
Total  14,766.17  1,615.92 
Financial Liabilities
Fixed Rate Instruments
Term loans  13,202.80  5,645.08 
Public Deposits  618.31 557.63
Variable-rate instruments
Term loans  9,739.28  5,593.94 
Cash Credit  35,212.30  34,791.90 
Total  58,772.69  46,588.55 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) 
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign 
currency exchange rates, remain constant.

(Rs. lakhs)

Particulars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
100 bps increase 100 bps decrease 100 bps increase 100 bps decrease

For the year ended March 31, 2020
Interest on term loans  (72.17)  72.17  (46.95)  46.95 
Interest on cash credits  (350.86)  350.86  (228.26)  228.26 

For the year ended March 31, 2019
Interest on term loans  (55.94)  55.94  (36.39)  36.39 
Interest on cash credits  (347.92)  347.92  (226.34)  226.34 

Maturity

Outstanding contracts

No of deals Contract value of foreign 
currency (in lakhs)

Upto 12 months  
Nominal amount (in lakhs)

More than 12 months  
Nominal amount (in lakhs)

As at  
March 31, 

2020

As at  
March 31, 

2019

As at  
March 31, 

2020

As at  
March 31, 

2019

As at  
March 31, 

2020

As at  
March 31, 

2019

As at  
March 31, 

2020

As at  
March 31, 

2019
USD/INR sell forward  21  -    23.00  -    1,689.74  -    -    -   
EUR/INR sell forward  3  -    3.00  -    253.54  -    -    -   

Impact of depreciation / appreciation in INR against USD/EUR in respect of forward contracts is not material.

	 b.	 Financial risk management (continued)
	 III. 	 Market risk
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

48.	 Research and development expenses amounting to Rs. 549.23 lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs. 552.33 lakhs) have been charged 
to the respective revenue accounts. Capital expenditure relating to research and development amounting to Rs. 47.04 lakhs 
(March 31, 2019: Nil) has been included in property, plant and equipment.

49.	 Parties covered under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006” (MSMED Act, 2006) have been 
identified on the basis of confirmation received. The disclosures pursuant to the said MSME Act are as follows:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs 

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 
supplier at the end of each accounting year  397.88  337.19 

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along 
with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed 
day during each accounting year  -    -   

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) 
but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006  -    -   

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each account-
ing year  -    -   

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually 
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006.  -    -   

Particulars  As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Borrowings  58,772.69  46,588.55 

Less : Cash and cash equivalent  (4,357.85)  (597.56)

Adjusted net debt (A)  54,414.84  45,990.99 

Total equity (B)  54,139.46  47,231.37 

Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) 100.51% 97.37%

47.	 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, securities premium and 
all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the management of the 
Company’s capital structure is to maintain an efficient mix of debt and equity in order to achieve a low cost of capital, while 
taking into account the desirability of retaining financial flexibility to pursue business opportunities and adequate access to 
liquidity to mitigate the effect of unforeseen events on cash flows.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in the economic/ business 
conditions and requirements.

The Company's debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debts (less cash & cash equivalents) divided by 
total capital (equity attributable to equity share holders plus interest-bearing debt) is as under:
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Nature of Grant/assistance Income/ For the year ended  For the year ended
expense head  31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs 
Subvention on loan interest Other income  677.64  172.31 
Interest subsidy in respect of loan at concessional rate Other income  285.84  113.74 
Grant against cane purchased Cost of material consumed  -    990.69 
Grant for payment of cane dues subject to fulfillment  
of sugar export obligation and other conditions Other operating revenue  9,321.56  1,187.19 

Duty drawback and other incentive Other operating revenue  1,282.30  1,520.22 
Subsidy against maintenance of buffer stock Miscellaneous expense  100.07  72.72 
Subsidy against maintenance of buffer stock Interest expense  604.90  431.39 

50.	 Disclosures related to government grant

The government grants/assistance recognised are as under:

51.	 Immovable properties of Rs. 888.99 lakhs yet to be endorsed in the name of Company are as under :

 (Rs. lakhs)

Particluars Amount as on 
March 31, 2020

Amount as on 
March 31, 2019 Remarks

"Land situated at Daurala, Uttar 
Pradesh (UP) and Kota, Rajasthan" 844.04 * 844.04 * Vested in the Company pursuant to a Scheme of 

Arrangement of erstwhile DCM Limited

Land situated at Daurala, UP 44.95 44.95
The title deeds are in the name of Daurala Organics 
Limited which was merged with the Company under 
section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 in 
terms of approval of Honorable High Court

* Includes leasehold land Rs. 465.35 lakhs at Kota, Rajasthan.

52 Consequent to introduction of GST with effect from July 1, 2017, there has been ambiguity with regard to chargeability of tax, i.e. UP VAT 
or GST or any other tax, on certain supplies made to a party and, therefore, no tax has been charged on such supplies. The buyer has 
undertaken to indemnify the Company for any tax/interest, or any other related expenses, as may be finally incurred in this regard.

UP VAT Authorities have completed ex-parte assessments for the nine months ended March 31,2018 and year ended March 31,2019 and 
have raised demands in that context. The Company has filed applications with the authorities for opening of such assessments. Pending 
clarity, the company has, during the year, made a provision for contingencies under ""Provisions (current)"" of Rs. 9,427.42 lakhs with 
a recognition of corresponding Reimbursement Assets (net of advance received of Rs. 2,440.34 lakhs) under ""Other financial assets 
(current)"". This does not have impact on the profit of the company. 

53 The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by transfer pricing 
legislation under section 92D for its specified domestic transactions. Based on the transfer pricing regulations/ policy, the transfer pricing 
study for the year ended March 31, 2020 is to be conducted on or before due date of the filing of return and the Company will further update 
above information and records based on the same and expects these to be in existence latest by that date. Management believes that all 
the above transactions are at arm’s length price and the aforesaid legislations will not have impact on the financial statement, particularly on 
the amount of tax expense and provision for taxation.

54 In March, 2020, the World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 to be a pandemic. Consequent to this, Government of India 
declared a national lockdown on March 25, 2020. Though the lockdown did not have any material impact in the operations of 
the Company in the year ended March 31,2020, it may impact the business activities of the Company in the financial year 2020-21. 
The Company has evaluated the impact of the pandemic on its business operations, business projections and on the carrying 
amounts of receivables, inventories, tangible and intangible assets and other assets / liabilities and has not identified any material 
impact. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of the 
pandemic, the Company has considered internal and external information available till the date of approval of these financial results. 
In the above context and based on the current estimates, the Company does not foresee any material adverse impact in the medium to long 
term on the business, its liquidity and the ability to service its debt or other obligations. The overall economic situation being uncertain due 
to the evolving scenario of the pandemic, the Company would  continue to closely monitor any developments in future economic conditions 
as they emerge and consider their impact on the financial statements of the relevant periods."

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
DCM Shriram Industries Limited

N.K. Jain
Director Finance & Chief 
Financial Officer

Y.D. Gupta
Vice President  &
Company Secretary

P.R. Khanna
Director
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Date  : 27.06.2020

Place : New Delhi
Date  : 27.06.2020

S.B Mathur
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Kaushal Kishore 
Partner
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The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
As at 31 March 2020, the Holding Company has inventory 
of sugar with the carrying value of Rs 48,768.12 lakhs. The 
inventory of sugar is valued at the lower of cost and net 
realizable value. 
We believe that the determination of net realizable value 
of inventory of sugar is a key audit matter considering the 
size of inventory in the financial statements and judgement 
involved in the consideration of factors including minimum 
sale price, regulatory intervention in determining periodical 
restrictions on quantity of sales, frequent fluctuations in 
selling prices and the related notifications and policies of 
the Government in this business segment. 

We understood and tested control as established by the 
management in determination of net realizable value of inventory 
of sugar.
We have considered factors of actual selling prices prevailing 
around and subsequent to the year end, management estimation 
of scenarios of overall production and consumption of sugar, 
minimum selling price, notification of the Government of India, 
and other measures taken by the Government with respect to 
sugar industry as a whole. 
Based on the above procedures performed, the management’s 
determination of the net realizable value of the inventory of 
sugar as at the year-end is considered to be reasonable.  

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Government authorities have issued various 
notifications impacting sugar mills. These include export 
of sugar along with compliances with several conditions to 
be eligible to get certain Government grants for offsetting 
the cost of cane crushed and to facilitate timely payment 
of farmers’ dues. 

We evaluated the management’s assessment regarding 
reasonable certainty for complying with the relevant conditions 
as specified in the notifications/ policies and collections and 
tested control around it. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF DCM SHRIRAM INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of DCM Shriram Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding 
Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) and its associate, which 
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income and expense), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration of 
reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiary and associate as were audited by the other auditors, 
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated 
state of affairs of the Group and its associate as at 31 March 2020, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, 
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and its associate in accordance with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit 
reports of the other auditors referred to in sub paragraph (a) of the “Other Matters” paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Description of Key Audit Matter
(a)	 Determination of net realizable value of inventory of sugar 
	 See note 2A(d) and 11 to the consolidated financial statements

(b)	 Impact of Government policies/ notifications 
	 See note 2A(h) and 53 to the consolidated financial statements
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The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

During the year, the Holding Company has recognised 
grants/assistance aggregating to Rs. 10,026.53 Lakhs 
for maintaining buffer stock and to fulfil the maximum 
admissible export quantity (MAEQ) as notified by the 
Government. These have been considered significant to 
the financial statements. 
These areas involved significant management judgement 
in recognition, considering stringent compliances. The 
areas of judgement include assessment of fulfilment of 
regulatory conditions, reliability of amounts recognised 
and timing of accruals.

We obtained understanding of the relevant notifications/ policies 
issued by various authorities to assess the appropriateness of 
claims and related adjustments pursuant to any changes and 
basis for determination of claims.
We tested the ageing analysis and assessed the information 
used by the management to determine the realisability of claims 
and its corresponding accrual in the financial statements. 
Based on the above procedures performed, the management’s 
estimates related to recognition of grants/ assistance are 
considered reasonable.

Other Information
The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s annual report, but does not include the financial statements and 
our auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on 
the work done/ audit reports of other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

(c)	 Recoverability of MAT credit entitlement and impact of adopting the new income tax regime 
	 See note 2A(f) and 39 to the consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Holding Company has recognised Minimum Alternate 
Tax (MAT) credit entitlement amounting to Rs. 4,328.99 
Lakhs as at 31 March 2020. The utilisation of this asset will 
be by way of adjustment from taxes when the Company 
pays taxes under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 
1961. Therefore, the recoverability of MAT credit entitle-
ment is dependent upon generation of sufficient future tax-
able profits within the stipulated period prescribed under 
the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Further, with effect from financial year 2019-20, the In-
come Tax Act provides an option of paying income taxes 
at a lower rate subject to complying with certain prescribed 
conditions (‘new tax regime’). The Holding Company has 
opted to shift to the new tax regime from a financial year 
in the future. 
Accordingly, the deferred tax balances which are expected 
to reverse subsequent to the Holding Company shifting to 
the new tax regime in the specified future year were re-
measured and the consequential amount has been recog-
nised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss of 
the current year. 
Assessment of recoverability of MAT credit entitlement 
and determination of the point in time at which the Holding 
Company would shift to the new tax regime involves 
judgement and estimation (including, consideration of 
uncertainties associated with COVID 19 pandemic) 
regarding forecasting future taxable profits. 
Since the impact of remeasurement of deferred tax 
balances as stated above is sensitive to these judgements 
and estimates, it affects the amount of deferred tax 
balances (including MAT credit).
Given the volume and level of judgement involved, we 
have determined this to be a key audit matter.

We have examined the implications of the new provisions on 
the tax position of the Holding Company to assess the impact of 
adopting the new tax regime from the specified future financial 
year.
We have obtained the budgets and business projections (in-
cluding profit forecast) prepared by the Holding Company and 
assessed these by comparing with the historical trends, current 
year performance and approved future business plans. 
We have assessed the appropriateness of the management’s 
estimation, including key assumptions, of recoverability of MAT 
credit entitlement against the forecasted taxable profits and tim-
ing of shift to new tax regime which impacts the measurement of 
deferred tax balances. We also performed sensitivity analysis of 
the taxable profits for such assessment.
We have assessed the adequacy of related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these  consolidated 
financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated 
profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group, 
including its associate, in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in 
the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors 
either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate is responsible for overseeing the financial 
reporting process of each company.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements may arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:
•	 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

•	 obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on the internal financial 
controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls based on our audit;

•	 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the Management and Board of Directors;

•	 conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation 
of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associate to cease to 
continue as a going concern;

•	 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation; and

•	 obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Holding Company to express an opinion on 
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial 
information of the Holding Company included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. 
In respect of financial information of its subsidiary and its associate that are included in the consolidated financial information, 
which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance 
of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further 
described in para (a) of the section titled ‘Other Matters’ in this audit report.

	 We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the other auditors referred to in 
sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company of which we are the independent auditors, regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal controls that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are, therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters 
in our auditors’ report unless law or regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Other Matter
We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 1,202.29 Lakhs as at 
31 March 2020, total revenues of Rs. 86.69 Lakhs and net cash flows amounting to Rs. 12.63 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as 
considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net profit after 
tax of Rs 6.02 Lakhs and Group’s share of other comprehensive expense of Rs. 774.97 Lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2020, in respect 
of an associate, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors 
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates 
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary and associate, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary and associate, is based solely on the audit reports of the other auditors.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified 
in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
A.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate 

financial statements of a subsidiary and an associate as were audited by other auditors, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph, we 
report, to the extent applicable, that:
a)	 we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 

for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;
b)	 in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements 

have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors;
c)	 the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 

consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

d)	 in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act;
e)	 on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31 March 2020, and taken 

on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company 
and an associate company, none of the directors of the Group companies and, its associate company is disqualified as on 31 
March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; and

f)	 with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company, its 
subsidiary company and associate and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

(B)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on 
the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiary and associate, as noted in the 
‘Other Matters’ paragraph:
i.	 the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2020 on the consolidated financial 

position of the Group and its associate.  Refer Note 42 and 55 to the consolidated financial statements;
ii.	 the Group and its associate did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts 

during the year ended 31 March 2020;
iii.	 there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Holding Company or its subsidiary company and associate company during the year ended 31 March 2020; and
iv.	 the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes during the 

period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made in the financial statements since they do not pertain to 
the financial year ended 31 March 2020. 

(C)	 With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s report under section 197(16):
	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports of the statutory auditors of 

the subsidiary company and associate company which were not audited by us, the remuneration paid during the current year by the 
Holding Company, its subsidiary company and associate company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 
of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and associate company is not in 
excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under 
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

	 For B S R & Co. LLP
	 Chartered Accountants
	 Firm's Registration No. 1012482W/W-100022

	 Kaushal Kishore
	 Partner
Place: New Delhi	 Membership No. 090075
Date: 27.06.2020	 UDIN: 20090075AAAAAR3145
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements of DCM Shriram 
Industries Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020
Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
[Referred to in paragraph A(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report 
of even date]

Opinion
In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company as of and for the year 
ended 31 March 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
of DCM Shriram Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary company and its 
associate, as of that date. 

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and its associate company, have, in all material respects, 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, and such internal financial controls 
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of such internal controls 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting, issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The management and the Board of Directors of the respective companies are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the criteria established considering 
the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on 
Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the relevant 
subsidiary company and associate company in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
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company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud, may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference 
to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matter
Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, insofar as it relates to the subsidiary company and 
an associate company, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies.
	

	 For B S R & Co. LLP
	 Chartered Accountants
	 Firm Registration No. 101248W / W-100022

	 Kaushal Kishore
	 Partner
Place : New Delhi	 (Membership No. 090075)
Date  : June 27, 2020	 UDIN: 20090075AAAAAR3145
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
DCM Shriram Industries Limited

N.K. Jain
Director Finance & Chief 
Financial Officer

Y.D. Gupta
Vice President  &
Company Secretary

P.R. Khanna
Director

Place : New Delhi
Date  : 27.06.2020

Place : New Delhi
Date  : 27.06.2020

S.B Mathur
Chairman

Alok B. Shriram 
Sr. Managing Director

Madhav B. Shriram
Managing Director

Kaushal Kishore 
Partner
Membership No.: 090075

As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.:  
101248W/W-100022

Particulars Note  As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
ASSETS
Non-current assets  
Property, plant and equipment 3 42,993.14 38,878.97 
Capital work-in progress 3 3,423.63 2,245.66 
Right-of-use-assets 41 2,499.22 - 
Intangible assets 4 112.76 90.31 
Intangible assets under development 4 - 16.50 
Equity accounted investees 5 1,525.28 2,294.23 
Financial assets
  (i) Investments 6 - - 
  (ii) Loans 7 532.74 500.24 
  (iii) Other financial assets 8 445.56 99.67 
Income-tax assets (net) 9 1,601.87 1,395.81 
Other non-current assets 10 165.89 983.88 
Total non-current assets 53,300.09 46,505.27 
Current assets
Inventories 11 66,274.39 61,643.95 
Financial assets
  	(i) 	 Investments 12 1,161.03 1,710.18 
  	(ii) 	Trade receivables 13 18,457.16 19,053.59 
 	 (iii) 	Cash and cash equivalents 14 4,362.68 615.02 
  	(iv) 	Other bank balances 15 1,326.98 1,425.02 
  	(v) 	Loans 16 222.99 317.11 
 	 (vi) 	Other financial assets 17 13,390.98 344.25 
Other current assets 18 2,402.03 2,810.26 
Total current assets 1,07,598.24 87,919.38 
TOTAL ASSETS 1,60,898.33 1,34,424.65 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 19 1,739.84 1,739.84 
Other equity 20 54,213.85 48,087.44 
Total equity 55,953.69 49,827.28 
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
  (i) Borrowings 21 17,782.29 8,321.62 
  (ii) Lease liabilities 41 2,154.54 - 
  (iii) Other financial liabilities 22 87.79 73.93 
Provisions 23 1,613.74 1,173.73 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 39 1,329.06 3,028.13 
Other non-current liabilities 24 57.95 73.28 
Total non- current liabilities 23,025.37 12,670.69 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
  (i) Borrowings 25 35,212.30 34,791.90 
  (ii) Lease liabilities 41 414.40 - 
  (iii) Trade payables 26
       -Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 397.88 337.19 
       -Total outstanding dues other than Micro and Small Enterprises 26,975.39 30,096.26 
  (iii) Other financial liabilities 27 7,510.73 4,863.67 
Other current liabilities 28 1,584.44 1,454.46 
Provisions 29 9,824.13 383.20 
Total current liabilities 81,919.27 71,926.68 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,60,898.33 1,34,424.65 
Significant Accounting Policies 2A
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the  
Consolidated financial statements			 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
DCM Shriram Industries Limited

N.K. Jain
Director Finance & Chief 
Financial Officer

Y.D. Gupta
Vice President  &
Company Secretary

P.R. Khanna
Director

Place : New Delhi
Date  : 27.06.2020

Place : New Delhi
Date  : 27.06.2020

S.B Mathur
Chairman

Alok B. Shriram 
Sr. Managing Director

Madhav B. Shriram
Managing Director

Kaushal Kishore 
Partner
Membership No.: 090075

As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.:  
101248W/W-100022

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars Note  For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Revenue
Revenue from operations 30 1,79,494.90 1,68,900.18 
Other income 31 2,393.06 1,903.67 
Total revenue 1,81,887.96 1,70,803.85 
Expenses
Cost of material consumed 32 97,584.53 1,01,734.37 
Purchase of traded goods 33 20,514.47 13,151.74 
Changes in inventories of finished goods 34 (3,437.49) (10,693.40)
and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense 35 14,236.10 13,480.17 
Finance costs 36 4,454.09 2,400.19 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 37 2,760.95 2,079.54 
Other expenses 38 36,070.22 39,528.41 
Total expenses 1,72,182.87 1,61,681.02 
Profit before share of profit of equity accounted investees and tax 9,705.09 9,122.83 
Share of profit of equity accounted investees ( net of tax) 6.02 85.93 
Profit before tax 9,711.11 9,208.76 
Tax expense
Current tax expense 39 2,344.68 1,969.75 
Deferred tax (credit)/ charge 39 (2,222.50) 87.68 
Tax  relating to earlier years 39 - (335.19)

122.18 1,722.24 
Profit for the year 9,588.93 7,486.52 
Other comprehensive income/(expense)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Re-measurement (loss) on defined benefit obligation (584.62) (124.02)
Income tax pertaining to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 204.29 43.34 
Share of OCI  of equity accounted investees ( net of tax ) (774.97) (133.80)
Total other comprehensive income/ (expense), net of taxes (1,155.30) (214.48)
Total comprehensive income 8,433.63 7,272.04 
Profit for the year attributable to 50
- Owners of the Company 9,588.93 7,486.52 
- Non-controlling interest - - 
Other comprehensive income / (expense) for the year attributable to 50
- Owners of the Company (1,155.30) (214.48)
- Non-controlling interest - - 
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to 50
- Owners of the Company 8,433.63 7,272.04 
- Non-controlling interest - - 
Earnings  per equity share of Rs. 10 each- basic/ diluted  (Rs.) 44 55.11 43.03 
Significant Accounting Policies 2A

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the  
consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2020

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES		
Profit before tax  9,711.11  9,208.76 
Adjustments for :
	 Depreciation and amortisation  2,760.95  2,079.54 
	 Finance costs  4,454.09  2,400.19 
	 Interest income  (146.11)  (317.15)
	 Interest received against subvention  (963.48)  (286.04)
	 Deferred rent amortisation
	 Profit on sale of fixed assets
	 Loss/ (Profit) on sale of property,plant and equipment / discarded assets (net)  179.91  (52.68)
	 Share of profit of equity accounted investees (net of tax)  (6.02)  (85.93)
	 Profit on sale of current investments  (19.72)  (175.78)
	 Net gain on fair value of investments  (63.77)  (64.07)
Operating profit before changes in assets and liabilities  15,906.96  12,706.84 
Changes in assets and liabilities
	 (Decrease) / Increase in trade payables  (3,508.99)  11,086.63 
	 Increase in financial liabilities  869.35  8.43 
	 Increase in other liabilities & provisions  9,410.98  143.22 
	 Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables  596.43  (2,565.32)
	 (Increase) in inventories  (4,630.44)  (12,038.41)
	 (Increase) / Decrease in financial assets  (13,479.82)  943.88 
	 Decrease / (Increase) in other assets  426.55  (387.60)
Cash generated from operations  5,591.02  9,897.67 
	 Income tax paid (Net)  (1,823.01)  (1,547.05)
Net cash from operating activities ( A )  3,768.01  8,350.62 

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES		
Capital expenditure on acquisition of items of property, plant and equipments and 
intangible assets  (7,509.99)  (8,853.36)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments  303.42  117.18 
Purchase of current investments  (315.00)  (10,375.00)
Proceeds from sale of long term non trade investments - -
Proceeds from sale of current investments  947.64  8,904.66 
Changes in other bank balances  98.05  (371.47)
Interest received  164.93  321.63 
Inter corporate deposits mode 
Inter Corporate deposits received back/ (given)  130.00  (15.00)
Net cash used in investing activities ( B )		   (6,180.95)  (10,271.36)

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES		
	 Proceeds from long term borrowings  14,618.23  8,959.17 
	 Repayment of long term borrowings  (2,775.37)  (3,000.63)
	 Proceeds / (repayments) from short term borrowings (net)  420.40  (1,148.86)
	 Payment of Inter Corpoate deposit		   -    (150.00)
	 Repayments of Lease Liabilities  (375.10)
	 Finance costs paid (Net of subvention)  (3,461.46)  (2,167.82)
	 Dividend paid  (1,872.71)  (680.44)
	 Dividend distribution tax paid  (393.39)  (143.05)
Net cash from / (used) in financing activities ( C )	 	  6,160.60  1,668.37 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  3,747.66  (252.37)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  615.02  867.39 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of  the year  4,362.68  615.02 

Component of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with scheduled banks:
	 - Current accounts  4,334.47  586.81 
	 - Deposit with original maturity of Less than three months
Balance with Reserve Bank of India - -
Cheques & drafts in hand	 - -
	 - Cash in hand  28.21  28.21 
Cash and cash equivalents at the close of  the year		   4,362.68  615.02 
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As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & CO. LLP
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ICAI Firm Registration No.:  
101248W/W-100022

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing 
activities :

(Rs. lakhs)

Particulars Non-current 
borrowings*

Current 
borrowings

Lease   
liability Total

Opening balance as at April 1, 2018  5,980.25  36,090.76  -    42,071.01 

Cash flows during the year  5,633.97  (3,142.11)  -    2,491.86 

Non-cash changes due to:

- Interest expense (net of subvention)  270.88  1,843.25  -    2,114.13 

Closing balance as at March 31,2019  11,885.10  34,791.90  -    46,677.00 

Opening balance as at April 1, 2019  11,885.10  34,791.90  -    46,677.00 

Cash flows during the year  11,353.49  (2,399.42)  (527.37)  8,426.70 

Non-cash changes due to:

- Interest expense (net of subvention)  518.52  2,819.82  -    3,338.34 

- Variation in exchange rates  -    -   

- Finance cost on lease liability  -    -   152.27  152.27 

- Lease liability recognised  -    -   2944.04  2,944.04 

Closing balance as at March 31,2020  23,757.11  35,212.30  2,568.94  61,538.35 

*  Includes current maturities of non current borrowings, interest accrued but not due on borrowings and unclaimed deposits  
   and interest accrued thereon, refer Note 22 and 27

Notes

1.	 The consolidated cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with "Indirect Method" as set out on Indian 
Accounting Standard -7 on  "Statement on Cash Flows ".

Significant Accounting Policies	 	 	 2A

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the cosolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020
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B. Other equity             (Rs.lakhs) 

Particulars Reserve and surplus Items of Other  
Comprehensive 

Income

Total

Amalgama-
tion reserve

General 
reserve

Capital 
redemption 

reserve

Capital  
reserve

Securities 
Premium 
account

Retained 
Earnings

Balance as at April 1, 2018 1,411.38 13,465.60 0.10 234.89 3,406.68 22,698.58 437.16 41,654.39 
Profit for the year - - - - - 7,486.52 - 7,486.52 
Other comprehensive income /  
(expense) for the year - - - - - - (214.48) (214.48)

Total comprehensive income  
for the year 1,411.38 13,465.60 0.10 234.89 3,406.68 30,185.10 222.68 48,926.43 

Transactions with shareholders,  
recorded directly in equity          

Distribution to shareholders              
Final dividend on  

      equity shares - - - - - (695.94) - (695.94)

Dividend distribution tax on  
      final dividend - - - - - (143.05) - (143.05)

Balance as at March 31, 2019 1,411.38 13,465.60 0.10 234.89 3,406.68 29,346.11 222.68 48,087.44 
Balance as at April 1, 2019 1,411.38 13,465.60 0.10 234.89 3,406.68 29,346.11 222.68 48,087.44 
Profit for the year - - - - - 9,588.93 - 9,588.93 
Other comprehensive income /  
(expense)  for the year

- - - - - - (1,155.30) (1,155.30)

Total comprehensive income  
for the year 1,411.38 13,465.60 0.10 234.89 3,406.68 38,935.04 (932.62) 56,521.07 

Transactions with shareholders,  
recorded directly in equity              

Distribution to shareholders              
Final dividend on equity shares  (Rs.6.00 
per equity share of Rs.10 each) - - - - - (1,043.91) - (1,043.91)

Dividend distribution tax on final dividend - - - - - (214.58) - (214.58)
Interim dividend on equity shares  
(Rs.5.00 per equity share of Rs.10 each) - - - - - (869.92) - (869.92)

Dividend distribution tax on interim 
dividend - - - - - (178.81) - (178.81)

Balance as at March 31, 2020 1,411.38 13,465.60 0.10 234.89 3,406.68 36,627.82 (932.62) 54,213.85 

A. Equity share capital  

Particulars (Rs.lakhs)
Balance as at April 1, 2018 1,739.84 
Changes in equity share capital during the year ended March 31, 2019 -   
Balance as at March 31, 2019 1,739.84 
Changes in equity share capital during the year ended March 31, 2020 -   
Balance as at March 31, 2020 1,739.84 

Nature and purpose of reserve
a. Amalgamation reserve
Amalgation reserve has been created on amalgamation of Daurala Organics Limited with the Group.		
b. General reserve
Profits earned by the Group are transferred to General reserve as decided.
c. Capital redemption reserve
Created on redemption of preference shares as per requirements of the Companies Act, 1956.
d. Capital reserve
Represents excess of Group's portion of equity in the subsidiary over its cost of investment.
e. Securities premium
Securities premium has been created on account of the premium received on issue of shares and capital and reorganisation reserve 
reclassified in the year ended March 31, 1993.
Significant Accounting Policies					     2A
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1.	 Corporate Information 
DCM Shriram Industries Limited (the “Company” or “the Parent Company” or the “Holding Company”) is 
a Public Limited Listed Company incorporated in India and having its registered office at Kanchenjunga 
Building, 6th Floor, 18, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi – 110001. The Holding Company and its subsidiary 
(together “the Group”) are primarily engaged in production and sale of sugar, alcohol, power, chemicals and 
industrial fibers.

2	 Principles of consolidation and Basis of Preparation
2.1	 Principles of consolidation

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the 
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group 
controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
•	 Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities 

of the investee)
•	 Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
•	 The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption 
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers 
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:
•	 The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
•	 Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 
•	 The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights
•	 The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the 

other voting rights holders
The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there 
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the 
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to 
control the subsidiary. 

(i)	 Subsidiaries :
Subsidiaries are the entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or 
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns 
through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiary are included in the consolidated 
financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.
Non-controlling interest in the results and equity of the subsidiary are shown separately in the consolidated 
statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and balance sheet respectively. 
Changes in the Group’s equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for 
as equity transactions.
When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and 
any related NCI and other components of equity. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at 
fair value at the date the control is lost. Any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

(ii)	 Equity accounted investees
The Group’s interest in equity accounted investees comprise interest in associate.
An associate is an entity over which the group has significant influence but not control or joint control over the 
financial and operating policies.
Investments in associate are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. It is initially recognized at 
cost which includes transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements 
include the Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (OCI) of equity accounted 
investees until the date on which significant influence ceases.
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The details of the entities included in the consolidation and the Parent Company’s holding therein is as under:

S. 
No. Name of the entity Nature of 

relation

Ownership in % either  
directly or through 

subsidiary
Country of 

Incorporation
2019-20 2018-19

1 Daurala Foods and Beverages 
Pvt. Ltd. (DFBPL)

Subsidiary 100 100 India

2 DCM Hyundai Limited (DHL) Associate 49.28 49.28 India

Consolidation procedure:
(a)	 Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with that 

of its subsidiary. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of 
the assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

(b)	 Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s 
portion of equity of subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related 
goodwill.

(c)	 Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to 
transactions (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognized in assets, such 
as inventory and property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’), are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may 
indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 
Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses 
resulting from intragroup transactions.

	 Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity 
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial 
statement of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. 
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions 
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

2.2	 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
a)	 Statement of Compliance
	 These Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements (“Consolidated Financial Statements”) of the Group 

has been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’), 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of 
the Act, as applicable.

	 These Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 
2020 are approved by the Company's Audit Committee and by the Board of Directors on  
June 27, 2020.

b)	 Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the 
functional currency of each of the Group’s entities and its associate. All amounts are in Rupees lakhs 
with two decimal points rounded-off to the nearest thousands, unless otherwise stated. 

c)	 Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical 
cost convention, except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Derivative financial instruments and certain 
other financial assets and liabilities 

Fair value

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of 
defined benefit obligations
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d)	 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised prospectively. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation/ uncertainty and 
judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the consolidated 
financial statements are included in the following notes:
-	 Recognition and estimation of tax expense including deferred tax- Note 2A(f) and 39.
-	 Assessment of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset- Note 2A(b) and (c).
-	 Estimation of obligations relating to employee benefits: key actuarial assumptions- Note 2A(g)
-	 Valuation of Inventories- Note 2A(d)
-	 Fair Value Measurement of financials instruments- Note 2A(p)
-	 Lease Classification- Note 2A(m)
-	 Recognition and Measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the 

likelihood and magnitude of outflow of resources- Note 2A(k)
-	 Impairment of financial assets- Note 2A(p)
-	 Impairment of non-financial assets- Note 2A(j)

	 e)	 Changes in significant accounting policies
		  Effective April 01, 2019, the Group has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” using the modified retrospective 

approach on all the lease contracts existing on that date. Accordingly, the comparative information has 
not been restated. It replaces Ind AS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations. This resulted in recognising 
a right-of-use asset with a corresponding lease liability as at April 01, 2019.  Refer to note 2A(m) and 41 
for details.

2A.	 Significant accounting policies
a)	 Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products/ activities of the Group and the normal time between acquisition of 
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its operating cycle as 
12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

b)	 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
(i)	 Recognition and measurement

All items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized 
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation/ amortization and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any. 
Cost of acquisition or construction of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price 
including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and 
rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended 
use. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is 
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Capital 
work-in-progress is stated at cost, net of impairment loss, if any. 
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs 
directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition and location for their intended use, 
and the estimated cost of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they 
are located. 
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment having significant cost have different useful 
lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and 
equipment. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal 
or when no further benefit is expected from its use and disposal. Assets retired from active use 
and held for disposal are generally stated at the lower of their net book value and net realizable 
value. Any gain or losses arising on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Once classified as held-for-sale, property, plant and equipment are no longer depreciated.
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

	 (ii)	 Subsequent Expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it 
is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise 
and the cost of the item can be measured.

	 (iii)	 Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis using the straight-line method as per the useful lives 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.. Assets costing up to Rs. 0.05 lakhs are fully 
depreciated in the year of purchase. No depreciation is provided on assets sold, discarded, etc. 
during the year. 
Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight line basis over the unexpired period of lease. 
Freehold land and leasehold land are not depreciated.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed in each financial year, and 
changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively. 

c)	 Intangible assets
(i)	 Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets comprise computer software. Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are 
measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes 
any directly attributable incidental expenses necessary to make the assets ready for its intended use.
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are 
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

(ii)	 Subsequent Expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

(iii)	 Amortisation 
Intangible assets, being computer software are amortised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss over the estimated useful life of 5 years using the straight line method.
The amortisation method and the useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed annually and 
adjusted as necessary.

d)	  Inventories 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is ascertained on a ‘weighted 
average’ basis. 
Raw materials and stores and spares - Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The aforesaid items are valued at Net 
Realisable Value if the finished products in which they are to be incorporated are expected to be sold 
at a loss.
Finished goods and work in progress - Cost comprises raw material cost, other direct costs, and 
overheads incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. Net realizable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

e)	 Revenue recognition
	 (i)	 Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of products is transferred 
to the customer. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns and allowances, trade discounts 
and rebates. The Company collects Goods and Services Tax on behalf of the government and 
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therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, these are excluded 
from the revenue.
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for 
variable consideration such as volume discounts, cash discounts etc. as specified in the contract 
with the customer. 
Contract asset is the entity’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the entity 
has transferred to the customer. A contract asset becomes a receivable when the entity’s right to 
consideration is unconditional, which is the case when only the passage of time is required before 
payment of the consideration is due. 
Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the 
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If 
a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, 
a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the 
contract. 

	 (ii)	 Rendering of services
Revenue from sale of services is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured and is recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at 
the reporting date when the underlying services are performed. Job work is recognized upon full 
completion of the job work.

	 (iii)	 Interest and dividend income
Interest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method 
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by 
reference to the principal outstanding. Dividends income from investments is recognised when the 
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established. 
Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition:

			   - 	 Judgement is required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price 
could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements 
such as volume discounts, price concessions and incentives. Any consideration payable to 
the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product 
or service from the customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in 
the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in 
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of 
each reporting period. The Group allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the 
performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable evidence that they pertain to 
one or more distinct performance obligations.

			   - 	 The Group’s performance obligation under revenue contracts, is satisfied at a point in time and 
judgement is exercised in determining point in time.

f)	 Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly 
in equity or in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).
•	 Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the 

year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount 
of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or 
received after considering uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

	 Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or 
simultaneously.

•	 Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. 
Deferred tax is not recognised for:
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-	 temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that 
is not a business combination and that effects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the 
time of the transaction;

- 	 temporary differences related to freehold land and investments in subsidiaries, to the extent that    
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is 
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- 	 taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred tax assets (DTA) include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws 
in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future 
income tax liability.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they 
can be used. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised 
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they 
can be used. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when 
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that 
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the 
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or 
simultaneously.

g)	  Employee benefits
(i)	 Short-term benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are 
classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and 
ex-gratia. Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and 
are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected 
to be paid, if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay the amount as a result 
of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii)	 Defined contribution plans
The defined contribution plans i.e. provident fund (administered through Regional Provident Fund 
Office), superannuation fund and employee state insurance corporation are post-employment 
benefit plans under which the Group pays fixed contributions and will have no legal and constructive 
obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are 
recognised as an employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss when they are due. 
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in 
future payments is available.

(iii)	 Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. 
The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan 
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior 
periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. 
Gratuity
The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the Gratuity Plan) covering all eligible 
employees. In accordance with the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Gratuity plan provides a 
lump sum payment to vested employees on retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of 
employment.
These are funded by the Group and are managed by LIC.
The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed by a qualified actuary separately for each 
plan using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each year of service as giving rise to 
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the 
final obligation.
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The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rate 
used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the 
market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity periods 
approximating to the terms of related obligations. 
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding 
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit (excluding amounts included in net 
interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with 
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. 
Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
The Group determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) 
for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the 
beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account 
any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions 
and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans 
are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
Provident fund (other than those made to the Regional Provident Fund Office of the Government)
Provident Fund Contributions other than those made to the Regional Provident Fund Office of the 
Government which are made to the Trusts administered by the Group are accounted for on the 
basis of actuarial valuation. The interest rate payable to the members of the Trust shall not be 
lower than the statutory rate of interest declared by the Central Government under the Employees 
Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and shortfall, if any, based on actuarial 
estimate by an approved actuary shall be made good by the Group.

(iv)	 Other long-term employee benefits
Benefits under the Group’s privilege leaves and medical leave are other long term employee 
benefits. The Group’s net obligation in respect of privilege leave and medical leave are the amount 
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior 
periods. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The obligation is measured on 
the basis of an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. 
Re-measurements are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period 
in which they arise.

h)	 Government Grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance 
that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. 
Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the Consolidated Statement 
of Profit and Loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to 
compensate and presented within other income other than export benefits which are accounted for in the 
year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.
A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses incurred in a 
previous period, is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which it becomes receivable.

(i)	 Foreign currency transactions and translation
The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group 
operates i.e., functional currency, to be Indian Rupees (INR). The consolidated financial statements are 
presented in INR which is Group’s and its associate’s functional and presentational currency. 
Monetary and non-monetary transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional 
currency of the Group at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or at an average rate if the 
average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.
Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettled on reporting date are translated 
at the rates of exchange prevailing on reporting date. Gains/ (losses) arising on account of realisation/ 
settlement of foreign exchange transactions and on translation of monetary foreign currency assets and 
liabilities are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
Non-monetary items measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
The derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts to hedge its risk associated 
with foreign currency fluctuations are stated at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair 
value are taken directly to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.
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j)	 Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 
‘Impairment of Assets’. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair 
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot 
be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows 
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets 
(the “cash-generating unit”, or “CGU”). 
An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the 
assets of the CGU.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

k)	 Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
Provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period., If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific 
to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as a finance cost. 
Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only 
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the 
control of the Group. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or 
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the 
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

l)	 Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or erection of qualifying 
assets are capitalised as part of cost of such asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready 
for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which take a substantial period of time to get ready 
for their intended use or sale.
When the Group borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the borrowing 
costs incurred are capitalized. When the Group borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpose 
of obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalization of the borrowing costs is computed based on the 
weighted average cost of general borrowing that are outstanding during the period and used for the 
acquisition of the qualifying asset. 
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the 
qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other 
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs include exchange 
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment 
to interest costs.
All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

m)	 Leases
Effective April 1, 2019, the Group has applied Ind AS 116 using modified retrospective approach and, 
therefore, the comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under Ind AS 
17. The details of accounting policies under Ind AS 17 are disclosed separately, if they are different from 
those under Ind AS 116 and the impact of changes is disclosed in note 41.
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Policy applicable from April 1, 2019
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, 
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period 
of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use 
of an identified asset, the Company assess whether:

		  -	 the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and 
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct 
asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

		  -	 the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset 
through the period of use; and

		  -	 the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Group has this right when it has the 
decision- making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset 
is used. In rare cases, where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is 
predetermined, the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset if either:

	 •	 the Group has the right to operate the asset; or
	 •	 the Group designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used
An entity shall reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease only if the terms and conditions of the 
contract are changed.
This policy is applicable to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 April 2019.
At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates 
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone 
prices.
As a lessee
As a lessee, the Group at the commencement date recognizes a Right-of-Use (RoU) asset at cost and 
corresponding lease liability, except for leases with term of less than twelve months (short term) and low-
value assets. The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the 
lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the inception date of the lease plus any initial direct 
costs etc. Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line 
method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use assets. 
For lease liabilities at the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present 
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the 
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determined and in other cases, the lease payments 
are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate. For short-term and low value assets, the Group 
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Policy applicable before April 1, 2019
In the comparative period, a lease arrangement is classified as either a finance lease or an operating 
lease, based on the substance of the lease arrangement.
Finance leases
Assets held under finance lease are initially recognised as assets at the fair value at the inception of 
lease or at the present value of the minimum lease payments, whichever is lower. Lease payments are 
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate 
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in 
the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case 
they are capitalized in accordance with the general policy on the borrowing cost.
A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty 
that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the 
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.
Operating leases
Lease rental expenses from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight line basis over the 
term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected 
general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are 
recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases 
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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n)	 Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic earnings / (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 
the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the 
reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted 
for events of bonus / rights issue, if any, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, 
without a corresponding change in resources. 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable 
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are 
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

o)	 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (CODM).
In accordance with Ind AS 108 – “Operating Segments”, the operating segments used to present 
segment information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Group’s Management to 
allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. 
The Executive Committee, comprising of Chairman and Managing Director, Whole Time Directors, 
Business Heads, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary is collectively the Group’s ‘Chief 
Operating Decision Maker’ or ‘CODM’ within the meaning of Ind AS 108. All operating segments’ 
operating results are reviewed regularly by the CODM to make decisions about resources to be allocated 
to the segments and assess their performance. Refer Note 40 for segment information.
Based on “Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief Operating 
Decision Maker evaluates the performance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various 
performance indicators by business segments. Inter segment sales and transfers are reflected at market 
prices.
Unallocable items includes general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any 
business segment.
Segment Policies:
The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for 
preparing and presenting the consolidated financial statements as a whole. Common allocable costs are 
allocated to each segment on an appropriate basis.

p)	 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the 
valuation techniques as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. It 
regularly reviews significant inputs and valuation adjustments.
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far 
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of 
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of 
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has occurred.
Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing these 
financial statements is included in the respective notes.

	 Initial recognition and measurement
With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component, the Group 
initially measures financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value 
through profit or loss, net of transaction costs. Trade receivables do not contain a significant financing 
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component and are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the 
accounting policies in section 2A (e) Revenue recognition. 
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by 
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., 
the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

	 Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
a)	 At amortised cost
b)	 At fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
c)	 At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Financial Asset is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

		  a)	 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual 
cash flows, and

		  b)	 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount 
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation 
is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other 
receivables.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. This 
includes all derivative financial assets and current investments in mutual funds. On initial recognition, 
the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be 
measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an 
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

	 Equity Investments
All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which 
are held for trading are measured at fair value through profit and loss. 
For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent 
changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. the Group makes such election on an 
instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the 
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive income. This cumulative gain or 
loss is not reclassified to statement of profit and loss on disposal of such instruments.

	 Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on:
- 	 Financial assets measured at amortized cost; and
- 	 Financial assets measured at FVOCI – debt instruments.
Loss allowance for trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial 
assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount equal 
to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition 
in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to 
adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is recognised as an impairment gain or 
loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt 
instruments at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events 
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

	 Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified 
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial 
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including 
gany interest expense, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and 
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foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss 
on derecognition is also recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet 
when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it 
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

	 Derecognition
(i)	 Financial assets

			   The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction 
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred 
or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

			   If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, 
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the 
transferred assets are not derecognised.

(ii)	 Financial liabilities
			   The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 

cancelled, or expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified 
and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial 
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying 
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

q)	 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents 
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts 
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank 
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

r)	 Research and development
Expenditure on research and development activities is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss as incurred.
Development expenditure is capitalized as part of cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the 
expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, 
future economic benefits are probable, and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete 
development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognized in the consolidated profit or loss as 
incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and any accumulated impairment losses, if any.

s)	 Dividend
	 The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is 

authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws 
in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is 
recognised directly in equity.

2B.	 Recent accounting pronouncements
	 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There 

is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  (continued)

5.	 Equity accounted investees
 As at   As at  

 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 
 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

Investments in equity shares of associate
Unquoted equity instruments

DCM Hyundai Limited

19,72,000 (March 31, 2019: 19,72,000)  
equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up

166.00 166.00 

Add: Group's share of net profits 1,359.28 2,128.23 

Total 1,525.28 2,294.23 

4. 	 Intangible assets

(Rs.lakhs)

Particulars Software 
Intangible assets 
under develop-

ment  

Gross carrying amount  

Balance as at April 1, 2018 164.57 - 

Add: Additions during the year  22.56 16.50 

Less: Disposals / adjustments during the year  - - 

Balance as at March 31, 2019 187.13 16.50 

Add: Additions during the year  65.56 - 

Less: Disposals / adjustments / capitalized during the year  - 16.50 

Balance as at March 31, 2020 252.69 - 

Accumulated amortisation 

Balance as at April 1, 2018 64.38 - 

Amortisation expense during the year  32.44 - 

Less: Disposals / adjustments during the year - - 

Balance as at March 31, 2019 96.82 - 

Add: Amortisation expense for the year  43.40 - 

Less: Disposals / adjustments during the year  0.29 - 

Balance as at March 31, 2020 139.93 - 

Net carrying value 

As at March 31, 2020 112.76 - 

As at March 31, 2019 90.31 16.50 
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6.	 Investment - Non current

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

Investment in equity instruments - Trade Investment
Unquoted equity instruments
Daurala Co-operative Development Union Limited

2 (March 31, 2019 - 2) equity shares of face

value of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up  @ (Rs. 20) @ @ 

Sub total - -

Investments in preference shares
Unquoted instruments
Preference shares measured at Fair value through Profit and loss
Versa Trading Limited

7,00,000 (March 31, 2019 – 7,00,000) 5%

redeemable non-cumulative preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid 700.00 700.00 

Impairment in the value of investments
Versa Trading Limited 700.00 700.00 

Sub total - - 

Total - -

Aggregate value of non-current unquoted investments (net of impairment) - -

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments 700.00 700.00 

7.	 Loans - Non current
	 (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
To Related Parties 
Security deposits 49.71 49.56 

To Parties other than Related Parties 
Security deposits 445.37 413.64 
Loans to employees 37.66 37.04 
Total 532.74 500.24 

8.	 Other financial assets - Non current	

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Bank deposits with maturity of more than twelve months 8.44 88.33 

Bank deposits held as margin money or security against borrowings, guaran-
tees and other commitments

437.12 11.34 

Total 445.56 99.67 



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 	 - 	 DCM SHRIRAM INDUSTRIES LIMITED

142

12.	 Investments - Current	
 As at   As at  

 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 
 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

Investment in mutual funds measured at fair value through profit and loss 
Unquoted investment
240348.592 (March 31, 2019: 297651.699) Aditya Birla Sunlife  
Saving Fund – Growth Regular Plan Units of Rs. 100 each 955.43 1,098.28 
488625.746 (March 31, 2019: Nil) HDFC Low duration 
Fund – Regular Plan Growth Units of  Rs. 10 each 205.60 
Nil (March 31, 2019: 78762.677 ) Aditya Birla Sunlife
Low duration Fund  - Growth Regular Plan Units of Rs. 100  each - 353.85 
Nil (March 31, 2019: 1579087.091) HSBC Low duration  
Fund - Growth Units of Rs. 10 each - 258.05 
Total 1,161.03 1,710.18 

9.	 Income tax assets (net)		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Advance income tax [net of provision] 1,601.87 1,395.81 
Total 1,601.87 1,395.81 

10.	Other non-current assets
	 (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
To Parties other than Related Parties 
Capital advances 146.39 946.06 
Advance other than capital advances
-	 Deferred rent 2.59 16.05 
-	 Balance with government authorities 4.18 14.50 
-	 Other advances 12.73 7.27 
Doubtful
Other advances 1.30 1.30 

167.19 985.18 
Less: Loss allowance for advances 1.30 1.30 
Total 165.89 983.88 

11.	 Inventories
	 (Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Raw material* 6,580.64 4,858.00 
Work in progress 1,378.96 1,651.02 
Finished goods**# 54,446.76 50,737.21 
Stores and spares 3,868.03 4,397.72 
Total 66,274.39 61,643.95 

	 *	 Includes raw material in transit Rs. 736.40 lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs. 456.44 lakhs)
	** 	Includes finished goods in transit Rs. 164.00 lakhs (March 31, 2019:  Rs. 1,981.61 lakhs)
	#	 The write-down of inventories to net realisable value during the year amounted to Rs. 182.41 lakhs  (31 March 2019: Nil )
		  The write-down is included in changes in inventories of finished goods.

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  (continued)



143

13.	Trade receivables		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
To Parties other than Related Parties   

Unsecured, considered good 18,457.16 19,053.59 

Doubtful 29.97 29.97 

18,487.13 19,083.56 

Less : Loss allowance for trade receivables 29.97 29.97 

Total 18,457.16 19,053.59 

14.	Cash and cash equivalents		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Balances with banks  

- On current accounts 4,325.83 586.81 

- Deposits with original maturity  of less than three months 8.00 - 

Cash on hand 28.85 28.21 

Total 4,362.68 615.02 

15.	Other bank balances		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

Deposits with original maturity of more than three months

but upto twelve months

- 	 in deposit accounts 934.75 729.99 

- 	 earmarked deposits held as margin money or security against     

  	 borrowings, guarantees and other commitments 195.84 539.76 

Earmarked balances with banks - unpaid dividend accounts 196.39 155.27 

Total 1,326.98 1,425.02 

16.	Loans - Current
	 (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
To Parties other than Related Parties 

Security deposits 17.41 0.02 

Loans to employees (including accrued interest) 12.69 10.09 

Inter-corporate deposits* 175.00 305.00 

Others 17.89 2.00 

Total 222.99 317.11 
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17.	Other financial assets - Current
	 (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
To Parties other than Related Parties   
Interest accrued on term deposits 77.28 87.43 
Interest accrued on inter corporate deposits - 8.67 
Government grant receivable 6,210.22 234.93 
Reimbursement assets* 6,987.08 - 
Others 116.40 13.22 
Total 13,390.98 344.25 

* Refer Note 55

18.	Other current assets
	 (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
To Related Parties   
Advances to contractors 27.80 -

To Parties other than Related Parties 
Advances to contractors 270.57 541.59 
Other advances
Advance to employees 20.18 17.58 
Balance with government authorities 1,391.04 1,484.41 
Duty Drawback & other incentive receivables 352.28 355.49 
Prepaid expense 272.82 323.94 
 Others 67.34 87.25 
Total 2,402.03 2,810.26 

Particulars As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019

Number  
of shares

Amount
Rs. lakhs

Number  
of shares

Amount
Rs. lakhs

Equity shares
At the commencement of the year 1,73,98,437 1,739.84 1,73,98,437 1,739.84 
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - - 
At the end of the year 1,73,98,437 1,739.84 1,73,98,437 1,739.84 

d) Terms, rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Holding Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible 
for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 
to receive remaining assets of the Holding Company, after distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in 
proportion to the equity shares held by the shareholder.

19.	Equity share capital		

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
a) Authorised 
6,50,00,000 (March 31, 2019: 6,50,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 6,500.00 6,500.00 
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
1,73,98,437 (March 31, 2019: 1,73,98,437) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 1,739.84 1,739.84 
c) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at 	the end of reporting period:

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  (continued)
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20.	 Other equity

 As at   As at  

 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

a.	 Amalgamation reserve

		  Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 1,411.38 1,411.38 

b.	 General reserve

		  Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 13,465.60 13,465.60 

c.	 Capital redemption reserve

		  Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 0.10 0.10 

d.	 Capital reserve

		  Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 234.89 234.89 

e.	 Securities Premium

		  Balance as at the beginning and at the end of the year 3,406.68 3,406.68 

f.	 Retained earnings

		  Balance as at the beginning of the year 29,568.79 22,698.58 

		  Add: Profit for the year 9,588.93 7,486.52 

		  Items of other comprehensive income/ (expense) recognised directly in retained earnings

		  Remeasurement of employee benefit obligation, net of tax* (380.33) 437.16 

		  Share of equity accounted investees (774.97) (214.48)

		  Less: Appropriations

		  Final dividend on equity shares [Dividend per share Rs.  6.00  (March 31, 2019: Rs.4.00] (1,043.91) (695.94)

		  Tax on dividend (214.58) (143.05)

		  Interim dividend on equity shares [Dividend per share Rs.  5.00  (March 31, 2019: Nil] (869.92) - 

		  Tax on dividend (178.81) - 

		  Balance at the end of the year 35,695.20 29,568.79 

Total 54,213.85 48,087.44 

* Included in  'Items of other comprehensive income' in statement of changes in equity.

e) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in Holding Company
Particulars As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019

Number  
of shares

% of 
holding  

Number  
of shares

% of 
holding  

Bantam Enterprises Private Limited 13,56,968 7.80% 13,56,968 7.80% 

HB Portfolio Limited 25,11,735 14.44% 29,88,173 17.17% 

Life Insurance Corporation of India 11,61,352 6.68% 12,40,679 7.13% 

Lily Commercial Private Limited 29,94,479 17.21% 11,50,323 6.61% 

Versa Trading Limited 22,24,725 12.79% 22,24,725 12.79% 
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  (continued)

21.	Borrowings 

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
From Related Parties
Unsecured loans   
Public Deposits 292.27 192.27 
From Parties other than Related Parties
Secured loans
Term loans from banks 22,305.37 11,039.92 
Term loans from others 636.71 199.10 
Unsecured loans
Public Deposits 326.04 365.36 

23,560.39 11,796.65 
Less: Current maturity of long term borrowing 5,778.10 3,475.03 
Total 17,782.29 8,321.62 
Details of current maturity of long term borrowing:
Secured loans
Term loans from banks 5,642.11 3,177.51 
Term loans from others 56.89 56.89 
Unsecured loans
Public Deposits 79.10 240.63 

5,778.10 3,475.03 

A.	 SECURED

	 I.	 From Banks
a)	 Rs.47.95 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.205.12 Lakhs), Rs.1,392.82 lakhs (March 31,2019: 

Rs.1,853.88 lakhs) and Rs.1,453.43 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.1,967.31 lakhs) carrying 
interest between 9.25% p.a. to 10.55% p.a., repayable in 1, 9 and 9 quarterly installments 
respectively, are secured by a first mortgage and charge on all the immovable and movable 
properties of the Group excluding all assets of Daurala Organics, a unit of the Group and 
assets on exclusive charges, subject to prior charges created / to be created in favour of the 
Group’s bankers for securing the borrowings for working capital requirements, the charges 
ranking pari-passu with the charges created/to be created in favour of first charge holders for 
their respective term loans.

b)	 Nil (March 31,2019: Rs.6.53 lakhs) was secured by residual charge on fixed assets of sugar 
factory at Daurala Sugar Works, a unit of the Group.

c)	 Rs.22.77 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.97.58 lakhs) carrying interest of 9.40% p.a., repayable 
in 1 quarterly installment, is secured by first charge on specific movable assets of Distillery 
division of Daurala Sugar Works, a unit of the Group.

d)	 Rs.474.85 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.1,052.51 lakhs) carrying interest of 9.40% p.a., repayable 
in 9 quarterly installments, is secured by first exclusive charge on specific movable assets of 
Sugar division of Daurala Sugar Works, a unit of the Group.

e)	 Rs.4,610.53 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.5,424.15 lakhs) carrying interest of 5% p.a., repayable 
in 51 monthly installments, is secured by first pari-passu charge on all the immovable and 
movable properties of the Group excluding assets on exclusive charges.

f)	 Rs.989.57 lakhs (March 31,2019: Nil), Rs.688.98 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.174.76 lakhs) 
and Rs.2,243.49 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.242.78) carrying interest of 9.10% p.a., repayable 
in 15, 15 and 16 quarterly installments, are secured by first pari-passu charge on all the 
immovable and movable properties of the Group excluding assets on exclusive charges. 
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22.	Other financial liabilities - Non current	  

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
From Related Parties   
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 11.83 - 
From Parties other than Related Parties
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 18.50 - 
Deposits from contractors and others 10.08 11.90 
Others 47.38 62.03 
Total 87.79 73.93 

23.	Provisions - Non current	  

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 45)
- Gratuity 436.52 196.58 
- Compensated absences 959.53 877.15 
Others (Refer note 45(D)) 117.69 - 
Provision for contingencies* 100.00 100.00 
Total 1,613.74 1,173.73 

*	 Provision for contingencies of Rs. 100 lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs. 100 lakhs) represents the maximum possible 
exposure on ultimate settlement of issues relating to reorganisation arrangement of the Holding Company.

24.	Other non-current liabilities	  	  

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Others 57.95 73.28 
Total 57.95 73.28 

g)	 Rs.4,000.00 lakhs (March 31,2019: Nil), Rs.2,500.00 lakhs (March 31,2019: Nil) and 
Rs.1,451.00 lakhs (March 31,2019: Nil) carrying interest rate of 2.40% p.a. (net of subvention), 
repayable in 8 quarterly installments, are secured by residual pari-passu charge on fixed 
assets of sugar factory at Daurala Sugar Works, a unit of the Group. 

h)	 Rs.2,425.42 lakhs (March 31,2019: Nil) carrying interest of 3.15% (net of subvention) and 
9.15% p.a., repayable in 16 quarterly installments, is secured by first charge on specific 
movable assets of Distillery division of Daurala Sugar Works, a unit of the Group.

i)	 Rs.4.56 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.15.30 lakhs) currently carrying interest of 10.45% p.a., 
repayable in 6 monthly installments, is secured by hypothecation of specific assets. 

II.	 From Others
Rs.494.50 lakhs (March 31,2019: nil) and Rs.142.21 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.199.10 lakhs)
carrying interest of 3.40% p.a. and 4.25% p.a. respectively, repayable in 10 and 5 half yearly 
installments, are secured by first pari-passu charge on immovable and movable properties of 
sugar factory at Daurala Sugar Works, a unit of the Group.

B.	  Unsecured

	 Rs.618.31 lakhs (March 31,2019: Rs.557.63 lakhs), Deposits from public, carries interest of 9.5% p.a 
to 10.50% p.a., are currently repayable after 3 years from the date of acceptance of deposits.
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25.	Borrowings	  	  

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Secured loans
	 From banks - loans repayable on demand* 35,212.30 34,791.90 
Total 35,212.30 34,791.90 

*	 Secured by hypothecation of stocks, stores, book debts and receivables, both present and future / pledge of stocks / third 
pari passu charge on some of the Group’s property, plant and equipment. Some of these are further secured by way of 
second / third pari-passu mortgage and charge on the property, plant and equipment, both present and future.

26.	Trade payables 		   

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
	 -Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises* 397.88 337.19 
	 -Total outstanding dues other than Micro and Small Enterprises# 26,975.39 30,096.26 
Total 27,373.27 30,433.45 

* 	 Refer note 52 for Micro and Small enterprises.
# 	 Includes payable to related parties Rs. 573.62 lakhs (March 31, 2019  
	 Rs. 699.70 lakhs), refer note 46.

Notes:
a) Includes acceptances Rs. 3,282.34 lakhs (March 31, 2019 Rs. 3,116.26 lakhs).
b) The Group exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 47.

27.	Other financial liabilities - Current		   

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
From Related Parties   
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 7.74 16.73 
From Parties other than Related Parties
Creditors for capital purchases 172.78 384.90 
Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note 21) 5,778.10 3,475.03 
Security deposits 2.60 2.60 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 125.88 69.06 
Unclaimed dividends 196.39 155.27 
Unclaimed deposits and interest accrued thereon 32.77 2.66 
Other payables   
	 - Deposits from contractors and others 274.70 266.00 
	 - Employee related payable 875.33 448.77 
	 - Others 44.44 42.65 
Total 7,510.73 4,863.67 

28.	Other current liabilities  		   

 As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Advances from customer 281.17 144.73 
Statutory dues payable 1,136.35 1,154.76 
Others 166.92 154.97 
Total 1,584.44 1,454.46 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  (continued)
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Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 45)
- Compensated absences 387.53 383.20 
- Others (Refer note 45(D)) 9.18 - 
Provision for contingencies (Refer note 55) 9,427.42 - 
Total 9,824.13 383.20 

29.	Provisions  - Current		   

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

30.	Revenue from operations  		   

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

	 Contract Balances  As at   As at
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

Sale of products 
Export 40,250.71 47,154.87 
Domestic # 1,22,875.07 1,14,332.03 
Sale of services
Processing charges 4,422.85 3,026.41 
Others 36.87 38.70 
Other operating revenue
Sale of scrap 563.79 872.09 
Duty draw back, export benefits and other government assistance* 10,603.86 2,707.41 
Sale of renewable energy certificates 544.56 759.08 
Others 197.19 9.59 
Total 1,79,494.90 1,68,900.18 

# Includes Rs.11,348.90 lakhs (March 31, 2019: Nil) in respect of sales made to domestic parties to fulfill export 
obligation as per Maximum Admissible Export Quantity (MAEQ) Scheme.

* 	Refer note 53.

Contract assets
Trade receivables 18,457.16 19,053.59 
Contract liabilites 
Advances from customers 281.17 144.73 

Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost
	 From deposits with banks 115.58 278.36 
	 Unwinding of discount on security deposits 0.63 0.56 
	 Interest income on inter-corporate deposit 29.91 38.23 
	 Interest subsidy * 963.48 286.05 
Provisions/liabilities no longer required, written back 20.35 6.97 
Rental income 43.41 36.17 
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) - 52.68 
Profit on sale of current investments 19.72 175.78 
Net change in fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 63.77 64.07 
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 1,005.95 840.68 
Miscellaneous income 130.26 124.12 
Total 2,393.06 1,903.67 
* Refer note  53.		

31.	Other income  		   

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:
Contracted price  1,67,110.73  1,64,122.06 
Less: Discounts, allowances and claims 474.77 429.95 
Total 1,67,585.50 1,64,552.01 
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  (continued)

32.	Cost of material consumed  		   

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

33.	Purchase of traded goods  		   

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

34.	Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress  	

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

Raw materials at the beginning of the year 4,858.00 3,805.86 
Add: Purchases 99,307.17 1,02,786.51 

1,04,165.17 1,06,592.37 
Less: Raw material at the end of the year 6,580.64 4,858.00 
Total 97,584.53 1,01,734.37 

Particulars of materials consumed are as under:
Sugarcane 66,027.76 66,084.56 
Wood pulp 7,753.43 8,519.70 
Others 23,803.34 27,130.11 
Total 97,584.53 1,01,734.37 

Opening stock
Finished goods 50,737.21 40,278.01 
Work-in-progress 1,651.02 1,416.82 
Total 52,388.23 41,694.83 

Closing stock
Finished goods 54,446.76 50,737.21 
Work-in-progress 1,378.96 1,651.02 
Total 55,825.72 52,388.23 

(3,437.49) (10,693.40)

Particulars of stocks of finished goods and work-in-progress are as under :

Finished goods
Sugar 48,768.12 47,751.22 
Alcohol 1,296.28 247.57 
Organic/ Fine chemicals 753.54 1,072.35 
Industrial fibers 3,628.82 1,666.07 

Total 54,446.76 50,737.21 

Work-in-progress
Sugar 465.18 641.06 
Alcohol 45.94 18.72 
Organic/ Fine chemicals 533.69 581.81 
Industrial fibers 334.15 409.43 
Total 1,378.96 1,651.02 

Grain spirits 20,514.47 13,151.74 
Total 20,514.47 13,151.74 
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35.	 Employee benefits expense  		   

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2019  31.03.2018 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Salaries, wages and bonus 12,409.24 11,659.45 
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,495.74 1,370.81 
Staff welfare expenses 331.12 449.91 
Total 14,236.10 13,480.17 
Refer note 45 for disclosure on gratuity.

Stores and spares 9,637.04 8,848.24 
Power and fuel 9,948.41 10,984.47 
Repair and maintenance
- Buildings 975.67 674.33 
- Plant and machinery 4,514.10 4,375.68 
Rent * 238.39 626.53 
Payment to auditors 
- As auditors 26.30 25.59 
- Limited review of unaudited financial results 22.50 22.50 
- Verification of statements and other records 7.50 12.50 
- Out-of-pocket expenses 4.21 4.18 
Insurance 270.97 164.19 
Rates and taxes 71.97 182.04 
Freight and transport 1,515.57 1,273.23 
Commission to selling agents 1,869.73 2,180.83 
Loss on Export obligation** 72.41 4,125.87 
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 179.91 - 
Donation 0.10 0.20 
Corporate social responsibility (refer note below) 170.65 172.00 
Bad debts and advances provided / written off 2.60 - 
Miscellaneous expense# 6,542.19 5,856.03 
Total 36,070.22 39,528.41 
Note: Details of corporate social responsibility expenditure
a)	Amount required to be spent by the Group during the year  204.75  171.66 
b)	Amount spent during the year (in cash)
	 (i)	 Construction/acquisition of any asset - 31.44 
	 (ii)	On purposes other than (i) above*** 170.65*** 140.56 

	 *	 Refer note no 41.
	** 	 Consequent to Orders of Central Government allocating sugar factory -wise Minimum Indicative Export Quotas (MIEQ) of sugar for export.
*** 	 Rs. 34.10 lakhs was spent subsequently to March 31, 2020 due to lockdown.
# 		 Refer note 53

Interest expense* 4,335.72 2,301.55 
Other borrowing costs 118.37 98.64 
Total 4,454.09 2,400.19 

* Refer note 53

36.	 Finance costs

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 2,272.73 2,047.10 
Amortisation on intangible assets 43.40 32.44 
Amortisation on right-of-use assets 444.82 - 
Total 2,760.95 2,079.54 

37.	 Depreciation and amortisation expense  		   

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

38.	 Other expenses  		   

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  (continued)

		  Current tax expense  2,344.68  1,969.75 

		  Deferred tax charge/ (credit)  (2,222.50)  87.68 

		  Tax relating to earlier years

		  - Income tax  -    (0.14)

		  - Deferred tax charge/ (credit)  -    (335.05)

	  Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss  122.18  1,722.24 

	  Income tax
		  Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation  204.29  43.34 

	  Income tax charged to other comprehensive income/(expense)  204.29  43.34 

39.	 Income tax expense  		   

	 A.	  Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss
			   The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are:	

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

B. 	 Amounts recognised in other comprehensive Income/ (expense)
	 The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are:

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

 Rate  Amount  Rate  Amount 

Profit before tax from continuing operations, including OCI

		  - Holding company 34.94%  9,037.15 34.94%  8,915.28 

		  - Subsidiary company 26.00%  83.32 26.00%  83.53 

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 34.86%  3,179.60 34.86%  3,137.07 

Tax effect of:

	  Non-deductible expenses 0.73%  66.52 0.63%  57.00 

	  Tax-exempt income -0.77%  (69.89) -17.47%  (1,572.48)

	  Change in estimates* -25.52%  (2,327.36) 0.25%  22.39 

	  Others# -10.21%  (930.99) 0.39%  34.92 

Effective tax rate -0.90%  (82.11) 18.66%  1,678.90 

	 C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate		

      Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit/ (loss) multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the year ended 	
      March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019:

For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

*  	 Section 115 BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, introduced by Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 gives a one-time 
irreversible option to domestic companies for payment of corporate tax at reduced rates. As per CBDT Circular, in case this 
option is exercised, the Company shall not be able to utilise the outstanding MAT credit. The Holding Company is likely to 
exercise the option at a later date. Consequently, during the year, the Company has remeasured the deferred tax assets / 
liabilities likely to be reversed at the time the Holding Company would opt for new tax regime, which has resulted in write back 
of deferred tax liability amounting to Rs. 2,053.83 lakhs pertaining to previous years.

# 	 Includes Rs.1,032.89 lakhs recognised during the year with the credit to profit and loss on the basis of reassessment of a MAT 
credit charged-off in the previous years.
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  (continued)

40.	 Operating segments
	 A.	 Basis for segmentation

In accordance with Ind AS 108 'Segment Reporting' as specified in section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Group 
has identified three business segments viz. Sugar, Industrial fibres and related products, and Chemicals. The above 
segments have been identified and reported taking into account the differing risks and returns, and the current internal 
financial reporting systems. For each of the segments, the Chief operating decision maker (CODM) reviews internal 
management reports on at least a quarterly basis. The CODM monitors the operating results separately for the purpose 
of making decisions about resource allocation and performance measurement (Refer Note 2A (O)).
Segment revenue, results and capital employed include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments. 
Other unallocable expenditure includes expenses incurred on common services provided to the segments, which are not 
directly identifiable. 	
In addition to the significant accounting policies applicable to the business segments as set out in note 2A(o) above, the 
accounting policies in relation to segment accounting are as under:	
a) Segment revenue and expenses

    			   Segment revenue and expenses are, generally, directly attributable to the segments. Joint revenue and expenses of 
segments are allocated amongst them on a reasonable basis.

b) Segment assets and liabilities
     			   Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of operating, trade receivables, 

inventories and property plant and equipment and intangible assets, net of allowances and provisions, which are 
reported as direct offsets in the balance sheet. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally 
of creditors and accrued liabilities and do not include deferred income taxes and borrowings. While most of the assets 
/ liabilities can be directly attributed to individual segments, the carrying amount of certain assets / liabilities pertaining 
to two or more segments are allocated to the segments on a reasonable basis.

The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:
Sugar Comprising sugar, power and alcohols
Industrial fibres and related products Comprising rayon, synthetic yarn, cord, fabric etc.
Chemicals Comprising organics & fine chemicals 

FY 2018-19 (Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars  Opening 
balance 

 Recognised 
in statement of 
Profit & Loss 

 Recognised in 
other comprehen-

sive income 

 Closing  
balance 

Deferred tax assets
Accrued expense deductible on payment  742.12  (466.95) -  275.17 
Provision for gratuity, compensated 
absences and other employee benefits  322.17  143.60  43.34  509.11 

Loss allowance for trade receivables  10.37  -   -  10.47 
Loss allowance for other assets  0.45  -   -  0.45 
Others  22.29  0.22 -  22.51 

 1,097.40  (323.13)  43.34  817.71 
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference in book written down value and tax written down 
value of property, plant and equipment/ intangible assets  (7,226.57)  (475.28) -  (7,701.85)

Others  -    (178.07) -  (178.07)
 (7,226.57)  (653.35)  -    (7,879.92)

Total  (6,129.17)  (976.49)  43.34  (7,062.21)

F.	 Availability of MAT Credit is upto:
 As at   As at  

 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 
 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

Financial year Amount Amount
2024-25  313.82  -   
2026-27  -    6.49 
2027-28  289.92  292.56 
2028-29  993.71  993.71 
2029-30  298.77  298.77 
2030-31  851.08  851.08 
2032-33  996.93  702.77 
2033-34  623.00  888.70 

 4,367.23  4,034.08 
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	 C.	 Reconciliations of information on reportable segments to Ind AS measures

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
	 i	 Revenues
		  Total revenue for reportable segments  1,80,696.50  1,69,969.21 
 		  Unallocated amounts: 
 		  Revenue for other segments  1,194.30  837.70 
 		  Inter-segment elimination  (2.84)  (3.06)
 		  Total revenue  1,81,887.96  1,70,803.85 

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
	 ii	 Profit before tax
	 	 Total profit before tax for reportable segments  16,800.42  14,450.41 
 		  Unallocated cost: 
 		  Finance costs  (4,454.09)  (2,400.19)
 		  Other unallocated amounts  (2,641.24)  (2,927.39)
 	 	 Profit before tax as per statement of profit and loss  9,705.09  9,122.83 

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
	 iii	 Assets
		  Total assets for reportable segments  1,46,985.62  1,25,878.59 
 		  Unallocated amounts: 
		  Investments  2,686.31  4,004.41 
		  Corporate assets  11,226.38  4,541.65 
 		  Total assets as per the balance sheet  1,60,898.31  1,34,424.65 

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
	 iv	 Liabilities
		  Total liabilities for reportable segments  40,478.92  32,673.74 
 		  Unallocated amounts: 
 		  Share capital  1,739.84  1,739.84 
 		  Reserves and Surplus  54,213.86  48,087.44 
 		  Unallocated corporate liabilities   64,465.69  51,923.63 
 		  Total liabilities as per the balance sheet  1,60,898.31  1,34,424.65 

	 D.	 Geographical information

The geographical information analyses the Group’s revenues and assets by the Group’s country of domicile (i.e. India) 
and other countries. In presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been based on the geographic 
location of customers and segment assets which have been based on the geographical location of the assets.

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
	 i	 Revenues
		  (a)	 India  1,41,640.09  1,23,652.04 

		  (b)	 Other countries
     			   Europe  11,171.23  14,130.72 
    			   China  11,271.17  12,514.73 
     			   Rest of the World  17,808.31  20,509.42 
		  Total (b)  40,250.71  47,154.87 

		  (c)	 Inter-segment elimination  (2.84)  (3.06)

		  Total (a+b+c)  1,81,887.96  1,70,803.85 
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  (continued)

41.	 Leases

The details of the right-of-use asset held by the Company is as follows:

 For the year ended   For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

The impact on the statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 is as follows:

Particulars
 Year ended  
 31.03.2020 

 Rs. lakhs 
Rent expense is lower by  527.37 
Amortisation is higher by  (444.82)
Finance cost is higher by  (152.27)
Profit before tax is (lower) by  (69.72)

Total cash outflow for leases during the year	  527.37 

The Group has discounted lease payments using the applicable incremental borrowing rate which is 
9.00% for measuring the lease liability. The Group has used hindsight in determining the lease term 
where the contracts contain options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group incurred Rs.238.39 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2020 towards expenses relating to 
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. 

The reconciliation of lease liabilities is as follows:

Particulars
 As at  

 31.03.2020 
 Rs. lakhs 

Balance as at April 01, 2019  646.73 
Additions  2,297.31 
Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss as interest expense  152.27 
Payment of lease liability  (527.37)
Balance as at March 31, 2020  2,568.94 

	 ii	 Assets
		  (a)	 India  1,50,294.79  1,20,852.77 
		  (b)	 Other countries
     			   Europe  2,918.83  3,365.55 
    			   China  3,581.05  5,231.09 
     			   Rest of the World  4,103.64  4,975.24 
		  Total (b)  10,603.52  13,571.88 
		  Total (a+b)  1,60,898.31  1,34,424.65 

E.	 Major customer
Revenue from transactions with any single customer does not exceed 10 per cent or more of the Group's total revenue.

(Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars Opening as on 
April 01, 2019

Additions for the 
year ended  

March 31, 2020

Amortisation  
during the year

Net Carrying 
amount as at 

 March 31, 2020
Building  646.73  2,297.31  444.82  2,499.22 

 646.73  2,297.31  444.82  2,499.22 

Effective 1 April 2019, the Group has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" using the modified retrospective approach on all the lease 
contracts existing on that date. Accordingly, the comparative information has not been restated. This resulted in recognising a 
right-to-use asset of Rs. 647 lakhs with a corresponding lease liability as at 1 April 2019.
In the statement of Profit & Loss for the current year, the nature of expenses in respect of operating leases has changed form 
lease rent in previous year to depriciation cost of right -to-useasset and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liabilty. 



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 	 - 	 DCM SHRIRAM INDUSTRIES LIMITED

158

The following table presents a maturity analysis of expected cash flows for lease liabilities:

Particulars
 As at  

 31.03.2020 
 Rs. lakhs 

Within one year  414.40 
Within one-five years  1,776.31 
Above five years  378.23 
Balance as at March 31, 2020  2,568.94 

42.	 Contingent liabilities and commitments

A.	 Contingent liabilities*
	 Particulars As at As at

31.03.2020  31.03.2019 
 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs 

	 Income tax matters  5,340.58  1,728.57 
	 Excise and Service tax matters  68.15  108.18 

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts (excluding claims by em-
ployees, where amount is not ascertainable)  750.17  755.16 

	 Sales tax matters  55.06  55.06 
	 Sugarcane related matters  4,545.26  4,545.26 
	 Share in contingent liabilities of associate company  194.65  201.56 
	 Total  10,953.87  7,393.79 
	 *	 Matters are subject to legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business. The legal proceedings, when ultimately concluded 

will not, in the opinion of the management, have a material effect on the results of the operations or financial position.

B.	 Commitments

a. 	 Capital commitments: Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net 
of advances) amounts to Rs. 896.83 lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs. 3,910.68 lakhs).

b.	 Other commitments: The Group has other commitments, for purchase / sales orders which are issued after considering 
requirements per operating cycle for purchase / sale of goods and services, employee benefits including union agreement in 
normal course of business. The group does not have any long term commitments / contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there will be any material foreseeable losses.

43. 	Proceedings in a Petition challenging the Preferential Issue of equity warrants by the Group filed by a shareholder before the 
Hon'ble Company Law Board (now National Company Law Tribunal) are continuing since November, 2007.

Particulars Unit For the year ended For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

Profit/ (loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders Rs. Lakhs  9,588.93  7,486.52 
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year

Numbers  1,73,98,437  1,73,98,437 

Nominal value per share Rs.  10  10 
Basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per share Rs.  55.11  43.03 

44. 	Earnings per share

	 Basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per share
	 Basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/ (loss) during the year attributable to equity 

shareholders of the Group by the weighted number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

45. 	Employee benefits

A.	 Defined Contribution plans
	 Rs. 799.11  lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs. 754.04 lakhs) for provident fund contribution and Rs. 185.85 lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs. 

178.92 lakhs) for superannuation fund contribution have been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions 
towards these schemes are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. In case of provident fund administered through a 
trust, shortfall if any, shall be made good by the Group.
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Current service cost  235.54  209.29 
Interest cost  295.73  275.76 
Expected return on plan assets  (279.88)  (261.82)
Actuarial (gains) / losses recognised in other comprehensive income  455.62  124.02 

 707.01  347.25 

Balance at the beginning of the year  3,658.56  3,378.36 
Expected return on plan assets  279.88  261.82 
Contribution by the Holding Company  12.26  11.65 
Benefits paid  (136.81)  (30.94)
Actuarial (gains) / losses recognised in other comprehensive income  (258.49)  37.67 
Balance at the end of the year  3,555.40  3,658.56 

(ii) 	Reconciliation of the plan assets

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the plan assets and its components

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

(iii) 	Expense recognized in profit or loss

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

The following table sets out the status of gratuity obligation

Particulars As at As at
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs 
Net Gratuity liability / (asset)  436.52  196.58 
Non current  436.52  196.58 
Current  -    -   

 436.52  196.58 

(i) 	 Reconciliation of the gratuity benefit liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balance to the closing balance for gratuity liability and its components

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2018 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the year  3,855.14  3,558.15 
Current service cost  235.54  209.29 
Interest cost  295.73  275.76 
Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from changes in financials assumptions  99.63  22.99 
Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from changes in experience adjustments  97.51  138.70 
Benefits paid  (591.63)  (349.75)
Balance at the end of the year  3,991.92  3,855.14 

B.	 Defined benefit plans
a)	 Liability for gratuity, privilege leaves and medical leaves is determined on actuarial basis. Gratuity liability is provided to 	

the extent not covered by the funds available in the gratuity fund.

	 Gratuity:
	 Gratuity scheme provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on 

termination of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service, except death while in employment.

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  (continued)



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 	 - 	 DCM SHRIRAM INDUSTRIES LIMITED

160

Other than equity, debt, property and bank account

Funded with  Life Insurance Corporation of India*  3,555.40  3,658.56 

*	 The plan assets are maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India Gratuity Scheme. The details of Investments 
maintained by Life Insurance Corporation are not made available and have therefore not been disclosed.

Actuarial (gain) / loss plan assets  258.49  (37.67)

Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from changes in financials assumptions  99.63  22.99 

Actuarial (gain) / loss on arising from changes in experience adjustments  97.51  138.70 

(iv) 	 Constitution of plan assets

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

(v) 	  Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

(vi) 	Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Particulars  As at   As at  

 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

Financial assumptions

Discount rate 6.80% 7.65%

Future salary growth 5.00% 5.00%

Rate of return on plan assets 7.65% 7.75%

Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years)  16.85  16.69 

Demographic assumptions

Mortality rate IALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)

Withdrawal rate Up to  30 years- 3% Up to  30 years- 3%

31 to  44 years- 2% 31 to  44 years- 2%

Above 44 years- 1% Above 44 years- 1%

Retirement age 58 years and 60 years 58 years and 60 years

Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2021 are Rs.291.13 lakhs (March 31, 
2020: Rs. 247.35 lakhs).

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other long term benefits are determined using actuarial valuations. Actuarial valuations 
involve making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These includes the determination 
of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rate. Due to these complexity involved in the valuation it is highly 
sensitive to the changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The present value of the 
defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost and planned service cost were measured using the projected 
unit cost method.
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  (continued)

E.	 Risk exposure
	 These defined benefit plans typically expose the Group to actuarial risks as under:

	 a)	 Investment Risk
	 The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to 

market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

	 b)	 Interest rate risk
	 A decrease in bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this shall be partially off-set by increase in return as 

per debt investments.

	 c) 	 Longevity risk
	 The present value of the defined plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants. 

An increase in the life expectancy will increase the plan's liability.

	 d)	 Salary risk
	 Higher than expected increase in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

Particulars  As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Within 1 year  704.33  75.66 
1 year to 5 years  1,659.85  1,716.74 
More than 5 years  2,299.46  2,123.22 

   Increase Decrease     Increase Decrease

Discount rate (0.50%)  (405.88)  106.24  (449.96)  176.32 
Future salary growth (0.50%)  109.11  (416.84)  181.08  (462.11)

Although the analysis does not take into account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does not 
provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawls are insignificant & hence not considered in sensitivity anaylsis disclosed.

(viii) Maturity profile
The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based 
on past service of the employees as at the valuation date:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs 

C.	 Compensated absences:

	 The obligation of compensated absence in respect of the employees of the Group as at 31 March 2020 works out to Rs.1,347.06 
lakhs (31 March 2019: Rs. 1,260.35 lakhs)

D.	 Provident fund:

	 The Holding Company manages the Provident Fund plan through Provident Fund Trusts for a majority of its employees which is 
permitted under The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The plan envisages contribution by 
the employer and employees and guarantees interest at the rate notified by the Provident Fund authority. For other employees 
contributions are made to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioners. The Government mandates the annual yield to be 
provided to the employees on their corpus. This plan is considered as a Defined Contribution Plan. For the first category of 
employees (covered by the Trust), the Holding Company has an obligation to fund any shortfall on the yield of the trust’s 
investments over the administered interest rates on an annual basis. Based on actuarial estimate by an approved actuary of 
the provident fund liabilities the Holding Company has provided an amount of Rs. 126.87 lakhs for possible shortfall on the 
yield of the trust’s investments over the administered interest rates.

(vii) Sensitivity analysis

The significant actuarial assumption for the determination of defined benefit obligations are discount rate and expected salary 
increase.

Sensitivity of gross benefit obligation as mentioned above, in case of change in significant assumptions would be as under:
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46.	 Related party disclosures:

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on Related Party Disclosures, the names of the related parties where control exists 
and/or with whom transactions have taken place during the year and description of relationships, as identified and certified by the 
management are:

A.	 Names of related parties and nature of related party relationship

Key management personnel
Mr. S. B. Mathur, Chairman
Mr. Tilak Dhar, Senior Managing Director (upto 30.06.2019)
Mr. Alok B. Shriram, Managing Director
Mr. Madhav B. Shriram, Sr. Managing Director
Mrs. Urvashi Tilak Dhar, Director (w.e.f. 13.08.2019)
Mr. N. K.Jain, Director & CFO (Director w.e.f. 01.11.2019)  
Mr. P. R. Khanna, Independent Director
Mr. Ravinder Narain, Independent Director
Mr. S. C. Kumar, Independent Director
Mr. C. Vikas Rao, Independent Director
Ms. V. Kavitha Dutt, Independent Director
Mr. Sanjay C. Kirloskar, Independent Director 
Mr. K.N.Rao Director & CEO Rayons (upto 31.10.2019 )
Mr. Y. D. Gupta, Vice President & Company Secretary

Relatives/HUF of key management personnel
M/s. Bansi Dhar & Sons - HUF
Mr. Akshay Dhar
Ms. Kanika Shriram
Mr. Rudra Shriram
Mr. Rohan Shriram
Mr. Uday Shriram
Mrs. K. Rao
Mrs. Anita Gupta
Mrs. Manju Jain
Mr. Nirmal Kumar Jain
Mrs. Maya Rani Jain
Mr. Rajat Jain
Mrs. Kiran Khanna
Mr. P. R. Khanna (HUF)
Mrs. Suman Bansi Dhar
Mrs. Divya Shriram
Mrs. Karuna Shriram
Ms. Aditi Dhar
Mrs. Manju Narain
Mr. Rohit Gupta

Trusts
Employees' Provident Fund Trust, DCM Shriram Industries Limited
Daurala Organics Limited Employees' Provident Fund Trust
DCM Shriram Industries Limited Superannuation Trust 

Others (Enterprises over which key management personnel or their relatives are able to exercise significant influence)
Bantam Enterprises Private Limited
H.R. Travels Private Limited
Hindustan Vaccum Glass Private Limited
Kirloskar Corrocoat Private Limited
Lily Commercial Private Limited
Divine Investments Private Limited
Hi-Vac Wares Private Limited
Quick Lithographers Private Limited
Peekay Alkalies Private Limited
Super Wares Private Limited
Gentech Chemicals Private Limited
Meridian Marketing Private Limited



163

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  (continued)

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs 

Rent expenses
Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  188.39  167.51 

Others  40.95  39.74 

Total  229.34  207.25 

Interest expense
Key management personnel  -  2.01 

Relatives of Key management personnel  20.59  17.98 

Independent Directors & their relatives/HUF  3.78  3.89 

Total  24.37  23.88 

Other expenses
Others  -  46.27 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Others  4.22  11.01 

Equity dividend paid
Associate 245.18 89.16

Key management personnel  2.53  0.45 

Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  13.24  5.29 

Others  635.20  225.05 

 896.15  319.95 

Public deposits received
Key management personnel  100.00  -   

Security deposit paid
Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  1.17  7.01 

Public Deposits paid
Key Management Personnel  -    75.00 

Relatives of Key Management Personnel  -    8.00 

Compensation of key management personnel
Salaries and bonus including contributions made to provident fund
Mr. Tilak Dhar  76.11  296.20 

Mr. Alok B.Shriram  306.11  296.20 

Mr. Madhav B.Shriram  306.11  296.20 

Mrs. Urvashi Tilak Dhar  161.70  -   

Mr. K.N. Rao  43.28  61.93 

Mr. N. K. Jain  50.33  41.03 

Mr. Y. D. Gupta  29.93  26.76 

Relatives of key management personnel  90.31  82.15 

Total  1,063.88  1,100.47 

B.	 Transactions with related parties:  
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Post-employment defined benefit plan

Gratuity

Mr. Tilak Dhar  -    56.10 

Mr. Alok B.Shriram  6.56  41.65 

Mr. Madhav B.Shriram  6.45  43.04 

Mrs. Urvashi Tilak Dhar  3.08  -   

Mr. K.N. Rao  4.32  4.81 

Mr. N.K. Jain  8.24  3.18 

Mr. Y.D. Gupta  4.89  2.76 

Relatives of key management personnel  2.45  2.21 

Total  35.99  153.75 

Other long term defined benefit plan

Compensated absences

Mr. Tilak Dhar  -    21.03 

Mr. Alok B.Shriram  10.86  20.70 

Mr. Madhav B.Shriram  8.75  21.60 

Mrs. Urvashi Tilak Dhar  4.53  -   

Mr. K.N. Rao  1.62  1.24 

Mr. N. K. Jain  1.84  1.40 

Mr. Y. D. Gupta  1.25  0.65 

Relatives of key management personnel  3.47  2.84 

Total  32.32  69.46 

Commission to Independent Directors

Mr. P. R. Khanna  16.29  17.05 

Mr. S. B. Mathur  17.29  17.05 

Mr. Ravinder Narain  14.29  14.95 

Mr. S. C. Kumar  16.29  17.05 

Mr C Vikas Rao  11.29  12.85 

Ms. V. Kavitha Dutt  13.29  12.85 

Mr. Sanjay C. Kirloskar  13.30  6.96 

Total  102.04  98.76 

Total compensation paid to key management personnel  1,234.23  1,422.44 

Post-employment defined benefit plan

Contribution paid to provident fund

Trusts  1,353.88  1,274.33 

Other long term defined benefit plan

Superannuation

Trusts  185.85  178.92 
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Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs 
Security deposit receivable
Relatives/HUF of key management personnel 49.71 49.56 
Other advances
Others  27.80  -   
Payables
Public deposits including interest accrued
Relatives/HUF of key management personnel  274.34  171.50 
Independent Directors & their relatives 37.50 37.50 
Total    311.84  209.00 
Trade payables
Others  1.59  23.95 
Commission to Independent Directors  102.04  98.76 
Remuneration
Key management personnel 469.99 576.99 
Total    573.62  699.70 

Note:
Transactions with the related parties are made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.

	 Balances with related parties 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  (continued)

47.	 Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management

	 a. 	 Financial instruments – by category and fair values hierarchy
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their 
levels in the fair value hierarchy.

	 i.	 As on March 31, 2019 	 	 	 (Rs. lakhs)

Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised 
cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets 
Non-current
  (i) Loans*  -    -    500.24  500.24  -    -    -   
  (ii) Other financial assets*  -    -    99.67  99.67  -    -    -   
Current
  (i) Investments*
	 	 Equity instrument (Mutual funds)  1,710.18  -    -    1,710.18  1,710.18  -    -   
  (ii) Trade receivables*  -    -    19,053.59  19,053.59  -    -    -   
  (iii) Cash and cash equivalents*  -    -    615.02  615.02  -    -    -   
  (iv) Other bank balances *  -    -    1,425.02  1,425.02  -    -    -   
  (v) Loans*  -    -    317.11  317.11  -    -    -   
  (vi) Other financial assets*  -    -    344.25  344.25  -    -    -   
Total  1,710.18  -    22,354.90  24,065.08 
Financial liabilities 
Non-current
  (i) Borrowings (including current 
maturities)#  -    -    11,796.65  11,796.65  -    -    11,790.46 

  (ii) Other financial liabilities*  -    -    73.93  73.93  -    -    -   
Current 
  (i) Borrowings#  -    -    34,791.90  34,791.90  -    -    -   
  (ii) Trade payables*  -    -    30,433.45  30,433.45  -    -    -   
  (iii) Other financial liabilities*  -    -    1,388.64  1,388.64  -    -    -   
Total  -    -    78,484.57  78,484.57 
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ii.	 As on March 31, 2020                  	 	 	 (Rs. lakhs)

Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using

FVTPL FVOCI Amor-
tised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets 

Non-current

 	 (i) 	 Loans*  -    -    532.74  532.74  -    -    -   

 	 (ii) 	Other financial assets*  -    -    445.56  445.56  -    -    -   

Current

 	  (i) 	 Investments*

		  Debt instrument (Mutual funds)  1,161.03  -    -    1,161.03  1,161.03  -    -   

  	(ii) 	 Trade receivables*  -    -    18,457.16  18,457.16  -    -    -   

  	(iii) 	Cash and cash equivalents*  -    -    4,362.68  4,362.68  -    -    -   

  	(iv) 	Other bank balances*  -    -    1,326.98  1,326.98  -    -    -   

  	(v) 	Loans*  -    -    222.98  222.98  -    -    -   

  	(vi) 	Other financial assets*  -    -    13,390.97  13,390.97  -    -    -   

Total  1,161.03  -   38,739.07 39,900.10 

Financial liabilities 

Non-current
  	(i) 	 Borrowings (including  
       	 current maturities)#  -    -    23,560.39  23,560.39  -    -    22,561.49 

  	(ii) 	 Lease liabilities*  2,154.54  2,154.54  -    -    -   

  	(iii) 	Other financial liabilities*  -    -    87.79  87.79  -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

Current 

 (i)  	 Borrowings#  -    -    35,212.30  35,212.30  -    -    -   

 	 (ii) 	  Lease liabilities*  414.40  414.40  -    -    -   

  	(iii) 	  Trade payables*  -    -    27,373.23  27,373.23  -    -    -   

  	(iv) 	  Other financial liabilities*  -    -    1,732.63  1,732.63  -    -    -   

Total  -    -    90,535.28  90,535.28 

# 	The Group's borrowings have been contracted at both floating and fixed rates of interest. The borrowings at floating 
rates reset at short intervals. Accordingly, the carrying value of such borrowings (including interest accrued but not due) 
approximates fair value. The fair value of long-term borrowings with fixed rates of interest is estimated by discounting future 
cash flows using current rates (applicable to instuments with similar terms, currency, credit risk and remaining maturities 
to discount the future payout).

* 	 The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, lease liabilites, cash and cash equivalents, investments, bank 
balances other than cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets and liabilities, approximates the fair values, due 
to their short-term nature. The other non-current financial assets represents security deposits given to various parties, 
loans and advances to employees and bank deposits (due for maturity after twelve months from the reporting date), lease 
liabilities and other non-current financial liabilities, the carrying value of which approximates the fair values as on the 
reporting date.

	 There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.

Valuation

Following financial instruments are remeasured at fair value as under :

(a) The fair value of investments in quoted Equity Shares and Mutual Funds are measured at quoted price or NRV.

(b) The fair value of all derivate contracts is determined using forward exchange rate at the balance sheet.
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Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables is given below:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs 
Balance at the beginning of the year  29.97  29.97 
Impairment loss recognised / (reversed)  -    -   
Amount written off  -    -   
Balance at the end of the year  29.97  29.97 

Note
Cash and cash equivalents
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Group generally transacts with the Banks with high credit ratings 
assigned by domestic and international credit rating agencies.

Other financial assets
Other financial assets do not have any significant credit risk.

Risk Management
The Group manages risk arising from financial instruments as under :

b.		 Financial risk management (continued)
(i)		 Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the 
Balance Sheet:

Particulars  As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs
Investments  1,161.03  1,710.18 
Trade receivables  18,457.16  19,053.59 
Cash and cash equivalents  4,362.68  615.02 
Other bank balances  1,326.98  1,425.02 
Loans  755.73  817.35 
Other financial assets  13,836.54  443.92 

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to perform or pay amounts due causing 
financial loss to the Group. It arises from cash and cash equivalents, financial instruments and principally from credit exposure 
to customers relating to outstanding receivables. The Group continuously reviews the credit to be given and the recoverability 
of amounts due. Majority of the trade receivables are from parties with whom the Group had long standing satisfactory dealings.

The Group's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables is as follows:

Particulars Gross carrying amount
 As at   As at  

 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 
 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

1-90 days past due *  2,286.69  7,183.28 

91 to 180 days past due  551.86  19.32 

More than 180 days past due #  27.78  12.59 

Not due  15,590.83  11,838.40 

 18,457.16  19,053.59 

* The Group believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, based 
on historical payment behaviour.

# The Group continuously reviews the credit to be given and the recoverability of amounts due. Majority of the trade 
receivables both domestic and overseas, are from parties with whom the group had long standing satisfactory dealings.

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  (continued)
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	 b.	 Financial risk management (continued)

	 (ii)	 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities 
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far 
as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group believes that its liquidity position, including total cash and cash equivalent and bank balances other than cash and 
cash equivalent of Rs.5,689.66 lakhs as at March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019 Rs. 2,040.04 lakhs), anticipated future internally 
generated funds from operations, and its fully available, revolving undrawn credit facility will enable it to meet its future known 
obligations in the ordinary course of business. However, if  liquidity needs were to arise, the Group believes it has access to 
financing arrangements,  which should enable it to meet its ongoing capital, operating, and other liquidity requirements. The 
Group will continue to consider various borrowing or leasing options to maximize liquidity and supplement cash requirements 
as necessary.

 The Group's liquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the following:
- Day to day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met.
- Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows.

- Maintaining diversified credit lines.

	 I. 	 Financial arrangements
	 The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars  As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

 Rs. lakhs  Rs. lakhs

From banks  10,713.69  9,281.73 

(Rs. lakhs)

As at March 31, 2019 Carrying 
amount

Contractual cash flows
0-1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total

Non-current liabilities
   Borrowings*  8,321.62  -    7,973.47  348.15  8,321.62 
   Other financial liabilities  73.93  -    73.93  -    73.93 

Current liabilities
   Borrowings  34,791.90  34,791.90  -    -    34,791.90 
   Trade payables  30,433.45  30,433.45  30,433.45 
   Other financial liabilities  4,863.67  4,863.67  4,863.67 
Total  78,484.57  70,089.02  8,047.40  348.15  78,484.57 

(Rs. lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020 Carrying 
amount

Contractual cash flows
0-1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total

Non-current liabilities
   Borrowings*  17,782.29  -    17,584.49  197.80  17,782.29 
   Lease liabilities*  2,154.54  -    1,776.31  378.23  2,154.54 
   Other financial liabilities  87.79  -    87.79  -    87.79 

Current liabilities
   Borrowings  35,212.30  35,212.30  -    -    35,212.30 
   Lease liabilities  414.40  414.40  -    -    414.40 
   Trade payables  27,373.23  27,373.23  -    -    27,373.23 
   Other financial liabilities  7,510.73  7,510.73  -    -    7,510.73 
Total  90,535.28  70,510.66  19,448.59  576.03  90,535.28 

* Contractual cash flows does not include interest expense

	 II. 	 Maturities of financial liabilities
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted:
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  (continued)

	 b.	 Financial risk management (continued)

	 III. 	 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk 
comprises two types of risk: currency risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.The Board of directors is responsible for setting up of 
policies and procedures to manage market risks of the Group.

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. 
The Group is exposed to the effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash 
flows. Exposure arises primarily due to exchange rate fluctuations between the functional currency and other currencies from the 
Group's operating, investing and financing activities.

Exposure to currency risk
The summary of quantitative data about the Group's exposure to currency risk, as expressed in Indian Rupees (Lakhs) as at March 
31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.

(Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020
USD EURO GBP

Financial assets 
  Trade receivables*  7,657.76  943.87  -   
  Sundry Advances  15.26  5.06  -   
  Cash and cash equivalents  0.16 

 7,673.18  948.93  -   
Financial liabilities 
  Borrowings  271.38  251.82  -   
  Trade payables  1,006.02  183.04  0.82 
  Commission & discount  1,320.19  275.25  -   
  Acceptances  3,233.86  48.57  -   
  Royalty

 5,831.45  758.68  0.82 
(Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020
USD EURO GBP

Financial assets 
  Trade receivables*  3,442.84  23.31  -   
  Sundry Advances  2.70  3.75  -   

 3,445.54  27.06  -   
Financial liabilities 
  Borrowings  1,483.01  4.81  -   
  Trade payables  767.45  18.20  -   
  Commission & discount  18.13  3.99  -   
  Acceptances  88.81  -    -   
  Royalty  -    8.31  -   
  Consultancy

 2,357.40  35.31  -   
* Trade receivables are net of corresponding foreign exchange contracts.	 	 	

(Rs. lakhs)
Particulars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax

Weakening Strengthening Strengthening Weakening
1% depreciation / appreciation in Indian Rupees against 
following foreign currencies:

For the year ended March 31, 2020
  USD  18.42  (18.42)  11.98  (11.98)
  EUR  1.90  (1.90)  1.24  (1.24)
  GBP                 (0.01)  0.01  (0.01)  0.01 

 20.31  (20.31)  13.21  (13.21)
For the year ended March 31, 2019
  USD  10.88  (10.88)  7.08  (7.08)
  EUR  (0.08)  0.08  (0.05)  0.05 

 10.80  (10.80)  7.03  (7.03)

USD: United States Dollar, EUR: Euro, GBP: Great British Pound

	 Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible strengthening / weakening of the Indian Rupee against below currencies at March 31, 2020 (previous year ended 
as on March 31, 2019) would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in functional currency and affected 
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is performed on foreign currency denominated monetary financial 
assets and financial liabilities outstanding as at the year end.  This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, 
remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.
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Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market inter-
est rates. The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Group 
to cash flow interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the term loans from banks carrying floating rate of interest. These obligations 
exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Group’s borrowing to interest rate changes as reported 
to the management at the end of the reporting period along with the interest rate profile are as follows:

	 Foreign exchange derivative contracts
The Group uses derivative financial instruments exclusively for hedging financial risks that arise from its commercial business 
or financing activities. The Group’s Corporate Treasury team manages its foreign currency risk by hedging transactions that 
are expected to occur within of 1 to 24 months for hedges of forecasted sales, purchases and capital expenditures. When 
a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Group negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match 
the terms of the hedged exposure. For hedges of forecast transactions the derivatives cover the period of exposure from the 
point the cash flows of the transactions are forecasted up to the point of settlement of the resulting receivable or payable that 
is denominated in the foreign currency. All identified exposures are managed as per the policy duly approved by the Board 
of Directors.

The following table details the foreign currency derivative contracts outstanding at the end of the reporting period:

Rs. lakhs

Particulars  As at   As at  
 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

Financial Assets
Fixed Rate Instruments 
Bank Balances other than Cash & cash Equivalents  1,326.98  1,425.02 
Loans  755.74  817.35 
Other Financial assets  13,836.55  443.92 
Total  15,919.27  2,686.29 
Financial Liabilities
Fixed Rate Instruments
Term loans  13,202.80  5,645.08 
Public Deposits  618.31 557.63

Variable-rate instruments
Term loans  9,739.28  5,593.94 
Cash Credit  35,212.30  34,791.90 
Total  58,772.69  46,588.55 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) 
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign 
currency exchange rates, remain constant.

(Rs. lakhs)

Particulars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
100 bps increase 100 bps decrease 100 bps increase 100 bps decrease

For the year ended March 31, 2020
Interest on term loans  (72.17)  72.17  (46.95)  46.95 
Interest on cash credits  (350.86)  350.86  (228.26)  228.26 

For the year ended March 31, 2019
Interest on term loans  (55.94)  55.94  (36.39)  36.39 
Interest on cash credits  (347.92)  347.92  (226.34)  226.34 

Maturity

Outstanding contracts

No of deals Contract value of foreign 
currency (in lakhs)

Upto 12 months  
Nominal amount (in lakhs)

More than 12 months  
Nominal amount (in lakhs)

As at  
March 31, 

2020

As at  
March 31, 

2019

As at  
March 31, 

2020

As at  
March 31, 

2019

As at  
March 31, 

2020

As at  
March 31, 

2019

As at  
March 31, 

2020

As at  
March 31, 

2019
USD/INR sell forward  21  -    23.00  -    1,689.74  -    -    -   
EUR/INR sell forward    3  -      3.00  -       253.54  -    -    -   

Impact of depreciation / appreciation in INR against USD/EUR in respect of forward contracts is not material.

	 b.	 Financial risk management (continued)
	 III. 	 Market risk
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(Rs. lakhs)
Particulars  As at   As at  

 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 
Borrowings  58,772.69  46,588.55 
Less : Cash and cash equivalent  (4,362.68)  (615.02)
Adjusted net debt (A)  54,410.01  45,973.53 
Total equity (B)  55,953.69  49,827.28 
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) 97.24% 92.27%

48.	 Capital management

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, securities premium and all 
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the management of the Group’s 
capital structure is to maintain an efficient mix of debt and equity in order to achieve a low cost of capital, while taking into 
account the desirability of retaining financial flexibility to pursue business opportunities and adequate access to liquidity to 
mitigate the effect of unforeseen events on cash flows.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in the economic/ business conditions 
and requirements.
The Group's debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debts (less cash & cash equivalents) divided by total 
capital (equity attributable to equity share holders plus interest-bearing debt) is as under:

49.	 Disclosure as per Ind AS 112 'Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities'

	 (a)	 Subsidiary company
	 The group’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2020 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting 

solely of equity shares that are held directly by the group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting 
rights held by the group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business.

	 (b)	 Summarised financial information for associate company

	 'The tables below provide summarised financial information for associates of the group. The information disclosed reflects 
the amounts presented in the financial statements of the associate companies and not the Group’s share of those amounts.

(Rs.lakhs)

Name of entity "Place of busi-
ness/ 

country of in-
corporation"

Ownership interest 
held by the group 

as at

Ownership interest 
held by non-control-
ling interests as at

Principal activities

As at  
March 

31, 2020

As at  
March 

31, 2019

As at  
March 

31, 2020

As at  
March 

31, 2019
Daurala Foods 
and Beverages 
Private Limited

India  100.00  100.00  -    -   
The Company deploys its surplus funds in per-
mitted securities such as short term funds of 
mutual funds, bank deposits etc.

	 (i)	 Summarised balance sheet (Rs.lakhs)

Particulars DCM Hyundai Limited
 As at   As at  

31.03.2020 31.03.2019 
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents  937.57  23.34 
Other assets  1,236.93  1,724.36 

Total current assets  2,174.50  1,747.70 
Total non-current assets 1070.58 5031.46
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables)  17.02  17.72 
Other liabilities  68.99  55.80 

Total current liabilities  86.01  73.52 
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables)  -    1,985.00 
Other liabilities  1.20  2.40 
Total non-current liabilities  1.20  1,987.40 
Net assets  3,157.87  4,718.24 
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	 (ii)	 Reconciliation to carrying amounts (Rs.lakhs)

Particulars DCM Hyundai Limited
 As at   As at  

31.03.2020 31.03.2019 
Opening net assets  4,718.24  4,815.79 
Profit for the year  12.22  173.97 
Other comprehensive income  (1,572.59)  (271.52)
Dividends paid  -    -   
Closing net assets  3,157.87  4,718.24 
Group’s share in % 49.28% 49.28%
Group’s share in INR  1,556.25  2,325.43 
Goodwill  -    -   
Consolidation adjustments  (30.97)  (31.20)
Carrying amount  1,525.28  2,294.23 

	 (iii)	Summarised statement of profit and loss (Rs.lakhs)

Particulars DCM Hyundai Limited
 For the  year ended   For the  year ended 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019 
Revenue from operations  101.31  199.54 
Other income  100.24  269.16 
Depreciation and amortisation  51.25  43.35 
Interest expense  -    -   
Income tax expense  (21.88)  4.73 
Profit for the year  12.22  173.97 
Other comprehensive income  (1,572.59)  (271.52)
Total comprehensive income  (1,560.37)  (97.55)
Dividends received  -    -   

(Rs.lakhs)
Name of the entity in 

the Group
Net Assets, i.e., total assets 
minus total liabilities as at

Share in profit or loss 
for the year ended

Share in other comprehensive 
income for the year ended

Share in total comprehensive 
income for the year ended

As % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Amount As % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

Amount As % of consolidated 
other comprehensive 

income

Amount As % of total 
comprehen-
sive income

Amount

Parent
DCM Shriram Indus-
tries Limited
31 March 2020 95.21%  54,139.46 99.30%  9,595.64 32.92%  (380.33) 108.31%  9,215.31 
31 March 2019 93.22%  47,231.37 98.03%  7,357.66 37.62%  (80.68) 99.81%  7,276.98 
Subsidiary
Daurala Foods & Bev-
erages Private Limited
31 March 2020 2.11%  1,201.34 0.64%  61.65 0.00%  -   0.72%  61.65 
31 March 2019 2.25%  1,139.69 0.83%  61.95 0.00%  -   0.85%  61.95 
Associate
DCM Hyundai Limited
31 March 2020 2.68%  1,525.28 0.06%  6.02 67.08%  (774.97) -9.04%  (768.95)
31 March 2019 4.53%  2,294.23 1.14%  85.93 62.38%  (133.80) -0.66%  (47.87)
Total
31 March 2020 100.00%  56,866.08 100.00%  9,663.32 100.00%  (1,155.30) 100.00%  8,508.01 
31 March 2019 100.00%  50,665.29 100.00%  7,505.54 100.00%  (214.48) 100.00%  7,291.06 
Adjustment due to 
consolidation
31 March 2020  912.39  74.39  -    74.38 
31 March 2019  838.01  19.01  -    19.02 
Consolidation Net As-
set / Profit after Tax
31 March 2020  55,953.69  9,588.93  (1,155.30)  8,433.63 
31 March 2019  49,827.28  7,486.53  (214.48)  7,272.04 

50.	 Disclosure as per Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013
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51.	Research and development expenses amounting to Rs. 549.23 lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs. 552.33 lakhs) have been 
charged to the respective revenue accounts. Capital expenditure relating to research and development amounting to 
Rs. 47.04 lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs. Nil lakhs) has been included in property, plant and equipment.

52.	Parties covered under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006” (MSMED Act, 2006) have 
been identified on the basis of confirmation received. The disclosures pursuant to the said MSME Act are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  (continued)

(Rs.Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
 March 31, 2020

For the year ended 
 March 31, 2019

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to 
any supplier at the end of each accounting year.			 

 397.88  337.19 

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), 
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during each accounting year.			 

-   -   

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (whic h has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.	 	 	

-   -   

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year.			 

-   -   

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually 
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006.			 

-   -   

Rs. lakhs

Nature of Grant/assistance
Income/ For the year ended  For the year ended
expense head  31.03.2020  31.03.2019 

Subvention on loan interest Other income  677.64  172.31 

Interest subsidy in respect of loan at concessional rate Other income  285.84  113.74 

Grant against cane purchased Cost of material consumed  -    990.69 

Grant for payment of cane dues subject to fulfillment 
of sugar export obligation and other conditions Other operating revenue  9,321.56  1,187.19 

Duty drawback and other incentive Other operating revenue  1,282.30  1,520.22 

Subsidy against maintenance of buffer stock Miscellaneous expense  100.07  72.72 

Subsidy against maintenance of buffer stock Interest expense  604.90  431.39 

53.	 Disclosures related to government grant

The government grants/government assistance recognised are as under:
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55 Consequent to introduction of GST with effect from July 1, 2017, there has been ambiguity with regard to chargeability of 
tax, i.e. UP VAT or GST or any other tax, on certain supplies made to a party and, therefore, no tax has been charged on 
such supplies. The buyer has undertaken to indemnify the Company for any tax/interest, or any other related expenses, as 
may be finally incurred in this regard.

UP VAT Authorities have completed ex-parte assessments for the nine months ended March 31,2018 and year ended 
March 31,2019 and have raised demands in that context. The Holding Company has filed applications with the authorities 
for opening of such assessments. Pending clarity, the Group has, during the year, made a provision for contingencies 
under Provisions (current)  of Rs. 9,427.42 lakhs with a recognition of corresponding Reimbursement Assets (net of 
advance received of Rs. 2,440.34 lakhs) under ""Other financial assets (current)"". This does not have impact on the profit 
of the Group. 

56 The Group has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by transfer 
pricing legislation under section 92D for its specified domestic transactions. Based on the transfer pricing regulations/ 
policy, the transfer pricing study for the year ended March 31, 2020 is to be conducted on or before due date of the filing 
of return and the Company will further update above information and records based on the same and expects these to 
be in existence latest by that date. Management believes that all the above transactions are at arm’s length price and 
the aforesaid legislations will not have impact on the financial statement, particularly on the amount of tax expense and 
provision for taxation.

57 In March, 2020, the World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 to be a pandemic. Consequent to this, 
Government of India declared a national lockdown on March 25, 2020. Though the lockdown did not have any 
material impact in the operations of the Group in the year ended March 31,2020, it may impact the business 
activities of the Company in the financial year 2020-21. The Group has evaluated the impact of the pandemic on 
its business operations, business projections and on the carrying amounts of receivables, inventories, tangible 
and intangible assets and other assets / liabilities and has not identified any material impact. In developing the 
assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of the pandemic, the 
Group has considered internal and external information available till the date of approval of these financial results. 
In the above context and based on the current estimates, the Group does not foresee any material adverse impact in the 
medium to long term on the business, its liquidity and the ability to service its debt or other obligations. The overall economic 
situation being uncertain due to the evolving scenario of the pandemic, the Group would  continue to closely monitor any 
developments in future economic conditions as they emerge and consider their impact on the financial statements of the 
relevant periods.

 (Rs. lakhs)

Particluars Amount as on 
March 31, 2020

Amount as on 
March 31, 2019

Remarks

Land situated at Daurala, Uttar 
Pradesh (UP) and Kota, Rajasthan

844.04 * 844.04 *
Vested in the Holding Company pursuant 
to a Scheme of Arrangement of erstwhile 
DCM Limited.	 	

Land situated at Daurala, UP 44.95 44.95

The title deeds are in the name of Daurala 
Organics Limited which was merged with 
the Holding Company under section 391 to 
394 of the Companies Act, 1956 in terms of 
approval of Honorable High Court.	

* Includes leasehold land Rs. 465.35 lakhs at Kota, Rajasthan.

54.	 Immovable properties of Rs. 888.99 lakhs yet to be endorsed in the name of Group are as under :

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
DCM Shriram Industries Limited

N.K. Jain
Director Finance & Chief 
Financial Officer

Y.D. Gupta
Vice President  &
Company Secretary

P.R. Khanna
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Date  : 27.06.2020

S.B Mathur
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Managing Director

Kaushal Kishore 
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For BSR & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.:  
101248W/W-100022



175

Form AOC-I 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate companies/ joint ventures 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.) 

	 1.	 Sl. No.	 -
	 2.	 Name of the subsidiary 	 Daurala Foods & Beverages Pvt. Ltd.
	 3.	 The date since when subsidiary was acquired	 6th February, 2007
	 4.	 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from	 N.A.
		  the holding company’s reporting period
	 5.	 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the	 N.A.
		  relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries
	 6.	 Share capital 	 7,50,00,000
	 7.	 Reserves & surplus 	 4,51,34,284
	 8.	 Total assets 	 12,02,28,684
	 9.	 Total Liabilities 	 12,02,28,684
	10.	 Investments 	 -
	11.	 Turnover 	 86,69,071
	12.	 Profit before taxation 	 83,31,784
	13.	 Provision for taxation 	 21,66,449
	14.	 Profit after taxation 	 61,65,335
	15.	 Proposed Dividend 	 -
	16.	 % of shareholding 	 100%

Note: There is no subsidiary which is yet to commence operations or which has been liquidated or sold during the year.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures 
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures:

(Rs.)

Name of Associates /Joint Ventures DCM Hyundai Ltd.
1.	 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date March 31, 2020
2.	Date on which the Associate was associated July 17, 1995
3.	Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the 
	 company on the year end: 
	 -    No. 
	 -    Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 
	 -    Extent of Holding % 

19,72,000
Rs. 1,66,00,005/-

49.28%
4.	Description of how there is significant influence Holding more than 20% Equity Share Capital
5.	Reason why the associate/joint venture is 
	 not consolidated 

N.A.

6.	Networth attributable to Shareholding as per 	 	
     latest audited Balance Sheet 

15,56,19,409/-

7.	Profit / Loss for the year
     i)   Considered in Consolidation 6,02,488/-
     ii)  Not Considered in Consolidation 6,20,094/-

Note :	There is no associate or joint venture which is yet to commence operations 	or which has been liquidated or sold 
during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
DCM Shriram Industries Limited

N.K. Jain
Director Finance & Chief 
Financial Officer

Y.D. Gupta
Vice President  &
Company Secretary

P.R. Khanna
Director

Place : New Delhi
Date  : 27.06.2020

Place : New Delhi
Date  : 27.06.2020

S.B Mathur
Chairman

Alok B. Shriram 
Sr. Managing Director

Madhav B. Shriram
Managing Director
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